
 

Manor Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 7/10/2024 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Felix Paiz, Chair, Place 4 

Prince Chavis, Vice Chair, Place 2 

Julie Leonard, Place 1 

Gabrielle Orion, Place 3 

Jeffrey Stensland, Place 5 

Cecil Meyer, Place 6 

James Terry, Place 7 

Gabriel Nila, Alternate No. 1 

Vacant, Alternate No. 2 

Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, July 10, 2024 at 6:30 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

This meeting will be live streamed on Manor’s YouTube Channel at: 

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams  

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Non-Agenda Item Public Comments (white card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-

agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three (3) minutes per person. 

 

Agenda Item Public Comments (yellow card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda 

and agenda items combined for a length of time, not to exceed five (5) minutes total per person on all 

items, except for Public Hearings. Comments on Public Hearing items must be made when the item comes 

before the Board/Commission/Committee and, not to exceed two (2) minutes per person. No Action or 

Discussion May be Taken by the Board/Commission/Committee during Public Comments on Non-Agenda 

Items. 

To address the Board/Commission/Committee, please complete the white or yellow card and present it to 

the city staff designee prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision, 

being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the intersection at 

Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Planned 

Unit Development (PUD). 

Applicant: SEC Planning 

Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 

1

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams


 

Manor Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 7/10/2024 - Page 2 

 

2. Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 acres, more or 

less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West Eggleston 

Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2).  
Applicant: MWSW LLP  

Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and will be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 

items unless requested by the Chairperson or a Commission Member; in which event, the item will be 

removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the minutes for the June 12, 2024, 

Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Session.  

REGULAR AGENDA 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch 

Ranch Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of 

the intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) to Planned Unit Development (PUD).  
Applicant: SEC Planning  

Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 

0.31 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and 

West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-

2).  
Applicant: MWSW LLP  

Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Subdivision Construction Variance for 

the New Haven Subdivision from Manor Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10, Exhibit A, 

Article III, Section 42(b)(1) to permit a modified street pavement detail and being located at 

the northwest intersection of FM 973 and Gregg Ln, Manor, TX.  
Applicant: Quiddity  

Owner: Gregg Lane Dev. LLC 

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Final Plat for the Townplace at 

Hampton Addition Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.964 acres, more or less, and being located 

near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and Hill Lane, Manor, TX 
Applicant: Triangle Engineering, LLC 

Owner: Manor Lodging Development, LLC  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

2



 

Manor Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 7/10/2024 - Page 3 

 

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the 

right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the 

matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with 

Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and 

Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and 

§551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer 

or employee of the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter 

before the council or any board or commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or 

property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or matter that is different from that of the public 

at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable by the city shall not constitute 

a personal financial interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no Planning & 

Zoning Commission member and no City officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving 

a business entity or real property in which the Planning & Zoning Commission member or City officer has 

a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special economic 

effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. 

An affidavit disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the City Secretary before the 

matter is discussed. 

 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin 

board, at the City Hall of the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the 

general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the following date and time: Friday, July 5, 

2024, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time 

of said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall 

and the Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests 

for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 10 days prior to this meeting. Please contact the 

City Secretary at 512.215.8285 or e-mail lalmaraz@manortx.gov 

3

mailto:lalmaraz@manortx.gov


  AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, 
more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX 
from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Planned Unit Development (PUD).  
Applicant: SEC Planning  
Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Monarch Ranch PUD was first approved by Ordinance 636 on January 19, 2022. It was amended by Ordinance 
681 on December 7, 2022. This amendment was to update the roadway and lot layout to accommodate the city’s 
new thoroughfare plan. 

This second amendment to the PUD proposes reducing the minimum dwelling unit size from 1,700 square feet to 
1,300 square feet. No other additional PUD changes are proposed. 

Limits have been set on the range of home sizes so as to provide multiple options as well as having enough home 
elevations/designs to satisfy our zoning code’s requirement for elevation differentiation. The development is 
approved for 400 homes, so 20% would represent 80 homes. Each size range is limited to 20% of the overall 
development, except for units 1,701 or larger, which are not limited. 

 

The second amendment to the PUD is being considered concurrently with the Third Amendment to the 
Development Agreement. The Development Agreement amendment is to update the masonry requirements 
based on the proposed dwelling unit sizes in this second PUD amendment.  

4

Item 1.



Under our zoning code, the minimum dwelling unit size (conditioned space) for properties not in the Historic 
District is 2,000 square feet for SF-1 and 1,700 for SF-2. If the homes are 50% masonry (stone, brick, or cement 
stucco), these can be reduced to 1,500 sf and 1,200 sf, respectively, with the approval of a Development 
Agreement. For unconditioned space, a two-car enclosed garage and a minimum 100 sf covered or uncovered 
patio are also required. Enclosed garages typically are 350 sf – 400 sf, so with these, the overall structure could 
be 2,500 sf – 2,200 sf, if no masonry is included. 

The original Monarch Ranch PUD followed the SF-2 standard and set the minimum dwelling unit size to 1,700 sf. 
Through the Development Agreement, they were approved to have 30% front façade masonry, with corner and 
double-frontage lots also having a minimum of 30% of masonry on the side or rear. Had they been zoned SF-2 
rather than PUD, the dwelling units would have required 0% masonry, so the Development Agreement requiring 
30% front façade masonry was higher than code standards. 

Our zoning code allows for each 10% increment of masonry applied to the entire structure, the conditioned space 
can be reduced by 100 square feet. So a home in an SF-2 district is required to have 1,700 sf of conditioned space, 
but if 50% of the structure is masonry, the minimum dwelling size can be 1,200 sf.  

A modified version of this code is being applied to the Monarch Ranch PUD with the Development Agreement 
amendment. Since the current Development Agreement only requires front façade masonry and not an overall 
structure percentage, the amendment maintains that exception but increases the amount of masonry on the front 
façade consistent with our zoning code. So for each 100 sf the dwelling unit is reduced the front façade masonry 
is increased by 10%. The table below is what is proposed in the Development Agreement amendment to be 
considered by the City Council when they consider this PUD amendment.  

 

A. Masonry and Dwelling Unit Size Table  
 

Dwelling Unit Size (conditioned space) Minimum Front Façade* Masonry Percentage 

1,300 – 1,400 sq. ft. 70% 

1,401 – 1,500 sq. ft. 60% 

1,501 – 1,600 sq. ft. 50% 

1,600 – 1,700 sq. ft. 40% 

1,701 + sq. ft. 30% 

  

* Collector Road and Corner Lots shall have side and rear masonry percentages equal to the 
minimum front façade percentage.   
 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

 Rezoning Map 

 Aerial Image 

 Monarch Ranch PUD 

 PUD Comparison 

 Public Notice 

 Mailing Labels  

 
 
 

5

Item 1.



ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type NA 

 

Actions Open, Close, Postpone 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission conduct a public hearing on a 
Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the 
southwest corner of the intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) to Planned Unit Development (PUD). 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

6

Item 1.



F M
 97

3

N F
M 

97
3 R

D

GREGG LN
JOHNSON RD

JAMIE DRTINAJERO WAY

TOWER RD

ARNHAMN LN

SUNCREST RD JO
Y L

EE
 LN

RIPRAP DR

RO
SE

 HI
LL

 RD

STONERIDGE GAP LN

TIMBER ARCH LN

CARBROOK RD

CAMBRIAN RD

ANDESITE RD

JOHNSON RD

N 
FM

 97
3 R

D

Subject Property: 
134.53 Acres

¹
0 2,0001,000

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family 15
MF-2 - Multi-Family 25
MH-1 - Manufactured Home
I-1 - Institutional Small
I-2 - Institutional Large

GO - General Office
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial
C-3 - Heavy Commercial
NB - Neighborhood Business
DB - Downtown Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit Development
ETJ

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t

P r o p o s e d :  P r o p o s e d :  
( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t

7

Item 1.



 

 

 

8

Item 1.



 

 

 

9

Item 1.



1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

9

10

1112
13

1415

1617

18
1920 21 22 23 24

25

26
27

28

29
30 31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38
39

4041
42

43
44

45
46

474849

50
51

52 53

53 54

55
56

57

58

59
60 61

62

6364

65
66

67

68

6970

71
72

73
7475

76
77

78
79

80
81

82

83

84
85

86 87

88

89

90
91

92
93

94
95 96

97
98 99

10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
0

10
9

11
111

2
11

3

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7 11

8
11

9

12
012

1
12

2
12

3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
114

2 14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4 15

5 15
6

15
7 15

8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3 17
4

17
5

17
6

1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

9

10

1112
13

1415

1617

18
1920 21 22 23 24

25

26
27

28

29
30 31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38
39

4041
42

43
44

45
46

474849

50
51

52 53

53 54

55
56

57

58

59
60 61

62

6364

65
66

67

68

6970

71
72

73
7475

76
77

78
79

80
81

82

83

84
85

86 87

88

89

90
91

92
93

94
95 96

97
98 99

10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
0

10
9

11
111

2
11

3

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7 11

8
11

9

12
012

1
12

2
12

3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
114

2 14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4 15

5 15
6

15
7 15

8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3 17
4

17
5

17
6

Approval and authorized for record by the City Council for the
City of Manor, Texas.

Dated this ____ Day of __________, 20___

By:__________________________________
Honorable Mayor Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas

This Final PUD Site Plan has been submitted to and considered by the Planning
and Zoning Commission of the City of Manor, Texas, and is hereby recommended
for approval by the City Council.

Dated this ____ Day of __________, 20___

By:__________________________________
Felix Paiz, Chairperson

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

210038 - BBGR
Project No.

2022C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By:

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

PUD Submittal 5/24/2021

_____ of _____SHEET 1 1

Z:\210038-BBGR\Cadfiles\PLANNING\
Submittals\PUD Amendment_10-2022\PUD Site

Plan_Notes Monarch Ranch Amendment.dwg

PUD Submittal 7/29/2021

PUD Submittal 8/30/2021

PUD Submittal 11/11/2021

PUD Amend Submittal 10/13/2022

PUD Amend 2 4/15/2024

M
A

N
O

R
, 

T
E
X

A
S

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
 R

A
N

C
H

F
I
N

A
L
 P

U
D

 S
I
T

E
 P

L
A

N

(SF-2) RESIDENTIAL

TOTAL ACRES134.5

400 LOTS

ACREAGE LOTS

101.9 ACRES

3.0 DU/AC

4.0 DU/AC

DENSITYLAND USE

(OS) FLOODPLAIN 12.0 ACRES

(C-2) MEDIUM COMMERCIAL 11.3 ACRES

1 LOTS

2 LOTS

(OS) OPEN SPACE 9.3 ACRES 1 LOTS

PARK LAND DEDICATION:

/66 x 1 =

(number of dwelling units) (required park acreage) (proposed park acreage)

400 6.1 22.9

8' CONCRETE TRAIL (2,400 L.F.)

PLAN BOUNDARY

4' WALKS

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

8' TRAILS

CITY LIMITS

LAND USE PARCEL TABLE LEGEND

North

Scale: 1" = 300'

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1" = 1/2 Mile

North
Scale: 1" = 300'

0 300' 600' 900'

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

0 300' 600' 900'

A. Purpose and Intent

1. The Monarch Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD) is comprised of approximately
134.5 acres. The development of this Property is a combination of light commercial along
FM 973 at the Eastern edge of the Property and a single-family detached residential
community on the remainder of the Property.

B. Applicability and Base Zoning

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Manor
Code of Ordinances, except as established in this exhibit, titled Final PUD Site Plan.

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the following base
zoning districts have been selected from the Manor Code of Ordinances:

SF-2 (Single-Family Standard)

C-2 (Medium Commercial)

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan

1. The Land Use Plan has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the
Property. The Final PUD Site Plan is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general
community vision and design concept and is not intended to serve as a final document.

D. Allowable/Prohibited Uses

1. The allowable residential use shall be detached single-family dwellings on individually
platted lots. The maximum residential lot count shall be four hundred (400). Commercial
uses shall be consistent with allowable C-2 (Medium Commercial) land uses as defined in
Division 3, Section 14.02.017 of City of Manor Code of Ordinances except as modified
herein.

2. The following uses shall be prohibited within the C-2 area of the PUD:

· Amusement (outdoor)

· Automobile Repair (minor)

· Automobile Repair (major)

· Commercial Off-Street Parking

· Contractor's Shop

· Financial Services (alternative)

· Funeral Services

· Kennel

· Laundry Services

· Mini-Storage Warehouse

· Off-Site Accessory Parking

· Pawnshop

· Recreational Vehicle Sales and Rental

· Truck and Trailer Sales and Rental

· Veterinary Service, Large

E. Residential Development Standards
1. To ensure product diversity, the following single-family detached residential percentages shall apply

to the residential district within this PUD:
a. A maximum of 80 percent (80%) of the total lots may have a width of less than sixty feet (60').

b. A minimum of 20 percent (20%) of the total shall have a width of sixty feet (60') or wider.

2. The Monarch Ranch residential development will comply with the Development Standards set forth
below:

RESIDENTIAL USES

Lot Area: 6,000 s.f. Minimum (fronted loaded garage)
Lot Width: (minimum)50 ft.
Front Setback: (minimum)25 ft.
Side Setback: (minimum)5 ft.
Street Side Setback: (minimum)15 ft.
Rear Setback to residential:(minimum)10 ft.
Rear Setback to commercial: 15 ft
Minimum dwelling unit size:

Maximum building coverage: 50%
Maximum building coverage plus accessory structures: 60%

3. Standards not listed follow code, as amended

F. Commercial Development Standards
1. The Monarch Ranch commercial development shall comply with the C-2 (Medium Commercial)

development standards set forth in the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, as amended.

G. Drainage Dedication and Facilities

1. Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthen berms and be designed with a curvilinear
shape where possible. If concrete retaining walls are required in the design of detention
facilities, such areas shall be limited to not more than forty percent (40%) of the perimeter of the

pond.

H. Parkland and Open Space

1. This Final PUD Site Plan provides approximately 22.9 acres of park and open space with the dedication
of two (2) tracts of land as illustrated on the Parks Plan on this sheet. The parks and open space will
include detention facilities for the project, tree preservation areas, 100 year floodplain, trail corridor and
active programmed parkland.

2. An eight-foot (8') concrete trail shall provide pedestrian/bike access along the parkland corridor
connecting from the north property boundary to the south property boundary, as depicted on Park Plan.
Trees shall be planted parallel to the concrete trail at a spacing of one (1) tree for every forty (40) linear
feet. Trees shall be a minimum of three (3) inch caliper and selected from the Type A/B tree list of the
City of Manor Code of Ordinances.

3. Parkland amenities located within the Enfield PUD shall include a minimum of the following
recreational elements: playground, parking area, dog park, picnic areas, picnic pavilion and open
lawn/gaming area.

a. Age 5-12 playground

b. Age 2-5 playground

c. Parking area with a minimum of 20 parking spaces

d. Minimum 10,000 square foot dog park (may be allowed within detention area)

e. Minimum 20 foot by 30 foot picnic pavilion

4. A portion of the parkland may be utilized for a private amenity pool and associated restroom facility.
This lot defined for the private amenity will not be dedicated to the City and final boundary will be
determined at the platting stage of development. The private amenity portion of the overall parkland
will be a maximum of 2 acres.

5. A minimum 4 foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided parallel to the Gregg Lane Landscape
Buffer.

6. The proposed parkland shall be dedicated to the City of Manor and privately maintained by the
Monarch Ranch Homeowner's Association.

I. Landscaping

1. Gregg Lane Landscape Buffer

a. A minimum fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer, measured from the edge of the Gregg Lane
right of way, shall be provided. Four (4), minimum three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or
Type B medium native trees (as defined by the Manor Code of Ordinances) and fifteen (15),
minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 200 linear feet of landscape buffer. A
minimum four (4) foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided within the Gregg Lane
Landscape Buffer or the expanded right of way for Gregg Lane. Location and alignment of
the sidewalk shall be coordinated during the Preliminary Plan stage of development.

2. Unloaded Collector Landscape Buffer.

a. For internal, unloaded collector roadways, a minimum ten (10) foot landscape buffer,
measured from the edge of the collector right of way, shall be provided. One (1), minimum
three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or Type B medium native tree (as defined by the Manor
Code of Ordinances) and five (5), minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 50
linear feet of landscape buffer.

3. Storm Water Detention

a. Storm water detention facilities shall be screened according to the requirements outlined in
the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, Section 15.03.021 (f).

4. Masonry wall shall be provided along the rear and side lotlines of lots that back up to an unloaded
collector and Gregg Lane. Masonry shall include brick, stone, stucco or concrete panel fencing.
Stone or brick columns shall be provided a minimum of every 300 feet. Walls should be minimized
and varied whenever possible to avoid a tunnel effect along the collector roadway.

5. All landscape buffers and walls shall be privately maintained by the Monarch Ranch Homeowners
Association.

A. Purpose and Intent

1. The Monarch Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD) is comprised of approximately
134.5 acres. The development of this Property is a combination of light commercial along
FM 973 at the Eastern edge of the Property and a single-family detached residential
community on the remainder of the Property.

B. Applicability and Base Zoning

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Manor
Code of Ordinances, except as established in this exhibit, titled Final PUD Site Plan.

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the following base
zoning districts have been selected from the Manor Code of Ordinances:

SF-2 (Single-Family Standard)

C-2 (Medium Commercial)

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan

1. The Land Use Plan has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the
Property. The Final PUD Site Plan is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general
community vision and design concept and is not intended to serve as a final document.

D. Allowable/Prohibited Uses

1. The allowable residential use shall be detached single-family dwellings on individually
platted lots. The maximum residential lot count shall be four hundred (400). Commercial
uses shall be consistent with allowable C-2 (Medium Commercial) land uses as defined in
Division 3, Section 14.02.017 of City of Manor Code of Ordinances except as modified
herein.

2. The following uses shall be prohibited within the C-2 area of the PUD:

· Amusement (outdoor)

· Automobile Repair (minor)

· Automobile Repair (major)

· Commercial Off-Street Parking

· Contractor's Shop

· Financial Services (alternative)

· Funeral Services

· Kennel

· Laundry Services

· Mini-Storage Warehouse

· Off-Site Accessory Parking

· Pawnshop

· Recreational Vehicle Sales and Rental

· Truck and Trailer Sales and Rental

· Veterinary Service, Large

E. Residential Development Standards
1. To ensure product diversity, the following single-family detached residential percentages shall apply

to the residential district within this PUD:
a. A maximum of 80 percent (80%) of the total lots may have a width of less than sixty feet (60').

b. A minimum of 20 percent (20%) of the total shall have a width of sixty feet (60') or wider.

2. The Monarch Ranch residential development will comply with the Development Standards set forth
below:

RESIDENTIAL USES

Lot Area: 6,000 s.f. Minimum (fronted loaded garage)
Lot Width: (minimum)50 ft.
Front Setback: (minimum)25 ft.
Side Setback: (minimum)5 ft.
Street Side Setback: (minimum)15 ft.
Rear Setback to residential:(minimum)10 ft.
Rear Setback to commercial: 15 ft
Minimum dwelling unit size:

Maximum building coverage: 50%
Maximum building coverage plus accessory structures: 60%

3. Standards not listed follow code, as amended

F. Commercial Development Standards
1. The Monarch Ranch commercial development shall comply with the C-2 (Medium Commercial)

development standards set forth in the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, as amended.

G. Drainage Dedication and Facilities

1. Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthen berms and be designed with a curvilinear
shape where possible. If concrete retaining walls are required in the design of detention
facilities, such areas shall be limited to not more than forty percent (40%) of the perimeter of the

pond.

H. Parkland and Open Space

1. This Final PUD Site Plan provides approximately 22.9 acres of park and open space with the dedication
of two (2) tracts of land as illustrated on the Parks Plan on this sheet. The parks and open space will
include detention facilities for the project, tree preservation areas, 100 year floodplain, trail corridor and
active programmed parkland.

2. An eight-foot (8') concrete trail shall provide pedestrian/bike access along the parkland corridor
connecting from the north property boundary to the south property boundary, as depicted on Park Plan.
Trees shall be planted parallel to the concrete trail at a spacing of one (1) tree for every forty (40) linear
feet. Trees shall be a minimum of three (3) inch caliper and selected from the Type A/B tree list of the
City of Manor Code of Ordinances.

3. Parkland amenities located within the Enfield PUD shall include a minimum of the following
recreational elements: playground, parking area, dog park, picnic areas, picnic pavilion and open
lawn/gaming area.

a. Age 5-12 playground

b. Age 2-5 playground

c. Parking area with a minimum of 20 parking spaces

d. Minimum 10,000 square foot dog park (may be allowed within detention area)

e. Minimum 20 foot by 30 foot picnic pavilion

4. A portion of the parkland may be utilized for a private amenity pool and associated restroom facility.
This lot defined for the private amenity will not be dedicated to the City and final boundary will be
determined at the platting stage of development. The private amenity portion of the overall parkland
will be a maximum of 2 acres.

5. A minimum 4 foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided parallel to the Gregg Lane Landscape
Buffer.

6. The proposed parkland shall be dedicated to the City of Manor and privately maintained by the
Monarch Ranch Homeowner's Association.

I. Landscaping

1. Gregg Lane Landscape Buffer

a. A minimum fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer, measured from the edge of the Gregg Lane
right of way, shall be provided. Four (4), minimum three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or
Type B medium native trees (as defined by the Manor Code of Ordinances) and fifteen (15),
minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 200 linear feet of landscape buffer. A
minimum four (4) foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided within the Gregg Lane
Landscape Buffer or the expanded right of way for Gregg Lane. Location and alignment of
the sidewalk shall be coordinated during the Preliminary Plan stage of development.

2. Unloaded Collector Landscape Buffer.

a. For internal, unloaded collector roadways, a minimum ten (10) foot landscape buffer,
measured from the edge of the collector right of way, shall be provided. One (1), minimum
three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or Type B medium native tree (as defined by the Manor
Code of Ordinances) and five (5), minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 50
linear feet of landscape buffer.

3. Storm Water Detention

a. Storm water detention facilities shall be screened according to the requirements outlined in
the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, Section 15.03.021 (f).

4. Masonry wall shall be provided along the rear and side lotlines of lots that back up to an unloaded
collector and Gregg Lane. Masonry shall include brick, stone, stucco or concrete panel fencing.
Stone or brick columns shall be provided a minimum of every 300 feet. Walls should be minimized
and varied whenever possible to avoid a tunnel effect along the collector roadway.

5. All landscape buffers and walls shall be privately maintained by the Monarch Ranch Homeowners
Association.

10

Item 1.



 

Proposed PUD Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

Current PUD: 

 

 

11

Item 1.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 
6/26/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Planned Use Development (PUD) Amendment  
 
Project Name: Monarch Ranch PUD Amendment 
Case Number: 2024-P-1644-ZO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Planned Use 
Development (PUD) Amendment for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision located at the southwest 
corner of the intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on 
the agenda as follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch 
Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
to Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
Applicant: SEC Planning 
Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 
 
Purpose: The proposed amendment will decrease the minimum dwelling unit size from 1,700 
square feet to 1,300 square feet.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on July 10, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on July 17, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City 
Hall Council Chambers. 
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone 
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and 
Council Members during the discussion of this item.  

12

Item 1.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE  
PO BOX 589   

 PFLUGERVILLE, TX 78691-0589 

  
GREGG LANE DEV LLC 

 101 PARKLANE BLVD STE 102  
SUGAR LAND, TX 77478-5521v 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR 
ISD 

DENNIS ANDERSON ETAL  
533 HIWASEE ROAD  

WAXAHACHIE, TX 75165-6448 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA                                                     
ANDERSON DENNIS ETAL 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS OFFICE                                           
533 HIWASEE RD 

WAXAHACHIE, TX 75165-6448 

  
BURATTI, ROBERT JOE 6903  

GENEVA DR  
AUSTIN, TX 78723-1506 

  
STRABO HOLDINGS LLC 

13510 BR0ADMEADE AVE 
AUSTIN, TX 78729 

 
   

FOXTROT HOLDING LLC 
14605 FM 973 N 

MANOR, TX 78653-3539 

  
HOLLEY, EBONY L & TERRY G JR 

14526 PERNELLA RD 
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

  
BLAKELY, ARTURO S V & JENNIFER A 

14522 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 
SHEPPERD, RICHARD & ROSE MARY 

14518 PERNELLA RD 
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 AGUILERA, JAVIER R & LAURA GUDINO 
PENA & RAUL PENA & LUZ ROSAS DE 

GUDINO 
14514 PERNELLA RD 

MANOR, TX 78653-2062 
 
  

  
RODARTE, GAMALIEL & ALEXANDRIA 

SERPAS 
14510 PERNELLA RD 

MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 
MORALES, GERARDO M 14506 

PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

  
SW HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 

9601 AMBERGLEN BLVD STE 150 
AUSTIN, TX 78729-1190 

  

  
CHHETRI SHANKAR & ANJANA KARKI
 14428 PERNELLA RD
 MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
JORDAN ANDY ZEWDE & TSEHAY MUHE 

14424 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
CHAPARRO, JUAN P & SULEIVA 

CHAPARRO-RODRIGUEZ  
14408 PERNELLA RD  

MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
CLARK, MARY M  

14404 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
ESCOBEDO, KRISTINE A & MATTHEW J 

14400 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
ESTRADA, GILBERTO A & MARIA D 

14411 FM 973 N 
 MANOR, TX 78653 

  
LEKCAM COMMUNICATION LLC  

16404 MARCELLO DR  
PFLUGERVILLE, TX 78660-2570 

 
14420 PERNELLA RD INTERVIVOS 

REVOCABLE TRUST    
14420 PERNELLA RD 

 MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
RUST CREEK LLC  

9606 OLD MANOR RD #1  
AUSTIN, TX 78724-1114 

 
  

  
TAYLOR ARTHUR RAY & ODETTE VANESSA  

14416 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
REZA MASRUR & MUSTAFA ALI REZA 

CHOWDHURY & FAUZIA ZAMAN  
14412 PERNELLA RD  

MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
ESTRADA, MARIA D  

14411 FM 973  
MANOR, TX 78653-3933 

  
OKRA LAND INCORPORATED 

9505 JOHNNY MORRIS RD 
AUSTIN , TX 78724-1527 

     

13

Item 1.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 acres, more or less, and being 
located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light 
Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2).  
Applicant: MWSW LLP  
Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The C-1 Light Commercial area was approved by Ordinance 371 in August 2009 and Ordinance 477 in May 2017. 
10.742 acres of that C-1 area was rezoned to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2) in June 2022 by Ordinance 655, which left 
a 2.482 acre C-1 tract. That tract was reduced to 1.67 acres, its current configuration, with the extension of West 
Eggleston Street. 

In the First Amendment to the Entradaglen Development Agreement approved by the City Council on June 15, 
2022, there was a shared parking agreement that allowed up to 40 parking spaces needed for the multi-family 
development to be constructed on the commercial tract. Upon submittal of the Site Development Plan for the 
multi-family, only 29 spaces needed to be located on the commercial lot. 

A daycare business is planned to be located on the 1.67-acre commercial lot, but they do not need the full lot, 
and their site layout does not provide for shared parking. Due to this, the multi-family developer is acquiring the 
unused portion of the commercial lot, 0.31 acres, to incorporate into their development. Since it is being 
incorporated into the multi-family development, the 29 parking spaces that were planned to be shared on the 
commercial lot will now be solely on the multi-family lot, as required by our code. Adding the 0.31-acre tract to 
the multi-family lot requires it to be rezoned from C-1 Light Commercial to MF-2 Multi-Family 25. This additional 
acreage will not add more dwelling units to the project, which is planned to have 216 units. 

An Amended Plat will be filed to move the lot lines between the commercial and multi-family properties to align 
the lots with the new zoning requested here. Amended Plats are approved administratively.  

 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

14

Item 2.



 Letter of Intent 

 Rezoning Map 

 Aerial Image 

 MF Site Layout 

 DA Shared Parking Section 

 Letter of Authorization  

 Metes and Bounds 

 Notice and Mailing Labels 

ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type NA 

 

Actions Open, Close, Postpone 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission conduct a public hearing on a 
Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg 
Manor Road and West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2).  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

15

Item 2.



 

 
  

221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2245 • www.mwswtexas.com 

 

 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

Partner 
 

twilliams@mwswtexas.com 
512-404-2234 

 
 

 

 
June 14, 2024 

 
Mr. Scott Dunlop        Via Online Submittal 
Development Services Director 
105 E Eggleston St., 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; Approximately 0.3067 acres within the Las Entradas 
South Project located along the future Gregg Manor Extension and North of 
Highway 290 in Manor, Texas (the “Property”). 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the 
attached Zoning Application to request a change from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-family 25 
(MF-2). The Property is located along the future Gregg Manor Extension and North of Highway 
290 in Manor, Texas (see attached Location Map). 
 

The Property is part of the Las Entradas South Project which is a mixed-use development 
that also includes commercial and residential uses as well as publicly accessible open space. With 
this rezoning the shared parking between the multifamily and commercial sites, will not be 
required. The Property will provide the parking requirements for the unique multifamily 
development in this high quality, pedestrian oriented development of horizontal mixed use, which 
is desired by the City of Manor. 

 
Attached to this application is a Microsoft Word document with the names and addresses 

of property owners within 300 feet of the Property, tax certificates and metes and bounds for the 
Property. 

 
If you have any questions about the proposed Zoning Application or need additional 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time 
and attention to this project. 

 
Very truly yours, 

 

 
Talley Williams

16

Item 2.



 

 
 

 
ZONING EXHIBIT 

 

17

Item 2.



LE
XIN

GT
ON

OLD HWY 20
W PARSONS ST

N 
BA

ST
RO

P S
T

N 
LE

XIN
GT

ON
 ST

N 
CA

LD
WE

LL
 ST

OLD HWY 20

N 
BU

RN
ET

 ST

W BOYCE ST

W TOWNES ST

W WHEELER ST

W BROWNING ST

W EGGLESTON ST

W RECTOR ST

E BOYCE ST

E EGGLESTON ST

E WHEELER ST

Subject Property: 
0.31 acres

¹
0 500250

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family 15
MF-2 - Multi-Family 25
MH-1 - Manufactured Home
I-1 - Institutional Small
I-2 - Institutional Large

GO - General Office
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial
C-3 - Heavy Commercial
NB - Neighborhood Business
DB - Downtown Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit Development
ETJ

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
( C - 1 )  L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l( C - 1 )  L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l

P r o p o s e d :  P r o p o s e d :  
( M F - 2 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5( M F - 2 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5 18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



A
L
L
E

Y
(2

0
' R

.O
.W

.)A
L
L
E

Y
(2

0
' R

.O
.W

.)

W
. 
B

O
Y
C

E
S

T
R

E
E

T
(8

0
' R

.O
.W

.)W
.

E
G

G
L
E

S
T
O

N
S

T
R

E
E

T
(8

0
' R

.O
.W

.)

[F
]

[F
]

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

30
' W

AT
ER

LI
N

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T 

AN
D

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

D
O

C
# 

20
02

18
81

93

O
PR

TC

E

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

10' P.U.E.. (BY PLAT)

25' B.L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

10' B.L.

10' B.L.

10' 

D
O

G
PA

R
K

MAINT

BL
D

G
 3

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 2

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
8.

5
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 1

 (T
YP

E 
1)

FF
E=

52
8.

0
±2

7,
94

7 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

2'
-6

")

BL
D

G
 4

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 6

 (T
YP

E 
5)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

5,
39

2 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 7

 (T
YP

E 
3)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
24

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

2'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 8

 (T
YP

E 
2)

FF
E=

52
9.

4
±3

0,
66

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

4'
-1

")

BL
D

G
 1

0 
(T

YP
E 

6)
FF

E=
52

9.
0

±1
2,

64
5 

S.
F.

3 
ST

O
R

IE
S 

(3
9'

-5
")

C
LU

BH
O

U
SE

FF
E=

52
8.

5
±5

,8
22

 S
.F

.
1 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(1

5'
-3

")

7

10

6

6

9

5
10

10

10

10

10

10

10
10 10

10
10

10

10

10

7

7

7

7

8

8

8

10

8

9

9
10

5

10

4

4

6

4

4

4
4

2

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

9

G

H

A

B

B

B

F

F

F

F

F

H

D

C

I

I

I

I

J

J

J

FFE=528.8

K

L

M

M

M

29
 S

H
AR

ED
 S

PA
C

ES
 T

O
 B

E
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TE
D

 A
T 

SA
M

E 
TI

M
E 

AS
AP

AR
TM

EN
TS

EV
EV

EV
EV

BL
D

G
 9

 (T
YP

E 
2)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±3

0,
66

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

4'
-1

")

4

2

BL
D

G
 5

 (T
YP

E 
6)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±1

2,
64

5 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(3

9'
-5

")

10

10

9

H

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

O
O

L/
PA

VI
LI

O
N

 A
R

EA

FRONT YARD SETBACK

SI
D

E 
YA

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

SI
D

E 
YA

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
SE

TB
AC

K

3 
ST

O
R

Y 
SE

TB
AC

K

1 STORY SETBACK

3 STORY SETBACK

FR
O

NT
 Y

AR
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

R
R

R
R

R
R

R
R

RR

RR

RR

R
R

R
R

R
R

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

F A

SE
E 

PL
AN

08
/1

7/
20

22

BF
B

BG
H

20
68

-2
20

C
-3
.0SITE PLAN

**
TE

XA
S 

O
N

E 
C

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM
**

AS
 R

EQ
U

IE
R

D
 B

Y 
"T

H
E 

TE
XA

S 
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y 

D
AM

AG
E 

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
SA

FE
TY

 A
C

T"
 T

EX
AS

 O
N

E 
C

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM
 M

U
ST

 B
E 

C
O

N
TA

C
TE

D
 (

80
0-

24
5-

45
45

) 
AT

LE
AS

T 
48

 H
O

U
R

S 
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 A
N

Y 
EX

C
AV

AT
IO

N
 O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S 

PE
R

FO
R

M
ED

. I
T 

IS
 T

H
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
S 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 T
O

 C
O

N
TA

C
T 

TE
XA

S 
O

N
E 

C
AL

L 
SY

ST
EM

.

IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

S/
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
S 

N
O

TE

AL
L 

N
EC

ES
SA

R
Y 

IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D
/O

R
 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 
BY

 
LO

C
AL

C
O

D
ES

 A
N

D
/O

R
 U

TI
LI

TY
 S

ER
VI

C
E 

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 P

ER
FO

R
M

ED
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
SU

BS
TA

N
TI

AL
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

.

TO
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 S

U
R

VE
Y 

N
O

TE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

O
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
BY

 4
W

AR
D

 L
AN

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

, 
LL

C
 O

F 
AU

ST
IN

, 
TX

. 
IF

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 D

O
ES

 N
O

T
AC

C
EP

T 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 T
O

PO
G

R
AP

H
Y 

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 P
LA

N
S,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

EX
C

EP
TI

O
N

, 
H

E
SH

AL
L 

H
AV

E 
M

AD
E,

 A
T 

H
IS

 E
XP

EN
SE

, A
 T

O
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 S

U
R

VE
Y 

BY
 A

 R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YO

R
 A

N
D

 S
U

BM
IT

 I
T 

TO
 T

H
E 

O
W

N
ER

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
. 

TH
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

SE
AL

 
O

N
 

TH
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

D
O

ES
 

N
O

T 
AP

PL
Y 

TO
 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

.

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

M
AR

KE
R

S
IF

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 R
EL

O
C

AT
ES

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

M
AR

KE
R

S 
W

IT
H

 A
 N

EW
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E
M

AR
KE

R
, I

T 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 L

O
C

AT
ED

 W
IT

H
 A

 H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

AN
D

 V
ER

TI
C

AL
 T

O
LE

R
AN

C
E 

O
F

0.
10

'

SU
R

VE
Y 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PO
IN

T 
- 1

/2
" I

R
O

N
 R

O
D

 W
IT

H
 "4

W
AR

D
 C

O
N

TR
O

L"
 C

AP
G

R
ID

 N
: 1

0,
09

9,
01

9.
98

G
R

ID
 E

:  
 3

,1
69

,2
22

.2
5

EL
EV

.=
   

 5
13

.3
6'

TB
M

#1
- 

SQ
U

AR
E 

C
U

T 
O

N
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
AT

 T
H

E 
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 O
F 

TH
E 

BR
ID

G
E

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 O
F 

G
IL

LE
LA

N
D

 C
R

EE
K 

O
N

 T
H

E 
N

O
R

TH
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

O
LD

 H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

0 
±1

44
'

FE
ET

 N
O

R
TH

 E
AS

T 
O

F 
SU

R
VE

Y 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PO

IN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 S
U

R
VE

Y.
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 =
 5

16
.7

5'
. (

N
O

T 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 S

U
R

VE
Y)

TB
M

#2
- 

SQ
U

AR
E 

C
U

T 
O

N
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T 
AT

 T
H

E 
EA

ST
 E

N
D

 O
F

TH
E 

BR
ID

G
E 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 O
F 

G
IL

LE
LA

N
D

 
C

R
EE

K 
O

N
 

TH
E 

SO
U

TH
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

O
LD

H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

0 
±6

51
' 

FE
ET

 S
O

U
TH

 E
AS

T 
O

F 
SU

R
VE

Y 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PO

IN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

SU
R

VE
Y.

   
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 =
 5

17
.5

0'
. (

N
O

T 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 S

U
R

VE
Y)

ST
AB

IL
IZ

AT
IO

N
 N

O
TE

AL
L 

N
O

N
-P

AV
ED

 A
R

EA
S 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
LI

M
IT

S
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
SH

AL
L 

R
EC

EI
VE

 4
" O

F
C

LE
AN

 T
O

PS
O

IL
 A

N
D

 H
YD

R
O

M
U

LC
H

 O
R

 S
O

D
 (

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

IN
G

 P
LA

N
S)

.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 IS
 F

U
LL

Y 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

TO
 E

N
SU

R
E 

TH
AT

 4
" O

F 
TO

PS
O

IL
 IS

 IN
 P

LA
C

E
AN

D
 G

R
AS

S 
IS

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 A
T 

TH
E 

C
LO

SE
O

U
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T.
 I

F 
AD

EQ
U

AT
E

TO
PS

O
IL

 I
S 

N
O

T 
AV

AI
LA

BL
E 

O
N

 S
IT

E,
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 M

U
ST

 I
M

PO
R

T 
C

LE
AN

TO
PS

O
IL

 T
O

 S
AT

IS
FY

 T
H

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 O
F 

TH
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S.
AL

L 
AR

EA
S 

D
IS

TU
R

BE
D

 O
U

TS
ID

E 
TH

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y 
SH

AL
L 

AL
SO

 B
E

H
YD

R
O

M
U

LC
H

ED
 O

R
 S

O
D

D
ED

 A
N

D
 C

O
VE

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 T
O

 P
R

EV
EN

T
ER

O
SI

O
N

.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 
TE

M
PO

R
AR

Y 
W

AT
ER

IN
G

 
U

N
TI

L 
A

H
EA

LT
H

Y 
ST

AN
D

 O
F 

G
R

AS
S 

IS
 E

ST
AB

LI
SH

ED
.

PE
R

M
IT

S 
N

O
TE

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
O

BT
AI

N
 A

LL
 N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y 
PE

R
M

IT
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 B

Y 
FE

D
ER

AL
,

ST
AT

E,
 O

R
 L

O
C

AL
 C

O
D

ES
 A

N
D

/O
R

 U
TI

LI
TY

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S 

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 S

TA
R

T
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
.

**
C

AU
TI

O
N

**
-N

O
TI

C
E 

TO
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

IS
 

PU
T 

O
N

 
N

O
TI

C
E 

TH
AT

 
TH

ER
E 

M
AY

 
BE

 
N

U
M

ER
O

U
S

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 I

N
 T

H
E 

LI
N

E 
O

F 
W

O
R

K,
 S

U
C

H
 A

S 
W

AT
ER

, 
SE

W
ER

, 
G

AS
,

PI
PE

LI
N

E,
 T

EL
EP

H
O

N
E 

AN
D

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
, S

O
M

E 
M

AY
 B

E
 A

BA
N

D
O

N
ED

 W
H

IL
E 

M
AN

Y 
AR

E
AC

TI
VE

. 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
SH

O
W

N
 

O
N

 
TH

E 
PL

AN
S 

R
EP

R
ES

EN
T 

A 
D

IL
IG

EN
T

EF
FO

R
T 

TO
 S

H
O

W
 T

H
EI

R
 A

PP
R

O
XI

M
AT

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

SH
AL

L 
EX

ER
C

IS
E 

EX
TR

EM
E 

C
AU

TI
O

N
 

W
H

EN
 

C
O

N
D

U
C

TI
N

G
EX

C
AV

AT
IO

N
 

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S.
 

D
AM

AG
ES

 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 

R
EP

AI
R

ED
 

IM
M

ED
IA

TE
LY

 
AT

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
'S

 E
XP

EN
SE

.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 M

U
ST

 C
O

N
TA

C
T 

TH
E 

AP
PR

O
PR

IA
TE

 U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

AT
 L

EA
ST

72
 H

O
U

R
S 

BE
FO

R
E 

AN
Y 

EX
C

AV
AT

IO
N

 T
O

 R
EQ

U
ES

T 
FI

EL
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 I

S 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AL

LY
 C

AU
TI

O
N

ED
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
/O

R
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
IS

 B
AS

ED
 O

N
R

EC
O

R
D

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
VA

R
IO

U
S 

U
TI

LI
TY

 
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 
AN

D
 

W
H

ER
E 

PO
SS

IB
LE

,
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

 T
AK

EN
 IN

 T
H

E 
FI

EL
D

. T
H

E 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
R

EL
IE

D
 O

N
AS

 B
EI

N
G

 E
XA

C
T 

O
R

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E.

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 M
U

ST
 C

AL
L 

TH
E 

AP
PR

O
PR

IA
TE

U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S 
AT

 L
EA

ST
 7

2 
H

O
U

R
S 

BE
FO

R
E 

AN
Y 

EX
C

AV
AT

IO
N

 T
O

 R
EQ

U
ES

T
EX

AC
T 

FI
EL

D
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

. 
IT

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 T

H
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 O
F 

TH
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 T

O
 R

EL
O

C
AT

E 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 W
H

IC
H

 C
O

N
FL

IC
T 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PL

AN
S.

LE
G

EN
D

N
O

TE
:

N
O

TE
:  

AL
L 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 S

IZ
E 

AN
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
O

N
FI

R
M

ED
 W

IT
H

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 P

LA
N

S

W
AT

ER
 V

AL
VE

FI
R

E 
H

YD
R

AN
T

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
C

LE
AN

O
U

T

N
U

M
BE

R
 O

F 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 S
PA

C
ES

 P
ER

 R
O

W

R
IS

ER
 R

O
O

M
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N

W
AT

ER
 L

IN
E

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

U
R

B 
AN

D
 G

U
TT

ER

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

1.
AL

L 
W

O
R

K 
AN

D
 M

AT
ER

IA
LS

 S
H

AL
L 

C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H

 A
LL

 C
IT

Y,
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
ST

AT
E,

FE
D

ER
AL

 A
N

D
 O

SH
A 

R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S.

2.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 S
H

AL
L 

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 T

H
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 P
LA

N
S 

FO
R

 E
XA

C
T

LO
C

AT
IO

N
S 

AN
D

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
O

F 
SL

O
PE

D
 P

AV
IN

G
, 

R
M

PA
S,

 S
ID

EW
AL

KS
, 

EX
IT

PO
R

C
H

ES
, P

R
EC

IS
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S,

 E
XA

C
T 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TY
EN

TR
AN

C
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
S,

 T
O

TA
L 

N
U

M
BE

R
, L

O
C

AT
IO

N
, A

N
D

 S
IZ

E 
O

F
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
 A

N
D

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 A
PP

U
R

TE
N

AN
C

ES
 W

H
IC

H
 A

R
E 

C
O

N
N

EC
TE

D
 T

O
TH

E 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

.
3.

AL
L 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
AN

D
 R

AD
II 

AR
E 

TO
 T

H
E 

FR
O

N
T 

O
F 

C
U

R
B,

 C
EN

TE
R

 O
R

 E
N

D
 O

F
ST

R
IP

E,
 F

AC
E 

O
F 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
, 

O
R

 E
D

G
E 

O
F 

PA
VE

M
EN

T,
 U

N
LE

SS
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E
N

O
TE

D
.

4.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 IS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 R
EM

O
VE

 O
R

 R
EL

O
C

AT
E,

 IN
 A

 P
R

O
PE

R
 M

AN
N

ER
,

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 I

M
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T/
N

AT
U

R
AL

 F
EA

TU
R

ES
 T

O
 A

LL
O

W
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

O
F 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 IN
D

IC
AT

ED
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PL
AN

S.
 A

LL
 W

O
R

K 
SH

AL
L 

BE
IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

AN
C

E 
W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
R

N
IN

G
 A

U
TH

O
R

IT
IE

S 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
AN

D
 S

H
AL

L
BE

 A
PP

R
O

VE
D

 B
Y 

SU
C

H
. N

O
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

PA
Y 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 W

O
R

K.
5.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 I

S 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

AL
L

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 C

O
R

N
ER

S.
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 C

O
R

N
ER

S 
D

AM
AG

ED
 B

Y 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 S
H

AL
L

BE
 R

EP
LA

C
ED

 B
Y 

A 
R

EG
IS

TE
R

ED
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 L

AN
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 A
T

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
'S

 E
XP

EN
SE

.
6.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
TI

N
G

 A
LL

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
D

AM
AG

E 
AN

D
 N

O
TI

FY
 O

W
N

ER
 A

N
D

/O
R

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 S
TA

R
TI

N
G

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

. C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 R

EP
AI

R
IN

G
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 IT
EM

S 
D

AM
AG

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, S
U

C
H

 A
S,

 B
U

T 
N

O
T

LI
M

IT
ED

 T
O

, D
R

AI
N

AG
E,

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
, P

AV
EM

EN
T,

 S
TR

IP
IN

G
, C

U
R

B,
 E

TC
. D

AM
AG

ES
SH

AL
L 

BE
 R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 T

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 O

F 
R

EC
O

R
D

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 R
EP

AI
R

. 
R

EP
AI

R
S

SH
AL

L 
BE

 E
Q

U
AL

 T
O

, O
R

 B
ET

TE
R

 T
H

AN
, E

XI
ST

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S.

7.
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

IT
E 

SH
AL

L 
C

O
M

PL
Y 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

LA
TE

ST
R

EV
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

AD
A 

R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D

 T
H

E 
TE

XA
S 

AC
C

ES
SI

BI
LI

TY
ST

AN
D

AR
D

S 
(T

AS
).

8.
ER

O
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
 S

ED
IM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 IN

C
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 L

O
C

AL
 A

N
D

 S
TA

TE
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

.
9.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

IN
G

 P
R

O
PE

R
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
TH

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

SI
TE

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
. 

C
AR

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 T

AK
EN

 T
O

PR
EV

EN
T 

AN
Y 

N
EG

AT
IV

E 
IM

PA
C

TS
 T

O
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TI

ES
.

10
.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
C

AR
EF

U
LL

Y 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
 W

EA
TH

ER
 P

AT
TE

R
N

S 
AN

D
PR

EP
AR

E 
FO

R
 E

XP
EC

TE
D

 E
VE

N
TS

. S
PE

C
IA

L 
C

AR
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 T
AK

EN
 T

O
EX

AM
IN

E 
SI

TE
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 W

EE
KE

N
D

S 
O

R
 A

BS
EN

C
ES

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E 
W

O
R

KS
IT

E.
11

.
N

O
 H

AZ
AR

D
O

U
S 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
 W

ER
E 

ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
SI

TE
IN

VE
ST

IG
AT

IO
N

S.
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

S 
FO

U
N

D
 S

U
SP

EC
T 

D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
SH

O
U

LD
 B

E 
BR

O
U

G
H

T 
TO

 T
H

E 
AT

TE
N

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

 IM
M

ED
IA

TE
LY

.

AC
C

ES
SI

BI
LI

TY
 N

O
TE

S
1.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 S
IT

E 
SH

AL
L 

C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
LA

TE
ST

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AD

A 
R

EG
U

LA
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

TE
XA

S 
AC

C
ES

SI
BI

LI
TY

 
ST

AN
D

AR
D

S 
(T

AS
).

2.
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
R

O
U

TE
S 

SH
AL

L 
N

O
T 

H
AV

E 
A 

C
R

O
SS

 S
LO

PE
 G

R
EA

TE
R

 T
H

AN
 2

.0
%

(1
:4

8)
. A

C
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

R
O

U
TE

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 S
LI

P 
R

ES
IS

TA
N

T 
AN

D
 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 IN

 A
 M

AN
N

ER
 T

H
AT

 W
IL

L 
N

O
T 

R
ET

AI
N

 W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 B
E 

A 
M

IN
IM

U
M

O
F 

3 
FE

ET
 W

ID
E.

3.
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
R

O
U

TE
S 

W
IT

H
 A

 R
U

N
N

IN
G

 S
LO

PE
 G

R
EA

TE
R

 T
H

AN
 5

.0
%

 (
1:

20
) 

IS
 A

R
AM

P 
AN

D
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 W

IT
H

 H
AN

D
R

AI
LS

 A
N

D
 5

'X
5'

 L
AN

D
IN

G
S.

R
AM

P 
SL

O
PE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 8

.3
3%

 (1
:1

2)
.

4.
SU

R
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B 

R
AM

PS
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 W

IT
H

 A
D

A 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
T

SU
R

FA
C

E 
TE

XT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 C
O

N
TR

AS
TI

N
G

 C
O

LO
R

. R
AM

P 
SL

O
PE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 8

.3
3%

 (1
:1

2)
. C

U
R

B 
R

AM
PS

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 6

' I
N

 L
EN

G
TH

.
5.

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
SL

O
PE

S 
SH

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 2

.0
%

 IN
 A

LL
 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

S.
 A

D
A 

C
O

M
PL

IA
N

T 
SI

G
N

AG
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 F
O

R
 E

AC
H

 
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
SP

AC
E.

TR
AF

FI
C

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

N
O

TE

G
U

ID
EL

IN
ES

 
SE

T 
FO

R
TH

 
IN

 
PA

R
T 

VI
 

"S
TA

N
D

AR
D

S 
AN

D
 

G
U

ID
ES

 
FO

R
 

TR
AF

FI
C

C
O

N
TR

O
LS

 F
O

R
 S

TR
EE

T 
AN

D
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E,
 U

TI
LI

TY
,

AN
D

 I
N

C
ID

EN
T 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S"
 O

F 
TH

E 
TE

XA
S 

M
AN

U
AL

 O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

TR
AF

FI
C

 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

EV
IC

ES
 

(M
O

ST
 

R
EC

EN
T 

ED
IT

IO
N

 
AS

 
R

EV
IS

ED
) 

SH
AL

L 
BE

O
BS

ER
VE

D
.

PA
R

KI
N

G
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T 

C
H

AR
T

U
N

IT
 C

O
U

N
T

   
   

PA
R

KI
N

G
 

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 P

AR
KI

N
G

  C
AL

C
U

LA
TI

O
N

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
PR

O
VI

D
ED

   
   

 1
26

1.
5 

SP
AC

ES
 P

ER
 U

N
IT

 
   

 1
89

18
9

72
2.

0 
SP

AC
ES

 P
ER

 U
N

IT
   

 1
44

   
 1

44

18
2.

5 
SP

AC
ES

 P
ER

 U
N

IT
   

  4
5

45

   
21

6 
TO

TA
L

+1
0%

 G
U

ES
T 

SP
AC

ES
   

   
38

   
   

 9
   

   
 U

N
IT

S

TO
TA

L 
SP

AC
ES

   
 4

16
   

  3
87

*

*2
9 

SH
AR

ED
 S

PA
C

ES
 E

XI
ST

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
PA

R
C

EL
 A

N
D

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 T
O

M
EE

T 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

7

KE
YE

D
 N

O
TE

S

AD
A 

C
U

R
B 

R
AM

P/
SI

D
EW

AL
K

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
SI

D
EW

AL
K.

 W
ID

TH
 P

ER
 P

LA
N

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
(A

S 
SH

O
W

N
 B

EL
O

W
)

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
W

IT
H

 B
O

LL
AR

D
, 

SI
G

N
, S

TR
IP

IN
G

, A
N

D
 S

YM
BO

L 
(S

EE
 D

ET
AI

LS
)

6"
 W

H
IT

E 
TH

ER
M

O
PL

AS
TI

C
 C

R
O

SS
W

AL
K 

ST
R

IP
IN

G

6"
 W

ID
E 

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 P

AI
N

TE
D

 T
R

AF
FI

C
 R

ED
 W

IT
H

 "N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 - 

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E"

 P
AI

N
TE

D
 W

IH
T 

4"
 H

IG
H

 W
H

IT
E 

LE
TT

ER
IN

G
 A

T 
25

' O
.C

. S
EE

 
D

ET
AI

L 
SH

EE
T.

 N
O

TE
 - 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
FF

SE
T 

FO
R

 C
LA

R
IT

Y.

6"
 C

U
R

B 
AN

D
 G

U
TT

ER

C
AR

PO
R

T 
(D

ET
AI

LS
 B

Y 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

T)

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 F
EN

C
IN

G

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
PA

VE
M

EN
T

D
U

M
PS

TE
R

 E
N

C
LO

SU
R

E

A B C D E F G H I JSI
TE

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
O

W
N

ER
/D

EV
EL

O
PE

R
M

AN
O

R
 M

F 
LL

C
17

B 
FI

R
ST

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

 S
U

IT
E 

20
3

G
AI

TH
ER

SB
U

R
G

 M
D

 2
08

78

LE
G

AL
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:

BE
IN

G
 1

3.
21

77
 A

C
R

ES
 O

F 
LA

N
D

 S
IT

U
AT

ED
 IN

 
TH

E 
JA

M
ES

 M
AN

O
R

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
N

O
. 4

0,
 A

BS
TR

AC
T 

N
O

. 5
46

,
TR

AV
IS

 C
O

U
N

TY
, 

TE
XA

S;
 B

EI
N

G
 A

 P
O

R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
AT

C
ER

TA
IN

 C
AL

L 
10

5.
17

0 
AC

R
E 

TR
AC

T 
O

F 
LA

N
D

 A
S 

D
ES

C
R

IB
ED

 IN
 W

AR
R

AN
TY

 D
EE

D
 W

IT
H

 V
EN

D
O

R
's

 L
IE

N
 T

O
LA

S 
EN

TR
AD

AS
 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
IO

N
,A

N
D

R
EC

O
R

D
ED

 IN
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

N
O

. 2
00

70
02

48
5,

 O
F 

TH
E 

O
FF

IC
IA

L 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
R

D
S 

O
F 

TR
AV

IS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS
.

SI
TE

 A
D

D
R

ES
S:

TB
D

ZO
N

ED
:

M
F-

2 
(M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

25
)

SE
TB

AC
KS

:
FR

O
N

T 
- 2

0'
SI

D
E 

- 8
0'

 (3
 S

TO
R

Y)
, 2

5'
 (1

 S
TO

R
Y)

, 5
0'

 (2
 S

TO
R

Y)
R

EA
R

 - 
80

' (
3 

ST
O

R
Y)

, 2
5'

 (1
 S

TO
R

Y)
, 5

0'
 (2

 S
TO

R
Y)

K
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

PA
D

L
SI

TE
 M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

SI
G

N

M
SI

TE
 S

EC
U

R
IT

Y 
FE

N
C

IN
G

 &
 A

C
C

ES
S 

G
AT

ES

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 N

O
TE

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 A

PP
R

O
VE

D
 B

Y 
TH

E 
LO

C
AL

 F
IR

E
M

AR
SH

AL
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 A

PP
LI

C
AT

IO
N

. 
U

N
LE

SS
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
D

IR
EC

TE
D

 B
Y 

TH
E 

FI
R

E
M

AR
SH

AL
, F

IR
E 

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 6

" 
R

ED
 P

AI
N

TE
D

 S
TR

IP
E 

AL
O

N
G

 T
O

P 
AN

D
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B,

 F
AC

E 
O

F 
SI

D
EW

AL
K,

 O
R

 D
IR

EC
TL

Y 
AD

JA
C

EN
T 

TO
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D
PA

R
KI

N
G

 L
O

T 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

, W
IT

H
 4

" W
H

IT
E 

ST
EN

C
IL

ED
 L

ET
TE

R
S 

"F
IR

E 
LA

N
E 

TO
W

 A
W

AY
ZO

N
E"

 P
AI

N
TE

D
 O

N
 R

ED
 S

TR
IP

E 
AT

 3
0'

 C
EN

TE
R

 T
O

 C
EN

TE
R

 M
AX

 S
PA

C
IN

G
. S

EE
 F

IR
E

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 D
ET

AI
L 

O
N

 C
-6

.1
.

R
R

20

Item 2.

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line



21

Item 2.

Scott Dunlop
Rectangle



22

Item 2.



MANOR MF, LLC
CALLED 13.224 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2022156154

O.P.R.T.C.T.

LOT 1
MANOR APARTMENTS FINAL PLAT

DOC.NO. 202100145
O.P.R.T.C.T.

OWNER: MANOR APARTMENTS LLC
DOC. NO. 2019137031 &
DOC. NO. 2020193110

O.P.R.T.C.T.

JAMES MANORSURVEY NO. 40,ABSTRACTNO. 546

ZONING EXHIBIT
0.3067 ACRE(S)

13,360 SQUARE FEET

P.O.B.

[A]

P.O.C.

0.3067 ACRES
ZONING EXHIBIT

City of Manor,
Travis County, Texas

PO Box 90876, Austin Texas 78709
INFO@4WARDLS.COM   (512) 537-2384

       TBPELS  FIRM #10174300

A Limited Liability Company

23

Item 2.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 
6/26/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Rezoning Application  
 
 
Project Name: Reserves at Las Entradas Additional Area 
Case Number: 2024-P-1663-ZO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
 
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Rezoning 
Application for the corner of Gregg Manor Road and West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-
1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). The request will be posted on the agenda as 
follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 
acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West 
Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 
 
Applicant: MWSW LLP 
Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on July 10, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on July 17, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City 
Hall Council Chambers. 
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone 
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and 
Council Members during the discussion of this item.  

24

Item 2.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


 
Manor MF LLC (1956048)                  
17B Firstfield Rd. Ste. 203          

Gaithersburg MD 20878-1779 

MANOR HOUSING PUBLIC FACILITY 
(2002094)                                             

105 E EGGLESTON ST                 
MANOR TX 78653-3463 

25

Item 2.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the minutes for the June 12, 2024, Planning and 
Zoning Commission Regular Session.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: NO 

PRESENTATION: NO 

ATTACHMENTS: YES 

 June 12, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve the June 12, 2024, 
Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision, 
being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the intersection at Gregg Lane and 
FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Planned Unit Development (PUD).  
Applicant: SEC Planning  
Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Monarch Ranch PUD was first approved by Ordinance 636 on January 19, 2022. It was amended by Ordinance 
681 on December 7, 2022. This amendment was to update the roadway and lot layout to accommodate the city’s 
new thoroughfare plan. 

This second amendment to the PUD proposes reducing the minimum dwelling unit size from 1,700 square feet to 
1,300 square feet. No other additional PUD changes are proposed. 

Limits have been set on the range of home sizes so as to provide multiple options as well as having enough home 
elevations/designs to satisfy our zoning code’s requirement for elevation differentiation. The development is 
approved for 400 homes, so 20% would represent 80 homes. Each size range is limited to 20% of the overall 
development, except for units 1,701 or larger, which are not limited. 

 

The second amendment to the PUD is being considered concurrently with the Third Amendment to the 
Development Agreement. The Development Agreement amendment is to update the masonry requirements 
based on the proposed dwelling unit sizes in this second PUD amendment.  

57

Item 4.



Under our zoning code, the minimum dwelling unit size (conditioned space) for properties not in the Historic 
District is 2,000 square feet for SF-1 and 1,700 for SF-2. If the homes are 50% masonry (stone, brick, or cement 
stucco), these can be reduced to 1,500 sf and 1,200 sf, respectively, with the approval of a Development 
Agreement. For unconditioned space, a two-car enclosed garage and a minimum 100 sf covered or uncovered 
patio are also required. Enclosed garages typically are 350 sf – 400 sf, so with these, the overall structure could 
be 2,500 sf – 2,200 sf, if no masonry is included. 

The original Monarch Ranch PUD followed the SF-2 standard and set the minimum dwelling unit size to 1,700 sf. 
Through the Development Agreement, they were approved to have 30% front façade masonry, with corner and 
double-frontage lots also having a minimum of 30% of masonry on the side or rear. Had they been zoned SF-2 
rather than PUD, the dwelling units would have required 0% masonry, so the Development Agreement requiring 
30% front façade masonry was higher than code standards. 

Our zoning code allows for each 10% increment of masonry applied to the entire structure, the conditioned space 
can be reduced by 100 square feet. So a home in an SF-2 district is required to have 1,700 sf of conditioned space, 
but if 50% of the structure is masonry, the minimum dwelling size can be 1,200 sf.  

A modified version of this code is being applied to the Monarch Ranch PUD with the Development Agreement 
amendment. Since the current Development Agreement only requires front façade masonry and not an overall 
structure percentage, the amendment maintains that exception but increases the amount of masonry on the front 
façade consistent with our zoning code. So for each 100 sf the dwelling unit is reduced the front façade masonry 
is increased by 10%. The table below is what is proposed in the Development Agreement amendment to be 
considered by the City Council when they consider this PUD amendment.  

 

A. Masonry and Dwelling Unit Size Table  
 

Dwelling Unit Size (conditioned space) Minimum Front Façade* Masonry Percentage 

1,300 – 1,400 sq. ft. 70% 

1,401 – 1,500 sq. ft. 60% 

1,501 – 1,600 sq. ft. 50% 

1,600 – 1,700 sq. ft. 40% 

1,701 + sq. ft. 30% 

  

* Collector Road and Corner Lots shall have side and rear masonry percentages equal to the 
minimum front façade percentage.   

 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

 Rezoning Map 

 Aerial Image 

 Monarch Ranch PUD 

 PUD Comparison 

 Public Notice 

 Mailing Labels  

 
 
 
 

58

Item 4.



ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type NA 

 

Actions Approve, Approve with Conditions/Modifications, Deny, Postpone 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve a Rezoning Application 
for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Planned Unit 
Development (PUD). 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

59

Item 4.



F M
 97

3

N F
M 

97
3 R

D

GREGG LN
JOHNSON RD

JAMIE DRTINAJERO WAY

TOWER RD

ARNHAMN LN

SUNCREST RD JO
Y L

EE
 LN

RIPRAP DR

RO
SE

 HI
LL

 RD

STONERIDGE GAP LN

TIMBER ARCH LN

CARBROOK RD

CAMBRIAN RD

ANDESITE RD

JOHNSON RD

N 
FM

 97
3 R

D

Subject Property: 
134.53 Acres

¹
0 2,0001,000

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family 15
MF-2 - Multi-Family 25
MH-1 - Manufactured Home
I-1 - Institutional Small
I-2 - Institutional Large

GO - General Office
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial
C-3 - Heavy Commercial
NB - Neighborhood Business
DB - Downtown Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit Development
ETJ

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t

P r o p o s e d :  P r o p o s e d :  
( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t( P U D )  P l a n n e d  U n i t  D e v e l o p m e n t

60

Item 4.



 

 

 

61

Item 4.



 

 

 

62

Item 4.



1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

9

10

1112
13

1415

1617

18
1920 21 22 23 24

25

26
27

28

29
30 31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38
39

4041
42

43
44

45
46

474849

50
51

52 53

53 54

55
56

57

58

59
60 61

62

6364

65
66

67

68

6970

71
72

73
7475

76
77

78
79

80
81

82

83

84
85

86 87

88

89

90
91

92
93

94
95 96

97
98 99

10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
0

10
9

11
111

2
11

3

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7 11

8
11

9

12
012

1
12

2
12

3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
114

2 14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4 15

5 15
6

15
7 15

8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3 17
4

17
5

17
6

1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

9

10

1112
13

1415

1617

18
1920 21 22 23 24

25

26
27

28

29
30 31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38
39

4041
42

43
44

45
46

474849

50
51

52 53

53 54

55
56

57

58

59
60 61

62

6364

65
66

67

68

6970

71
72

73
7475

76
77

78
79

80
81

82

83

84
85

86 87

88

89

90
91

92
93

94
95 96

97
98 99

10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
0

10
9

11
111

2
11

3

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7 11

8
11

9

12
012

1
12

2
12

3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
114

2 14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4 15

5 15
6

15
7 15

8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3 17
4

17
5

17
6

Approval and authorized for record by the City Council for the
City of Manor, Texas.

Dated this ____ Day of __________, 20___

By:__________________________________
Honorable Mayor Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas

This Final PUD Site Plan has been submitted to and considered by the Planning
and Zoning Commission of the City of Manor, Texas, and is hereby recommended
for approval by the City Council.

Dated this ____ Day of __________, 20___

By:__________________________________
Felix Paiz, Chairperson

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

210038 - BBGR
Project No.

2022C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By:

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

PUD Submittal 5/24/2021

_____ of _____SHEET 1 1

Z:\210038-BBGR\Cadfiles\PLANNING\
Submittals\PUD Amendment_10-2022\PUD Site

Plan_Notes Monarch Ranch Amendment.dwg

PUD Submittal 7/29/2021

PUD Submittal 8/30/2021

PUD Submittal 11/11/2021

PUD Amend Submittal 10/13/2022

PUD Amend 2 4/15/2024

M
A

N
O

R
, 

T
E
X

A
S

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
 R

A
N

C
H

F
I
N

A
L
 P

U
D

 S
I
T

E
 P

L
A

N

(SF-2) RESIDENTIAL

TOTAL ACRES134.5

400 LOTS

ACREAGE LOTS

101.9 ACRES

3.0 DU/AC

4.0 DU/AC

DENSITYLAND USE

(OS) FLOODPLAIN 12.0 ACRES

(C-2) MEDIUM COMMERCIAL 11.3 ACRES

1 LOTS

2 LOTS

(OS) OPEN SPACE 9.3 ACRES 1 LOTS

PARK LAND DEDICATION:

/66 x 1 =

(number of dwelling units) (required park acreage) (proposed park acreage)

400 6.1 22.9

8' CONCRETE TRAIL (2,400 L.F.)

PLAN BOUNDARY

4' WALKS

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

8' TRAILS

CITY LIMITS

LAND USE PARCEL TABLE LEGEND

North

Scale: 1" = 300'

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1" = 1/2 Mile

North
Scale: 1" = 300'

0 300' 600' 900'

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

0 300' 600' 900'

A. Purpose and Intent

1. The Monarch Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD) is comprised of approximately
134.5 acres. The development of this Property is a combination of light commercial along
FM 973 at the Eastern edge of the Property and a single-family detached residential
community on the remainder of the Property.

B. Applicability and Base Zoning

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Manor
Code of Ordinances, except as established in this exhibit, titled Final PUD Site Plan.

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the following base
zoning districts have been selected from the Manor Code of Ordinances:

SF-2 (Single-Family Standard)

C-2 (Medium Commercial)

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan

1. The Land Use Plan has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the
Property. The Final PUD Site Plan is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general
community vision and design concept and is not intended to serve as a final document.

D. Allowable/Prohibited Uses

1. The allowable residential use shall be detached single-family dwellings on individually
platted lots. The maximum residential lot count shall be four hundred (400). Commercial
uses shall be consistent with allowable C-2 (Medium Commercial) land uses as defined in
Division 3, Section 14.02.017 of City of Manor Code of Ordinances except as modified
herein.

2. The following uses shall be prohibited within the C-2 area of the PUD:

· Amusement (outdoor)

· Automobile Repair (minor)

· Automobile Repair (major)

· Commercial Off-Street Parking

· Contractor's Shop

· Financial Services (alternative)

· Funeral Services

· Kennel

· Laundry Services

· Mini-Storage Warehouse

· Off-Site Accessory Parking

· Pawnshop

· Recreational Vehicle Sales and Rental

· Truck and Trailer Sales and Rental

· Veterinary Service, Large

E. Residential Development Standards
1. To ensure product diversity, the following single-family detached residential percentages shall apply

to the residential district within this PUD:
a. A maximum of 80 percent (80%) of the total lots may have a width of less than sixty feet (60').

b. A minimum of 20 percent (20%) of the total shall have a width of sixty feet (60') or wider.

2. The Monarch Ranch residential development will comply with the Development Standards set forth
below:

RESIDENTIAL USES

Lot Area: 6,000 s.f. Minimum (fronted loaded garage)
Lot Width: (minimum)50 ft.
Front Setback: (minimum)25 ft.
Side Setback: (minimum)5 ft.
Street Side Setback: (minimum)15 ft.
Rear Setback to residential:(minimum)10 ft.
Rear Setback to commercial: 15 ft
Minimum dwelling unit size:

Maximum building coverage: 50%
Maximum building coverage plus accessory structures: 60%

3. Standards not listed follow code, as amended

F. Commercial Development Standards
1. The Monarch Ranch commercial development shall comply with the C-2 (Medium Commercial)

development standards set forth in the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, as amended.

G. Drainage Dedication and Facilities

1. Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthen berms and be designed with a curvilinear
shape where possible. If concrete retaining walls are required in the design of detention
facilities, such areas shall be limited to not more than forty percent (40%) of the perimeter of the

pond.

H. Parkland and Open Space

1. This Final PUD Site Plan provides approximately 22.9 acres of park and open space with the dedication
of two (2) tracts of land as illustrated on the Parks Plan on this sheet. The parks and open space will
include detention facilities for the project, tree preservation areas, 100 year floodplain, trail corridor and
active programmed parkland.

2. An eight-foot (8') concrete trail shall provide pedestrian/bike access along the parkland corridor
connecting from the north property boundary to the south property boundary, as depicted on Park Plan.
Trees shall be planted parallel to the concrete trail at a spacing of one (1) tree for every forty (40) linear
feet. Trees shall be a minimum of three (3) inch caliper and selected from the Type A/B tree list of the
City of Manor Code of Ordinances.

3. Parkland amenities located within the Enfield PUD shall include a minimum of the following
recreational elements: playground, parking area, dog park, picnic areas, picnic pavilion and open
lawn/gaming area.

a. Age 5-12 playground

b. Age 2-5 playground

c. Parking area with a minimum of 20 parking spaces

d. Minimum 10,000 square foot dog park (may be allowed within detention area)

e. Minimum 20 foot by 30 foot picnic pavilion

4. A portion of the parkland may be utilized for a private amenity pool and associated restroom facility.
This lot defined for the private amenity will not be dedicated to the City and final boundary will be
determined at the platting stage of development. The private amenity portion of the overall parkland
will be a maximum of 2 acres.

5. A minimum 4 foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided parallel to the Gregg Lane Landscape
Buffer.

6. The proposed parkland shall be dedicated to the City of Manor and privately maintained by the
Monarch Ranch Homeowner's Association.

I. Landscaping

1. Gregg Lane Landscape Buffer

a. A minimum fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer, measured from the edge of the Gregg Lane
right of way, shall be provided. Four (4), minimum three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or
Type B medium native trees (as defined by the Manor Code of Ordinances) and fifteen (15),
minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 200 linear feet of landscape buffer. A
minimum four (4) foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided within the Gregg Lane
Landscape Buffer or the expanded right of way for Gregg Lane. Location and alignment of
the sidewalk shall be coordinated during the Preliminary Plan stage of development.

2. Unloaded Collector Landscape Buffer.

a. For internal, unloaded collector roadways, a minimum ten (10) foot landscape buffer,
measured from the edge of the collector right of way, shall be provided. One (1), minimum
three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or Type B medium native tree (as defined by the Manor
Code of Ordinances) and five (5), minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 50
linear feet of landscape buffer.

3. Storm Water Detention

a. Storm water detention facilities shall be screened according to the requirements outlined in
the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, Section 15.03.021 (f).

4. Masonry wall shall be provided along the rear and side lotlines of lots that back up to an unloaded
collector and Gregg Lane. Masonry shall include brick, stone, stucco or concrete panel fencing.
Stone or brick columns shall be provided a minimum of every 300 feet. Walls should be minimized
and varied whenever possible to avoid a tunnel effect along the collector roadway.

5. All landscape buffers and walls shall be privately maintained by the Monarch Ranch Homeowners
Association.

A. Purpose and Intent

1. The Monarch Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD) is comprised of approximately
134.5 acres. The development of this Property is a combination of light commercial along
FM 973 at the Eastern edge of the Property and a single-family detached residential
community on the remainder of the Property.

B. Applicability and Base Zoning

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Manor
Code of Ordinances, except as established in this exhibit, titled Final PUD Site Plan.

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the following base
zoning districts have been selected from the Manor Code of Ordinances:

SF-2 (Single-Family Standard)

C-2 (Medium Commercial)

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan

1. The Land Use Plan has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the
Property. The Final PUD Site Plan is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general
community vision and design concept and is not intended to serve as a final document.

D. Allowable/Prohibited Uses

1. The allowable residential use shall be detached single-family dwellings on individually
platted lots. The maximum residential lot count shall be four hundred (400). Commercial
uses shall be consistent with allowable C-2 (Medium Commercial) land uses as defined in
Division 3, Section 14.02.017 of City of Manor Code of Ordinances except as modified
herein.

2. The following uses shall be prohibited within the C-2 area of the PUD:

· Amusement (outdoor)

· Automobile Repair (minor)

· Automobile Repair (major)

· Commercial Off-Street Parking

· Contractor's Shop

· Financial Services (alternative)

· Funeral Services

· Kennel

· Laundry Services

· Mini-Storage Warehouse

· Off-Site Accessory Parking

· Pawnshop

· Recreational Vehicle Sales and Rental

· Truck and Trailer Sales and Rental

· Veterinary Service, Large

E. Residential Development Standards
1. To ensure product diversity, the following single-family detached residential percentages shall apply

to the residential district within this PUD:
a. A maximum of 80 percent (80%) of the total lots may have a width of less than sixty feet (60').

b. A minimum of 20 percent (20%) of the total shall have a width of sixty feet (60') or wider.

2. The Monarch Ranch residential development will comply with the Development Standards set forth
below:

RESIDENTIAL USES

Lot Area: 6,000 s.f. Minimum (fronted loaded garage)
Lot Width: (minimum)50 ft.
Front Setback: (minimum)25 ft.
Side Setback: (minimum)5 ft.
Street Side Setback: (minimum)15 ft.
Rear Setback to residential:(minimum)10 ft.
Rear Setback to commercial: 15 ft
Minimum dwelling unit size:

Maximum building coverage: 50%
Maximum building coverage plus accessory structures: 60%

3. Standards not listed follow code, as amended

F. Commercial Development Standards
1. The Monarch Ranch commercial development shall comply with the C-2 (Medium Commercial)

development standards set forth in the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, as amended.

G. Drainage Dedication and Facilities

1. Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthen berms and be designed with a curvilinear
shape where possible. If concrete retaining walls are required in the design of detention
facilities, such areas shall be limited to not more than forty percent (40%) of the perimeter of the

pond.

H. Parkland and Open Space

1. This Final PUD Site Plan provides approximately 22.9 acres of park and open space with the dedication
of two (2) tracts of land as illustrated on the Parks Plan on this sheet. The parks and open space will
include detention facilities for the project, tree preservation areas, 100 year floodplain, trail corridor and
active programmed parkland.

2. An eight-foot (8') concrete trail shall provide pedestrian/bike access along the parkland corridor
connecting from the north property boundary to the south property boundary, as depicted on Park Plan.
Trees shall be planted parallel to the concrete trail at a spacing of one (1) tree for every forty (40) linear
feet. Trees shall be a minimum of three (3) inch caliper and selected from the Type A/B tree list of the
City of Manor Code of Ordinances.

3. Parkland amenities located within the Enfield PUD shall include a minimum of the following
recreational elements: playground, parking area, dog park, picnic areas, picnic pavilion and open
lawn/gaming area.

a. Age 5-12 playground

b. Age 2-5 playground

c. Parking area with a minimum of 20 parking spaces

d. Minimum 10,000 square foot dog park (may be allowed within detention area)

e. Minimum 20 foot by 30 foot picnic pavilion

4. A portion of the parkland may be utilized for a private amenity pool and associated restroom facility.
This lot defined for the private amenity will not be dedicated to the City and final boundary will be
determined at the platting stage of development. The private amenity portion of the overall parkland
will be a maximum of 2 acres.

5. A minimum 4 foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided parallel to the Gregg Lane Landscape
Buffer.

6. The proposed parkland shall be dedicated to the City of Manor and privately maintained by the
Monarch Ranch Homeowner's Association.

I. Landscaping

1. Gregg Lane Landscape Buffer

a. A minimum fifteen (15) foot landscape buffer, measured from the edge of the Gregg Lane
right of way, shall be provided. Four (4), minimum three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or
Type B medium native trees (as defined by the Manor Code of Ordinances) and fifteen (15),
minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 200 linear feet of landscape buffer. A
minimum four (4) foot wide, concrete sidewalk shall be provided within the Gregg Lane
Landscape Buffer or the expanded right of way for Gregg Lane. Location and alignment of
the sidewalk shall be coordinated during the Preliminary Plan stage of development.

2. Unloaded Collector Landscape Buffer.

a. For internal, unloaded collector roadways, a minimum ten (10) foot landscape buffer,
measured from the edge of the collector right of way, shall be provided. One (1), minimum
three (3) inch caliper, Type A large or Type B medium native tree (as defined by the Manor
Code of Ordinances) and five (5), minimum three (3) gallon, shrubs shall be planted per 50
linear feet of landscape buffer.

3. Storm Water Detention

a. Storm water detention facilities shall be screened according to the requirements outlined in
the City of Manor Code of Ordinances, Section 15.03.021 (f).

4. Masonry wall shall be provided along the rear and side lotlines of lots that back up to an unloaded
collector and Gregg Lane. Masonry shall include brick, stone, stucco or concrete panel fencing.
Stone or brick columns shall be provided a minimum of every 300 feet. Walls should be minimized
and varied whenever possible to avoid a tunnel effect along the collector roadway.

5. All landscape buffers and walls shall be privately maintained by the Monarch Ranch Homeowners
Association.

63

Item 4.



 

Proposed PUD Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

Current PUD: 

 

 

64

Item 4.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 
6/26/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Planned Use Development (PUD) Amendment  
 
Project Name: Monarch Ranch PUD Amendment 
Case Number: 2024-P-1644-ZO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Planned Use 
Development (PUD) Amendment for the Monarch Ranch Subdivision located at the southwest 
corner of the intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on 
the agenda as follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for the Monarch Ranch 
Subdivision, being 134.53 acres, more or less, and located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection at Gregg Lane and FM 973, Manor, TX from Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
to Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
Applicant: SEC Planning 
Owner: Blackburn Group LLC 
 
Purpose: The proposed amendment will decrease the minimum dwelling unit size from 1,700 
square feet to 1,300 square feet.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on July 10, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on July 17, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City 
Hall Council Chambers. 
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone 
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and 
Council Members during the discussion of this item.  

65

Item 4.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE  
PO BOX 589   

 PFLUGERVILLE, TX 78691-0589 

  
GREGG LANE DEV LLC 

 101 PARKLANE BLVD STE 102  
SUGAR LAND, TX 77478-5521v 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR 
ISD 

DENNIS ANDERSON ETAL  
533 HIWASEE ROAD  

WAXAHACHIE, TX 75165-6448 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA                                                     
ANDERSON DENNIS ETAL 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS OFFICE                                           
533 HIWASEE RD 

WAXAHACHIE, TX 75165-6448 

  
BURATTI, ROBERT JOE 6903  

GENEVA DR  
AUSTIN, TX 78723-1506 

  
STRABO HOLDINGS LLC 

13510 BR0ADMEADE AVE 
AUSTIN, TX 78729 

 
   

FOXTROT HOLDING LLC 
14605 FM 973 N 

MANOR, TX 78653-3539 

  
HOLLEY, EBONY L & TERRY G JR 

14526 PERNELLA RD 
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

  
BLAKELY, ARTURO S V & JENNIFER A 

14522 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 
SHEPPERD, RICHARD & ROSE MARY 

14518 PERNELLA RD 
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 AGUILERA, JAVIER R & LAURA GUDINO 
PENA & RAUL PENA & LUZ ROSAS DE 

GUDINO 
14514 PERNELLA RD 

MANOR, TX 78653-2062 
 
  

  
RODARTE, GAMALIEL & ALEXANDRIA 

SERPAS 
14510 PERNELLA RD 

MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

 
MORALES, GERARDO M 14506 

PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2062 

  
SW HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 

9601 AMBERGLEN BLVD STE 150 
AUSTIN, TX 78729-1190 

  

  
CHHETRI SHANKAR & ANJANA KARKI
 14428 PERNELLA RD
 MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
JORDAN ANDY ZEWDE & TSEHAY MUHE 

14424 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
CHAPARRO, JUAN P & SULEIVA 

CHAPARRO-RODRIGUEZ  
14408 PERNELLA RD  

MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
CLARK, MARY M  

14404 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
ESCOBEDO, KRISTINE A & MATTHEW J 

14400 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
ESTRADA, GILBERTO A & MARIA D 

14411 FM 973 N 
 MANOR, TX 78653 

  
LEKCAM COMMUNICATION LLC  

16404 MARCELLO DR  
PFLUGERVILLE, TX 78660-2570 

 
14420 PERNELLA RD INTERVIVOS 

REVOCABLE TRUST    
14420 PERNELLA RD 

 MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
RUST CREEK LLC  

9606 OLD MANOR RD #1  
AUSTIN, TX 78724-1114 

 
  

  
TAYLOR ARTHUR RAY & ODETTE VANESSA  

14416 PERNELLA RD  
MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

 
REZA MASRUR & MUSTAFA ALI REZA 

CHOWDHURY & FAUZIA ZAMAN  
14412 PERNELLA RD  

MANOR, TX 78653-2061 

  
ESTRADA, MARIA D  

14411 FM 973  
MANOR, TX 78653-3933 

  
OKRA LAND INCORPORATED 

9505 JOHNNY MORRIS RD 
AUSTIN , TX 78724-1527 

     

66

Item 4.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 acres, more or 
less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from 
(C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2).  
Applicant: MWSW LLP  
Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The C-1 Light Commercial area was approved by Ordinance 371 in August 2009 and Ordinance 477 in May 2017. 
10.742 acres of that C-1 area was rezoned to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2) in June 2022 by Ordinance 655, which left a 
2.482 acre C-1 tract. That tract was reduced to 1.67 acres, its current configuration, with the extension of West 
Eggleston Street. 

In the First Amendment to the Entradaglen Development Agreement approved by the City Council on June 15, 
2022, there was a shared parking agreement that allowed up to 40 parking spaces needed for the multi-family 
development to be constructed on the commercial tract. Upon submittal of the Site Development Plan for the 
multi-family, only 29 spaces needed to be located on the commercial lot. 

A daycare business is planned to be located on the 1.67-acre commercial lot, but they do not need the full lot, 
and their site layout does not provide for shared parking. Due to this, the multi-family developer is acquiring the 
unused portion of the commercial lot, 0.31 acres, to incorporate into their development. Since it is being 
incorporated into the multi-family development, the 29 parking spaces that were planned to be shared on the 
commercial lot will now be solely on the multi-family lot, as required by our code. Adding the 0.31-acre tract to 
the multi-family lot requires it to be rezoned from C-1 Light Commercial to MF-2 Multi-Family 25. This additional 
acreage will not add more dwelling units to the project, which is planned to have 216 units. 

An Amended Plat will be filed to move the lot lines between the commercial and multi-family properties to align 
the lots with the new zoning requested here. Amended Plats are approved administratively.  

 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

67

Item 5.



 Letter of Intent 

 Rezoning Map 

 Aerial Image 

 MF Site Layout 

 DA Shared Parking Section 

 Letter of Authorization  

 Metes and Bounds 

 Notice and Mailing Labels 

ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type NA 

 

Actions Approve, Approve with Conditions, Deny, Postpone 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve  a Rezoning Application 
for one (1) lot on 0.31 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West 
Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2).  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

68

Item 5.



 

 
  

221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2245 • www.mwswtexas.com 

 

 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

Partner 
 

twilliams@mwswtexas.com 
512-404-2234 

 
 

 

 
June 14, 2024 

 
Mr. Scott Dunlop        Via Online Submittal 
Development Services Director 
105 E Eggleston St., 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; Approximately 0.3067 acres within the Las Entradas 
South Project located along the future Gregg Manor Extension and North of 
Highway 290 in Manor, Texas (the “Property”). 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the 
attached Zoning Application to request a change from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-family 25 
(MF-2). The Property is located along the future Gregg Manor Extension and North of Highway 
290 in Manor, Texas (see attached Location Map). 
 

The Property is part of the Las Entradas South Project which is a mixed-use development 
that also includes commercial and residential uses as well as publicly accessible open space. With 
this rezoning the shared parking between the multifamily and commercial sites, will not be 
required. The Property will provide the parking requirements for the unique multifamily 
development in this high quality, pedestrian oriented development of horizontal mixed use, which 
is desired by the City of Manor. 

 
Attached to this application is a Microsoft Word document with the names and addresses 

of property owners within 300 feet of the Property, tax certificates and metes and bounds for the 
Property. 

 
If you have any questions about the proposed Zoning Application or need additional 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time 
and attention to this project. 

 
Very truly yours, 

 

 
Talley Williams

69

Item 5.



 

 
 

 
ZONING EXHIBIT 

 

70

Item 5.



LE
XIN

GT
ON

OLD HWY 20
W PARSONS ST

N 
BA

ST
RO

P S
T

N 
LE

XIN
GT

ON
 ST

N 
CA

LD
WE

LL
 ST

OLD HWY 20

N 
BU

RN
ET

 ST

W BOYCE ST

W TOWNES ST

W WHEELER ST

W BROWNING ST

W EGGLESTON ST

W RECTOR ST

E BOYCE ST

E EGGLESTON ST

E WHEELER ST

Subject Property: 
0.31 acres

¹
0 500250

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family 15
MF-2 - Multi-Family 25
MH-1 - Manufactured Home
I-1 - Institutional Small
I-2 - Institutional Large

GO - General Office
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial
C-3 - Heavy Commercial
NB - Neighborhood Business
DB - Downtown Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit Development
ETJ

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
( C - 1 )  L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l( C - 1 )  L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l

P r o p o s e d :  P r o p o s e d :  
( M F - 2 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5( M F - 2 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5 71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



A
L
L
E

Y
(2

0
' R

.O
.W

.)A
L
L
E

Y
(2

0
' R

.O
.W

.)

W
. 
B

O
Y
C

E
S

T
R

E
E

T
(8

0
' R

.O
.W

.)W
.

E
G

G
L
E

S
T
O

N
S

T
R

E
E

T
(8

0
' R

.O
.W

.)

[F
]

[F
]

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

30
' W

AT
ER

LI
N

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T 

AN
D

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

D
O

C
# 

20
02

18
81

93

O
PR

TC

E

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

10' P.U.E.. (BY PLAT)

25' B.L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

5' 
B.

L.

10' B.L.

10' B.L.

10' 

D
O

G
PA

R
K

MAINT

BL
D

G
 3

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 2

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
8.

5
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 1

 (T
YP

E 
1)

FF
E=

52
8.

0
±2

7,
94

7 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

2'
-6

")

BL
D

G
 4

 (T
YP

E 
4)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
93

6 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 6

 (T
YP

E 
5)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

5,
39

2 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

0'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 7

 (T
YP

E 
3)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±2

7,
24

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

2'
-5

")

BL
D

G
 8

 (T
YP

E 
2)

FF
E=

52
9.

4
±3

0,
66

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

4'
-1

")

BL
D

G
 1

0 
(T

YP
E 

6)
FF

E=
52

9.
0

±1
2,

64
5 

S.
F.

3 
ST

O
R

IE
S 

(3
9'

-5
")

C
LU

BH
O

U
SE

FF
E=

52
8.

5
±5

,8
22

 S
.F

.
1 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(1

5'
-3

")

7

10

6

6

9

5
10

10

10

10

10

10

10
10 10

10
10

10

10

10

7

7

7

7

8

8

8

10

8

9

9
10

5

10

4

4

6

4

4

4
4

2

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

9

G

H

A

B

B

B

F

F

F

F

F

H

D

C

I

I

I

I

J

J

J

FFE=528.8

K

L

M

M

M

29
 S

H
AR

ED
 S

PA
C

ES
 T

O
 B

E
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TE
D

 A
T 

SA
M

E 
TI

M
E 

AS
AP

AR
TM

EN
TS

EV
EV

EV
EV

BL
D

G
 9

 (T
YP

E 
2)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±3

0,
66

0 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(4

4'
-1

")

4

2

BL
D

G
 5

 (T
YP

E 
6)

FF
E=

52
9.

0
±1

2,
64

5 
S.

F.
3 

ST
O

R
IE

S 
(3

9'
-5

")

10

10

9

H

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

O
O

L/
PA

VI
LI

O
N

 A
R

EA

FRONT YARD SETBACK

SI
D

E 
YA

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

SI
D

E 
YA

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
SE

TB
AC

K

3 
ST

O
R

Y 
SE

TB
AC

K

1 STORY SETBACK

3 STORY SETBACK

FR
O

NT
 Y

AR
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

R
R

R
R

R
R

R
R

RR

RR

RR

R
R

R
R

R
R

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

FD
C

F A

SE
E 

PL
AN

08
/1

7/
20

22

BF
B

BG
H

20
68

-2
20

C
-3
.0SITE PLAN

**
TE

XA
S 

O
N

E 
C

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM
**

AS
 R

EQ
U

IE
R

D
 B

Y 
"T

H
E 

TE
XA

S 
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y 

D
AM

AG
E 

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
SA

FE
TY

 A
C

T"
 T

EX
AS

 O
N

E 
C

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM
 M

U
ST

 B
E 

C
O

N
TA

C
TE

D
 (

80
0-

24
5-

45
45

) 
AT

LE
AS

T 
48

 H
O

U
R

S 
PR

IO
R

 T
O

 A
N

Y 
EX

C
AV

AT
IO

N
 O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S 

PE
R

FO
R

M
ED

. I
T 

IS
 T

H
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
S 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 T
O

 C
O

N
TA

C
T 

TE
XA

S 
O

N
E 

C
AL

L 
SY

ST
EM

.

IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

S/
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
S 

N
O

TE

AL
L 

N
EC

ES
SA

R
Y 

IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D
/O

R
 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 
BY

 
LO

C
AL

C
O

D
ES

 A
N

D
/O

R
 U

TI
LI

TY
 S

ER
VI

C
E 

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 P

ER
FO

R
M

ED
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
SU

BS
TA

N
TI

AL
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

.

TO
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 S

U
R

VE
Y 

N
O

TE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

O
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
BY

 4
W

AR
D

 L
AN

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

, 
LL

C
 O

F 
AU

ST
IN

, 
TX

. 
IF

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 D

O
ES

 N
O

T
AC

C
EP

T 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 T
O

PO
G

R
AP

H
Y 

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 P
LA

N
S,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

EX
C

EP
TI

O
N

, 
H

E
SH

AL
L 

H
AV

E 
M

AD
E,

 A
T 

H
IS

 E
XP

EN
SE

, A
 T

O
PO

G
R

AP
H

IC
 S

U
R

VE
Y 

BY
 A

 R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YO

R
 A

N
D

 S
U

BM
IT

 I
T 

TO
 T

H
E 

O
W

N
ER

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
. 

TH
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

SE
AL

 
O

N
 

TH
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

D
O

ES
 

N
O

T 
AP

PL
Y 

TO
 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

.

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

M
AR

KE
R

S
IF

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 R
EL

O
C

AT
ES

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

M
AR

KE
R

S 
W

IT
H

 A
 N

EW
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E
M

AR
KE

R
, I

T 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 L

O
C

AT
ED

 W
IT

H
 A

 H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

AN
D

 V
ER

TI
C

AL
 T

O
LE

R
AN

C
E 

O
F

0.
10

'

SU
R

VE
Y 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PO
IN

T 
- 1

/2
" I

R
O

N
 R

O
D

 W
IT

H
 "4

W
AR

D
 C

O
N

TR
O

L"
 C

AP
G

R
ID

 N
: 1

0,
09

9,
01

9.
98

G
R

ID
 E

:  
 3

,1
69

,2
22

.2
5

EL
EV

.=
   

 5
13

.3
6'

TB
M

#1
- 

SQ
U

AR
E 

C
U

T 
O

N
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
AT

 T
H

E 
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 O
F 

TH
E 

BR
ID

G
E

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 O
F 

G
IL

LE
LA

N
D

 C
R

EE
K 

O
N

 T
H

E 
N

O
R

TH
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

O
LD

 H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

0 
±1

44
'

FE
ET

 N
O

R
TH

 E
AS

T 
O

F 
SU

R
VE

Y 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PO

IN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 S
U

R
VE

Y.
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 =
 5

16
.7

5'
. (

N
O

T 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 S

U
R

VE
Y)

TB
M

#2
- 

SQ
U

AR
E 

C
U

T 
O

N
 T

O
P 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
EM

BA
N

KM
EN

T 
AT

 T
H

E 
EA

ST
 E

N
D

 O
F

TH
E 

BR
ID

G
E 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 O
F 

G
IL

LE
LA

N
D

 
C

R
EE

K 
O

N
 

TH
E 

SO
U

TH
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

O
LD

H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

0 
±6

51
' 

FE
ET

 S
O

U
TH

 E
AS

T 
O

F 
SU

R
VE

Y 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PO

IN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

SU
R

VE
Y.

   
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 =
 5

17
.5

0'
. (

N
O

T 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 S

U
R

VE
Y)

ST
AB

IL
IZ

AT
IO

N
 N

O
TE

AL
L 

N
O

N
-P

AV
ED

 A
R

EA
S 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
LI

M
IT

S
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
SH

AL
L 

R
EC

EI
VE

 4
" O

F
C

LE
AN

 T
O

PS
O

IL
 A

N
D

 H
YD

R
O

M
U

LC
H

 O
R

 S
O

D
 (

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

IN
G

 P
LA

N
S)

.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 IS
 F

U
LL

Y 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

TO
 E

N
SU

R
E 

TH
AT

 4
" O

F 
TO

PS
O

IL
 IS

 IN
 P

LA
C

E
AN

D
 G

R
AS

S 
IS

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 A
T 

TH
E 

C
LO

SE
O

U
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T.
 I

F 
AD

EQ
U

AT
E

TO
PS

O
IL

 I
S 

N
O

T 
AV

AI
LA

BL
E 

O
N

 S
IT

E,
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 M

U
ST

 I
M

PO
R

T 
C

LE
AN

TO
PS

O
IL

 T
O

 S
AT

IS
FY

 T
H

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 O
F 

TH
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

AN
D

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S.
AL

L 
AR

EA
S 

D
IS

TU
R

BE
D

 O
U

TS
ID

E 
TH

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y 
SH

AL
L 

AL
SO

 B
E

H
YD

R
O

M
U

LC
H

ED
 O

R
 S

O
D

D
ED

 A
N

D
 C

O
VE

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 T
O

 P
R

EV
EN

T
ER

O
SI

O
N

.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 
TE

M
PO

R
AR

Y 
W

AT
ER

IN
G

 
U

N
TI

L 
A

H
EA

LT
H

Y 
ST

AN
D

 O
F 

G
R

AS
S 

IS
 E

ST
AB

LI
SH

ED
.

PE
R

M
IT

S 
N

O
TE

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
O

BT
AI

N
 A

LL
 N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y 
PE

R
M

IT
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 B

Y 
FE

D
ER

AL
,

ST
AT

E,
 O

R
 L

O
C

AL
 C

O
D

ES
 A

N
D

/O
R

 U
TI

LI
TY

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S 

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 S

TA
R

T
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
.

**
C

AU
TI

O
N

**
-N

O
TI

C
E 

TO
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

IS
 

PU
T 

O
N

 
N

O
TI

C
E 

TH
AT

 
TH

ER
E 

M
AY

 
BE

 
N

U
M

ER
O

U
S

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 I

N
 T

H
E 

LI
N

E 
O

F 
W

O
R

K,
 S

U
C

H
 A

S 
W

AT
ER

, 
SE

W
ER

, 
G

AS
,

PI
PE

LI
N

E,
 T

EL
EP

H
O

N
E 

AN
D

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
, S

O
M

E 
M

AY
 B

E
 A

BA
N

D
O

N
ED

 W
H

IL
E 

M
AN

Y 
AR

E
AC

TI
VE

. 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 
SH

O
W

N
 

O
N

 
TH

E 
PL

AN
S 

R
EP

R
ES

EN
T 

A 
D

IL
IG

EN
T

EF
FO

R
T 

TO
 S

H
O

W
 T

H
EI

R
 A

PP
R

O
XI

M
AT

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 

SH
AL

L 
EX

ER
C

IS
E 

EX
TR

EM
E 

C
AU

TI
O

N
 

W
H

EN
 

C
O

N
D

U
C

TI
N

G
EX

C
AV

AT
IO

N
 

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S.
 

D
AM

AG
ES

 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 

R
EP

AI
R

ED
 

IM
M

ED
IA

TE
LY

 
AT

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
'S

 E
XP

EN
SE

.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 M

U
ST

 C
O

N
TA

C
T 

TH
E 

AP
PR

O
PR

IA
TE

 U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

AT
 L

EA
ST

72
 H

O
U

R
S 

BE
FO

R
E 

AN
Y 

EX
C

AV
AT

IO
N

 T
O

 R
EQ

U
ES

T 
FI

EL
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 I

S 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AL

LY
 C

AU
TI

O
N

ED
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
/O

R
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
IS

 B
AS

ED
 O

N
R

EC
O

R
D

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
VA

R
IO

U
S 

U
TI

LI
TY

 
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 
AN

D
 

W
H

ER
E 

PO
SS

IB
LE

,
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

 T
AK

EN
 IN

 T
H

E 
FI

EL
D

. T
H

E 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
R

EL
IE

D
 O

N
AS

 B
EI

N
G

 E
XA

C
T 

O
R

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E.

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 M
U

ST
 C

AL
L 

TH
E 

AP
PR

O
PR

IA
TE

U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S 
AT

 L
EA

ST
 7

2 
H

O
U

R
S 

BE
FO

R
E 

AN
Y 

EX
C

AV
AT

IO
N

 T
O

 R
EQ

U
ES

T
EX

AC
T 

FI
EL

D
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

. 
IT

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 T

H
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 O
F 

TH
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 T

O
 R

EL
O

C
AT

E 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 W
H

IC
H

 C
O

N
FL

IC
T 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PL

AN
S.

LE
G

EN
D

N
O

TE
:

N
O

TE
:  

AL
L 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 S

IZ
E 

AN
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
O

N
FI

R
M

ED
 W

IT
H

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 P

LA
N

S

W
AT

ER
 V

AL
VE

FI
R

E 
H

YD
R

AN
T

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
C

LE
AN

O
U

T

N
U

M
BE

R
 O

F 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 S
PA

C
ES

 P
ER

 R
O

W

R
IS

ER
 R

O
O

M
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N

W
AT

ER
 L

IN
E

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

U
R

B 
AN

D
 G

U
TT

ER

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

1.
AL

L 
W

O
R

K 
AN

D
 M

AT
ER

IA
LS

 S
H

AL
L 

C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H

 A
LL

 C
IT

Y,
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
ST

AT
E,

FE
D

ER
AL

 A
N

D
 O

SH
A 

R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S.

2.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 S
H

AL
L 

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 T

H
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 P
LA

N
S 

FO
R

 E
XA

C
T

LO
C

AT
IO

N
S 

AN
D

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
O

F 
SL

O
PE

D
 P

AV
IN

G
, 

R
M

PA
S,

 S
ID

EW
AL

KS
, 

EX
IT

PO
R

C
H

ES
, P

R
EC

IS
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S,

 E
XA

C
T 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TY
EN

TR
AN

C
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
S,

 T
O

TA
L 

N
U

M
BE

R
, L

O
C

AT
IO

N
, A

N
D

 S
IZ

E 
O

F
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
 A

N
D

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 A
PP

U
R

TE
N

AN
C

ES
 W

H
IC

H
 A

R
E 

C
O

N
N

EC
TE

D
 T

O
TH

E 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

.
3.

AL
L 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
AN

D
 R

AD
II 

AR
E 

TO
 T

H
E 

FR
O

N
T 

O
F 

C
U

R
B,

 C
EN

TE
R

 O
R

 E
N

D
 O

F
ST

R
IP

E,
 F

AC
E 

O
F 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
, 

O
R

 E
D

G
E 

O
F 

PA
VE

M
EN

T,
 U

N
LE

SS
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E
N

O
TE

D
.

4.
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 IS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 R
EM

O
VE

 O
R

 R
EL

O
C

AT
E,

 IN
 A

 P
R

O
PE

R
 M

AN
N

ER
,

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 I

M
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T/
N

AT
U

R
AL

 F
EA

TU
R

ES
 T

O
 A

LL
O

W
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

O
F 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 IN
D

IC
AT

ED
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PL
AN

S.
 A

LL
 W

O
R

K 
SH

AL
L 

BE
IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

AN
C

E 
W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
R

N
IN

G
 A

U
TH

O
R

IT
IE

S 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
AN

D
 S

H
AL

L
BE

 A
PP

R
O

VE
D

 B
Y 

SU
C

H
. N

O
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

PA
Y 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 W

O
R

K.
5.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 I

S 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

AL
L

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 C

O
R

N
ER

S.
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 C

O
R

N
ER

S 
D

AM
AG

ED
 B

Y 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

 S
H

AL
L

BE
 R

EP
LA

C
ED

 B
Y 

A 
R

EG
IS

TE
R

ED
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 L

AN
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 A
T

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
'S

 E
XP

EN
SE

.
6.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
TI

N
G

 A
LL

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
D

AM
AG

E 
AN

D
 N

O
TI

FY
 O

W
N

ER
 A

N
D

/O
R

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 S
TA

R
TI

N
G

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

. C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 R

EP
AI

R
IN

G
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 IT
EM

S 
D

AM
AG

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, S
U

C
H

 A
S,

 B
U

T 
N

O
T

LI
M

IT
ED

 T
O

, D
R

AI
N

AG
E,

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
, P

AV
EM

EN
T,

 S
TR

IP
IN

G
, C

U
R

B,
 E

TC
. D

AM
AG

ES
SH

AL
L 

BE
 R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 T

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 O

F 
R

EC
O

R
D

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 R
EP

AI
R

. 
R

EP
AI

R
S

SH
AL

L 
BE

 E
Q

U
AL

 T
O

, O
R

 B
ET

TE
R

 T
H

AN
, E

XI
ST

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S.

7.
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

IT
E 

SH
AL

L 
C

O
M

PL
Y 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

LA
TE

ST
R

EV
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

AD
A 

R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D

 T
H

E 
TE

XA
S 

AC
C

ES
SI

BI
LI

TY
ST

AN
D

AR
D

S 
(T

AS
).

8.
ER

O
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
 S

ED
IM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

U
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 IN

C
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 L

O
C

AL
 A

N
D

 S
TA

TE
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

.
9.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

IN
G

 P
R

O
PE

R
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
TH

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

SI
TE

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
. 

C
AR

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 T

AK
EN

 T
O

PR
EV

EN
T 

AN
Y 

N
EG

AT
IV

E 
IM

PA
C

TS
 T

O
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TI

ES
.

10
.

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
C

AR
EF

U
LL

Y 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
 W

EA
TH

ER
 P

AT
TE

R
N

S 
AN

D
PR

EP
AR

E 
FO

R
 E

XP
EC

TE
D

 E
VE

N
TS

. S
PE

C
IA

L 
C

AR
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 T
AK

EN
 T

O
EX

AM
IN

E 
SI

TE
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 W

EE
KE

N
D

S 
O

R
 A

BS
EN

C
ES

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E 
W

O
R

KS
IT

E.
11

.
N

O
 H

AZ
AR

D
O

U
S 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
 W

ER
E 

ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 D

U
R

IN
G

 P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
SI

TE
IN

VE
ST

IG
AT

IO
N

S.
 A

N
Y 

IT
EM

S 
FO

U
N

D
 S

U
SP

EC
T 

D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
SH

O
U

LD
 B

E 
BR

O
U

G
H

T 
TO

 T
H

E 
AT

TE
N

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

 IM
M

ED
IA

TE
LY

.

AC
C

ES
SI

BI
LI

TY
 N

O
TE

S
1.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 S
IT

E 
SH

AL
L 

C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
LA

TE
ST

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
AD

A 
R

EG
U

LA
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

TE
XA

S 
AC

C
ES

SI
BI

LI
TY

 
ST

AN
D

AR
D

S 
(T

AS
).

2.
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
R

O
U

TE
S 

SH
AL

L 
N

O
T 

H
AV

E 
A 

C
R

O
SS

 S
LO

PE
 G

R
EA

TE
R

 T
H

AN
 2

.0
%

(1
:4

8)
. A

C
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

R
O

U
TE

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 S
LI

P 
R

ES
IS

TA
N

T 
AN

D
 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 IN

 A
 M

AN
N

ER
 T

H
AT

 W
IL

L 
N

O
T 

R
ET

AI
N

 W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 B
E 

A 
M

IN
IM

U
M

O
F 

3 
FE

ET
 W

ID
E.

3.
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
R

O
U

TE
S 

W
IT

H
 A

 R
U

N
N

IN
G

 S
LO

PE
 G

R
EA

TE
R

 T
H

AN
 5

.0
%

 (
1:

20
) 

IS
 A

R
AM

P 
AN

D
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 W

IT
H

 H
AN

D
R

AI
LS

 A
N

D
 5

'X
5'

 L
AN

D
IN

G
S.

R
AM

P 
SL

O
PE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 8

.3
3%

 (1
:1

2)
.

4.
SU

R
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B 

R
AM

PS
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 W

IT
H

 A
D

A 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
T

SU
R

FA
C

E 
TE

XT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 C
O

N
TR

AS
TI

N
G

 C
O

LO
R

. R
AM

P 
SL

O
PE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 8

.3
3%

 (1
:1

2)
. C

U
R

B 
R

AM
PS

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 6

' I
N

 L
EN

G
TH

.
5.

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
SL

O
PE

S 
SH

AL
L 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 2

.0
%

 IN
 A

LL
 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

S.
 A

D
A 

C
O

M
PL

IA
N

T 
SI

G
N

AG
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 F
O

R
 E

AC
H

 
AC

C
ES

SI
BL

E 
SP

AC
E.

TR
AF

FI
C

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

N
O

TE

G
U

ID
EL

IN
ES

 
SE

T 
FO

R
TH

 
IN

 
PA

R
T 

VI
 

"S
TA

N
D

AR
D

S 
AN

D
 

G
U

ID
ES

 
FO

R
 

TR
AF

FI
C

C
O

N
TR

O
LS

 F
O

R
 S

TR
EE

T 
AN

D
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E,
 U

TI
LI

TY
,

AN
D

 I
N

C
ID

EN
T 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S"
 O

F 
TH

E 
TE

XA
S 

M
AN

U
AL

 O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

TR
AF

FI
C

 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

EV
IC

ES
 

(M
O

ST
 

R
EC

EN
T 

ED
IT

IO
N

 
AS

 
R

EV
IS

ED
) 

SH
AL

L 
BE

O
BS

ER
VE

D
.

PA
R

KI
N

G
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T 

C
H

AR
T

U
N

IT
 C

O
U

N
T

   
   

PA
R

KI
N

G
 

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 P

AR
KI

N
G

  C
AL

C
U

LA
TI

O
N

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
PR

O
VI

D
ED

   
   

 1
26

1.
5 

SP
AC

ES
 P

ER
 U

N
IT

 
   

 1
89

18
9

72
2.

0 
SP

AC
ES

 P
ER

 U
N

IT
   

 1
44

   
 1

44

18
2.

5 
SP

AC
ES

 P
ER

 U
N

IT
   

  4
5

45

   
21

6 
TO

TA
L

+1
0%

 G
U

ES
T 

SP
AC

ES
   

   
38

   
   

 9
   

   
 U

N
IT

S

TO
TA

L 
SP

AC
ES

   
 4

16
   

  3
87

*

*2
9 

SH
AR

ED
 S

PA
C

ES
 E

XI
ST

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
PA

R
C

EL
 A

N
D

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 T
O

M
EE

T 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

7

KE
YE

D
 N

O
TE

S

AD
A 

C
U

R
B 

R
AM

P/
SI

D
EW

AL
K

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
SI

D
EW

AL
K.

 W
ID

TH
 P

ER
 P

LA
N

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
(A

S 
SH

O
W

N
 B

EL
O

W
)

AC
C

ES
SI

BL
E 

PA
R

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E 
W

IT
H

 B
O

LL
AR

D
, 

SI
G

N
, S

TR
IP

IN
G

, A
N

D
 S

YM
BO

L 
(S

EE
 D

ET
AI

LS
)

6"
 W

H
IT

E 
TH

ER
M

O
PL

AS
TI

C
 C

R
O

SS
W

AL
K 

ST
R

IP
IN

G

6"
 W

ID
E 

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 P

AI
N

TE
D

 T
R

AF
FI

C
 R

ED
 W

IT
H

 "N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 - 

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E"

 P
AI

N
TE

D
 W

IH
T 

4"
 H

IG
H

 W
H

IT
E 

LE
TT

ER
IN

G
 A

T 
25

' O
.C

. S
EE

 
D

ET
AI

L 
SH

EE
T.

 N
O

TE
 - 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
FF

SE
T 

FO
R

 C
LA

R
IT

Y.

6"
 C

U
R

B 
AN

D
 G

U
TT

ER

C
AR

PO
R

T 
(D

ET
AI

LS
 B

Y 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

T)

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 F
EN

C
IN

G

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
PA

VE
M

EN
T

D
U

M
PS

TE
R

 E
N

C
LO

SU
R

E

A B C D E F G H I JSI
TE

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
O

W
N

ER
/D

EV
EL

O
PE

R
M

AN
O

R
 M

F 
LL

C
17

B 
FI

R
ST

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

 S
U

IT
E 

20
3

G
AI

TH
ER

SB
U

R
G

 M
D

 2
08

78

LE
G

AL
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:

BE
IN

G
 1

3.
21

77
 A

C
R

ES
 O

F 
LA

N
D

 S
IT

U
AT

ED
 IN

 
TH

E 
JA

M
ES

 M
AN

O
R

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
N

O
. 4

0,
 A

BS
TR

AC
T 

N
O

. 5
46

,
TR

AV
IS

 C
O

U
N

TY
, 

TE
XA

S;
 B

EI
N

G
 A

 P
O

R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
AT

C
ER

TA
IN

 C
AL

L 
10

5.
17

0 
AC

R
E 

TR
AC

T 
O

F 
LA

N
D

 A
S 

D
ES

C
R

IB
ED

 IN
 W

AR
R

AN
TY

 D
EE

D
 W

IT
H

 V
EN

D
O

R
's

 L
IE

N
 T

O
LA

S 
EN

TR
AD

AS
 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
IO

N
,A

N
D

R
EC

O
R

D
ED

 IN
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

N
O

. 2
00

70
02

48
5,

 O
F 

TH
E 

O
FF

IC
IA

L 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
R

D
S 

O
F 

TR
AV

IS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS
.

SI
TE

 A
D

D
R

ES
S:

TB
D

ZO
N

ED
:

M
F-

2 
(M

U
LT

I-F
AM

IL
Y 

25
)

SE
TB

AC
KS

:
FR

O
N

T 
- 2

0'
SI

D
E 

- 8
0'

 (3
 S

TO
R

Y)
, 2

5'
 (1

 S
TO

R
Y)

, 5
0'

 (2
 S

TO
R

Y)
R

EA
R

 - 
80

' (
3 

ST
O

R
Y)

, 2
5'

 (1
 S

TO
R

Y)
, 5

0'
 (2

 S
TO

R
Y)

K
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

PA
D

L
SI

TE
 M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

SI
G

N

M
SI

TE
 S

EC
U

R
IT

Y 
FE

N
C

IN
G

 &
 A

C
C

ES
S 

G
AT

ES

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E 

ST
R

IP
IN

G
 N

O
TE

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 A

PP
R

O
VE

D
 B

Y 
TH

E 
LO

C
AL

 F
IR

E
M

AR
SH

AL
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 A

PP
LI

C
AT

IO
N

. 
U

N
LE

SS
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
D

IR
EC

TE
D

 B
Y 

TH
E 

FI
R

E
M

AR
SH

AL
, F

IR
E 

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 6

" 
R

ED
 P

AI
N

TE
D

 S
TR

IP
E 

AL
O

N
G

 T
O

P 
AN

D
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B,

 F
AC

E 
O

F 
SI

D
EW

AL
K,

 O
R

 D
IR

EC
TL

Y 
AD

JA
C

EN
T 

TO
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D
PA

R
KI

N
G

 L
O

T 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

, W
IT

H
 4

" W
H

IT
E 

ST
EN

C
IL

ED
 L

ET
TE

R
S 

"F
IR

E 
LA

N
E 

TO
W

 A
W

AY
ZO

N
E"

 P
AI

N
TE

D
 O

N
 R

ED
 S

TR
IP

E 
AT

 3
0'

 C
EN

TE
R

 T
O

 C
EN

TE
R

 M
AX

 S
PA

C
IN

G
. S

EE
 F

IR
E

LA
N

E 
ST

R
IP

IN
G

 D
ET

AI
L 

O
N

 C
-6

.1
.

R
R

73

Item 5.

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line

Scott Dunlop
Line



74

Item 5.

Scott Dunlop
Rectangle



75

Item 5.



MANOR MF, LLC
CALLED 13.224 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2022156154

O.P.R.T.C.T.

LOT 1
MANOR APARTMENTS FINAL PLAT

DOC.NO. 202100145
O.P.R.T.C.T.

OWNER: MANOR APARTMENTS LLC
DOC. NO. 2019137031 &
DOC. NO. 2020193110

O.P.R.T.C.T.

JAMES MANORSURVEY NO. 40,ABSTRACTNO. 546

ZONING EXHIBIT
0.3067 ACRE(S)

13,360 SQUARE FEET

P.O.B.

[A]

P.O.C.

0.3067 ACRES
ZONING EXHIBIT

City of Manor,
Travis County, Texas

PO Box 90876, Austin Texas 78709
INFO@4WARDLS.COM   (512) 537-2384

       TBPELS  FIRM #10174300

A Limited Liability Company

76

Item 5.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 
6/26/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Rezoning Application  
 
 
Project Name: Reserves at Las Entradas Additional Area 
Case Number: 2024-P-1663-ZO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
 
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Rezoning 
Application for the corner of Gregg Manor Road and West Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-
1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). The request will be posted on the agenda as 
follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 0.31 
acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and West 
Eggleston Street, Manor, TX from (C-1) Light Commercial to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 
 
Applicant: MWSW LLP 
Owner: DD&B Construction Inc. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on July 10, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on July 17, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City 
Hall Council Chambers. 
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone 
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and 
Council Members during the discussion of this item.  

77

Item 5.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


 
Manor MF LLC (1956048)                  
17B Firstfield Rd. Ste. 203          

Gaithersburg MD 20878-1779 

MANOR HOUSING PUBLIC FACILITY 
(2002094)                                             

105 E EGGLESTON ST                 
MANOR TX 78653-3463 

78

Item 5.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Subdivision Construction Variance for the New Haven 
Subdivision from Manor Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article III, Section 42(b)(1) to permit a 
modified street pavement detail and being located at the northwest intersection of FM 973 and Gregg Ln, 
Manor, TX.  
Applicant: Quiddity  
Owner: Gregg Lane Dev. LLC 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This variance has been reviewed by our City Engineer and Public Works and has been recommended for approval 
with modifications. 

The minimum city code for street paving is 2” of HMAC (hot mix asphalt), 12” flexible base, and 6” sub-grade 
preparation. This variance was proposed with two options, but only Option 2 is recommended with modifications 
by engineering and public works. 

Option 2 for Urban Local Streets (residential streets) is proposed to be: 2” HMAC, 14” flexible base, and 8” of lime 
treated subgrade. For Urban Collector High Traffic (Anderson Road extension primary collector) is proposed to 
be” 2.5” Type C or D HMAC surface, 3” Type B or C HMAC base, 14” flexible base, geogrid, and 8” lime treated 
subgrade. 

 

79

Item 6.



 

City engineering recommends Option 2 be modified to: 

1. Require Geogrid for both street types 
2. Meet or exceed a treated subgrade thickness of at least 16” 
3. Consider cement stabilized treated subgrade (instead of lime) 

At the June 12th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting this variance was discussed and motioned to be 
postponed to the July 10th P&Z meeting. The P&Z Commission discussed wanting to see what other cities and 
developments had the same or similar type of street construction done in the past few years and how well those 
had performed. It was also proposed that a longer warranty and maintenance period be provided so that if any 
issues arise after the typical 1 and 2-year periods, the city would still be covered. The developer had proposed 
extending the 1-year 100% warranty bond to 2 years, but a longer timeframe was put forward that also included 
extending the 2nd year 10% maintenance period, and the developer needed time to discuss longer warranty and 
maintenance periods with their team.  

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: No 

PRESENTATION: No 

ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

 Street Layout 

 Pavement Variance  

 Conformance Letter 

 Public Notice 

 Mailing Labels 

ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type NA 

 

Actions Approve, Approve with Conditions, Deny, Postpone 

 
 
 
 

80

Item 6.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve with city engineer 
recommendations a Subdivision Construction Variance for the New Haven Subdivision from Manor Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article III, Section 42(b)(1) to permit a modified street pavement detail and 
being located at the northwest intersection of FM 973 and Gregg Ln, Manor, TX. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

81

Item 6.



5100 Alvin Devane Boulevard, Suite 150 

Austin, Texas 78741-7425 

Tel: 512.441.9493 

Fax: 512.445.2286 

www.quiddity.com 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046101   

 

June 6, 2024 

 

 

 

City of Manor – Planning and Zoning Committee  

Manor City Hall 

Council Chambers 

105 E. Eggleston St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

 

Re: Pavement Variance – Letter of Intent 

 Newhaven Subdivision Plans 

 Manor, TX 78653 

  

Dear Members of the Planning and Zoning Department 

On behalf of our client, Gregg Lane Development, LLC Quiddity Engineering is submitting this pavement 

variance request in accordance with the City of Manor’s guidelines and municipal code, which defers to 

the City of Austin Transportation Criteria Manual. Quiddity Engineering understands the importance of 

maintaining a balance between adherence to regulations and the accommodation of unique property 

conditions. 

We have coordinated closely with the Engineering Consultant for the City of Manor throughout this 

process. After thorough review and discussion, they have approved our proposed design, acknowledging 

the benefits and process of our approach. 

In July 2022, the City of Austin updated their Transportation Criteria Manual, introducing Potential Vertical 

Rise (PVR) limits for the design of pavement sections in expansive clay soils. In consulting with a locally 

established geotechnical engineering firm, Raba Kistner, it was identified that the recently updated 

guidelines resulted in pavement sections that were significantly more robust than what the City of Austin 

and other local city/county jurisdictions have designed successfully for similar developments in expansive 

clay soils. This was strictly in part due to the newly adopted limiting PVR requirements. 

Given the highly expansive subgrade conditions that exist in Manor and our understanding of their 

properties, Quiddity Engineering and Raba Kistner Consultants recognized the opportunity to value 

engineer the resulting pavement section. A holistic design approach addressing adequate drainage, curb 

and gutters, minimizing moisture migration, and treatment of the expansive clay soils was considered, all 

while adhering to the overarching goals of the City of Manor infrastructure development plans.  

The current PVR requirements set by section 5.2.2 of the City of Austin Transportation Manual specify a 

PVR limit of 2 inches for collector roads and 3 inches for residential roads. Our proposed design will have 

a PVR of 3 3/4 inches for residential roads and 3 ½ for collector roads. While this exceeds the current PVR 

limits, our design incorporates additional measures to ensure the pavement's durability and functionality. 

  

82

Item 6.



 

 

 

 

Page 2 

6/6/2024 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046101   

As an additional measure to enhance the long-term durability of the road, this proposal incorporates 

geogrid reinforcement into the pavement structure. Although the use of geogrid is not mandated by the 

City of Manor's current code, it offers significant benefits in improving the structural integrity and 

longevity of the pavement. Geogrids help to distribute loads more evenly, reduce subgrade deformation, 

and improve overall pavement performance, especially in challenging soil conditions such as those found 

in Manor. 

This variance seeks to present a proposed alternative to the City of Manor’s required pavement design 

guidelines that the City will find acceptable. The proposal includes: 

1. Adequate Drainage: Ensuring proper drainage to mitigate water accumulation and potential 

damage to the pavement structure. 

2. Curb and Gutters: Implementing effective curb and gutter designs to facilitate water runoff and 

protect the pavement edges. 

3. Minimizing Moisture Migration: Utilizing advanced techniques and materials to reduce the 

movement of moisture through the subgrade, thereby enhancing pavement durability. 

4. Treatment of Expansive Clay Soils: Applying proven methods to stabilize the expansive clay soils, 

ensuring a stable foundation for the pavement. 

5. Geogrid Reinforcement: Incorporating geogrid into the pavement structure to improve load 

distribution, reduce subgrade deformation, and enhance long-term durability. 

We believe that this variance not only addresses the unique conditions in Manor but also provides a 

practical and economically feasible solution that aligns with the overarching goals of the City’s 

infrastructure development plans. We are confident that our approach will meet the necessary 

performance criteria while providing long-term benefits to the community. 

 

Sincerely,     

 

 

 

Brad Carabajal, PE 

Project Engineer 

83

Item 6.



BLOCK A

BLOCK D

BLOCK C

BLOCK F

BLOCK E

BLOCK I

BLOCK K

BLOCK L

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK E

BLOCK I

BLOCK A

BLOCK E

BLOCK K

BLOCK K

BLOCK M

BLOCK D

BLOCK B

BLOCK G

BLOCK J

AT
LAS

14
100

YR

ATLAS

14
100 YR

ATLAS14
100

YR

AT

LAS
14

100
YR

AT
LAS

14
100

YR

ATLAS14
100

YR

ATLAS14100YR

AT LAS14
100

ATLAS
14

100
YR

ATLAS 14 100

YR

TRAVIS COUNTY
GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

2.341 ACRES
DOC 2020165985

BLOCK A

BLOCK D

BLOCK C

BLOCK F

BLOCK E

BLOCK I

BLOCK K

BLOCK L

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK E

BLOCK I

BLOCK A

BLOCK E

BLOCK K

BLOCK K

BLOCK M

BLOCK D

BLOCK B

BLOCK G

BLOCK J

11
5.

90
'

10
0.

00
'

7 8
.5 4' 7 8.86'

16
5.

00
'

201.75'
33.89'

7 3.36'

262.52'

7 8 .5 4'

17
3.

04
'

11
7

.7
7'

76
.3

3'
86

.0
5'

81
.5

9'

24
9.

69
'

22
0.

96
'

34
6.

60
'

20
.0

0'

399.53'

29
2.

77
'

59
.8

8'
26

4 .
7

0 '

15
0.

50
'

15' P.U.E.

760.42' 165.01'

445.28'281.32'

383.15'251.56'
53.13'

24.27'

184.16'

84.07'

26
9.

23
'

22
7

.9
6 '

12
8 .

6 0
'

7 2.27'

266.59'169.09'56.37'

7 2 .6 2'

88
.6

3'

9.00'

35.5 3'

81
.0

9'

22
9.

36
'

41
5.

89
'

94.58'

520.22' 221.70'

135.31'
293.05'386.00'

7
8 .

0 4'

95
.2

6'
11

4.
75

'

7 9 .0 4'

15
4 .

66
'

6 4 .0 5'

16
6.

06
'

D.E.

D.E.D.E.

D.E.

D.E.

D.E.

D.E.

D.E.

354.10' 7 8.54'

53
4.

80
'

36
5.

08
'

15.00'

134.6 3'

69.39'

1

23

4

5

6

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4

3

2

1

30292827

4 3 2 1

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

98765432

1

6 5

1

4
5

6

7

8

1

9 10

11

12

17

18

23

31 32 33 34

26

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19202122232425

2625242322212019

1

16

21
20 19 18 17 16 15

14

13

12

11

10

9

25242322212019

13 12 11 10 9 8 7

1

2 3 4 5 6 7

8

16
15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

17

17

29

28

27

22

25

24

23

191817
16

151413

12
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

1

8

7

6

5

4

3

19

19

19

39

38

37

36

35

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

2018

17

16

15

14

13121110
98

7

6

5

4

3

2

2

1

21 20 19 18 17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

22

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

1415

17 18 26 27
28

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9101112131415161718
1

2

40

419

O
VE

RA
LL

 P
RE

LI
M

IN
AR

Y 
PL

AT
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

16
75

9-
00

07
-0

2

20
23

-P
-1

54
3-

PP

7-
D

ec
-2

3

N
EW

H
A

VE
N

 P
R

EL
IM

IN
A

R
Y 

PL
A

N

K:\16759\16759-0007-02 newhaven subdivision\2 design phase\CAD\preliminary plan\Sheets\16759-0007-02 PRELIMPLAT.dwg     jfishbaugh: April 11, 2024

c
20

21
 J

on
es

 | 
C

ar
te

r

A B C D E F

1
2

3
4

THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE SHOWN IN AN
APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING

WORK. HE AGREES TO BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL
DAMAGES WHICH MAY OCCUR BY HIS FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND

PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

OF

N
o.

D
at

e
Ap

p.

SHEET NO.

JO
B 

N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:
D

ES
IG

N
ED

 B
Y.

:
FR

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
JA

A
D

AT
E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

JA
E

Te
xa

s 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l E

ng
in

ee
rs

 a
nd

 L
an

d 
Su

rv
ey

or
s 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
os

. F
-2

32
90

 &
 1

00
46

10
0

31
00

 A
lv

in
 D

ev
an

e 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d,

 S
ui

te
 1

50
 

 A
us

tin
, T

ex
as

 7
87

41
 

 5
12

.4
41

.9
49

3

JOHN A. ALVAREZ II

127206

0200 100 200

SCALE: 1" = 200'

MATCHLINE
6

5

PHASE LINE

LEGEND

EXISTING LEGEND

IRON ROD FOUND

CAPPED IRON ROD SET

P.O.B. POINT OF BEGINNING 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTPUE

TEMPORARY BENCHMARKTBM

OPRWCT OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY

BENCHMARKS

P.O.B.

PUBLIC STREETS

NAME LENGTH (FT)
PAINTED PLAINS LANE 327
FOX MANOR DRIVE 718
HIDDEN PRAIRE LANE 401
ROLLING DRIVE 742
CLOUDED CHASE DR 466
BIRCH CHASE LANE 840
LONE ORCHARD LANE 661
PEACH RISE DRIVE 1,059
PEBBLE BANK LANE 881
PARADISE FARM LANE 989
SWEET GULLY LANE 362
JUNIPER GLADE LANE 763
STREAM GAP DRIVE 190
ANDERSON ROAD 1,533
STERLING KNOLL LANE 452
AUTUMN FOLIAGE DRIVE 939
MAPLETON DRIVE 326
TWIN TIMBER DRIVE 524
RIPPING DRIVE 349

TOTAL      8,367

PHASE I

PHASE II

PHASE III

PHASE IV

84

Item 6.



 85

Item 6.



 

 

 

 

PAVEMENT VARIANCE 

 

FOR 

 

NEWHAVEN SUBDIVISION 

IN  

MANOR, TEXAS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3100 Alvin Devane Boulevard, Suite 150 

Austin, Texas 78741 

Tel: 512.441.9493 

Fax: 512.445.2286 

 

MAY 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

86

Item 6.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................ 3 

GEOTECH RECOMMENDATION ................................................................................................ 4 - 33 

CITY OF MANOR APPROVAL EMAIL ........................................................................................ 34 - 37 

PAVEMENT VARIANCE EXHIBIT  .....................................................................................................38 

 

  

87

Item 6.



INTRODUCTION 

 

Quiddity engineering is submitting this pavement variance request in accordance with the City of 

Manor’s guidelines and municipal code. Quiddity Engineering understands the importance of 

maintaining a balance between adherence to regulations and the accommodation of unique 

property conditions. This variance seeks to present proposed variance to the City of Manor’s 

pavement design guidelines that the City will find acceptable.  

 

 

88

Item 6.



����������	�


��������
�����������	����
��������������
�
����������������������� �
�

�!�"� #�	�$������%���&�
� ��������#�������'�������������(����

�������&�����)�*��������+*��������
+*����������$�,����--�-.�

�

/012 345567879:;62<;=7879:2/7>?8879@;:A?9B22
2 C7DE;=79234F@A=ABA?922

GH7II2J;972
K;9?HL2M7N;B22

�

�����#�	�%���&"��
�
�
)
�OP+$�Q�� ���*��������P��	�R�O PS����������������*T(����U����*����(�����������������������
�*����(����������(��������((����������V����U����������V�������������������������������
�������������
���T��������������U����WU�����+*T������������#������$�,��	����������W���((�����TX�#�	���*��������X��
�	Q	��W��U��)
�������(�������������������W��U�#�	�)���� ���T�������	Q	��W��U�Y*�����X��W��*����������
�U����U�� ��X��V�#�������������������������������������U����������(�����U�� ��X��V�
*�����$��������������
 ��������#��*����Z����(�����V�����	�V��������!��������������������	�V�����������������W�X�	�[�W�������U�����X�
U����(�U���\����U������������U������*����U��V��]*���X!�������X��V�(������������U�*���T����������\��	�
<H?B2;9@2>?9B2;H72:;F46;:7@2̂?66?DA9I2;2FHA7̂2@7B>HA5:A?92?̂28?@ÂA>;:A?9B2A92?4H2:H;̂̂A>2;BB485:A?9B2
;9@2;2EAIE_67=762@AB>4BBA?92?̂2B:;:7_?̂_:E7_5H;>:A>72̂67NAF6725;=7879:25EA6?B?5Èa22
�

$U�����������*����(������*��������U�������������������������V���bcdefgchijklmngnonph������������(T���
��������R�O P�����������	�


�������S�������U�*�������T��*�������������X�V��(��U�����������������	�
�

M/qrrst2sCru/KqMsuC2
�

$U�� ��X��V�
*�����$�������������� ��������#��*���W���*����\���V�������(�������U����X����������.&���
+������
,���������RQ+
��S	�
��U�*�U��U��#�����$U���*�UV�������������(T�������������������U���

������������������V*�*���v(�������������w�R�����������������vx�T���
����������W�$��VV��wS������
��((�����TX��)
��W��*�����������U���
�������������U���������T������������V����������vx�T���
 ��������w	��$U�� ��X��V�
*�����������*�T�������������������v[��U�$��VV��w�����v��W�$��VV��w	�)���������U��
#�����$U���*�UV��������������)
y����((��������������������������(�������������X��W��U�������������
�U��v[��U�$��VV��w�������	�
��*((��X��V��U��Q+
�����*���*����V�����������V��U������W�X�����(����
��������������������������U����T���T���W	��
�

/?;@D;̀B2 3:H77:2t6;BBÂA>;:A?92
s9A:A;62q=7H;I72z;A6̀22

MH;̂̂A>2{qzM|2/;9I7}~;6472�B7@2
��2�7;H2

z7BAI9203qJB2

��������������������+������� x�T��������� �������������R�����S� ��������


������������� x�T��� ���������[��U�$��VV��� ���������.�����R�����S� ����������

�
z03sGC2K0M�uz2qCz2<q/qK0M0/32
�

����(�����������W������V��(�������������������������W��U��U������((������������������������U�� ��X�
�V�
*�����$�������������� ��������#��*����WU��U���������X���V��������U�� 
�Q �����(�����������#��*��	�

� � �� � �

� � �� � ��
� �
� � �������������������
� � ���������������� ¡�¢£¤¥��¦§�̈��
� � ©£ª¥¤�¡�«¬��̈®�
� � ¯̄ °̄�±²¤°²���
�

� � ³�̈�́°µµ¶°�®̈�
� � ·�̈�́°µµ¶°̧�®�
� � �¹§µ́ ̈�

�
� � �

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

89

Item 6.



����������	�


�������� ��
�����������	����
��������������
�
��������������������� �!����"��������#�$�%��������������������&����$�%��'�(����������������)����	�
 �!������������������������������$�����������$���������������������������%��������(���$����
��������(����*���$�'���$����%%������$���	�!����������

!+�,�-��� �!��������������(����*�.���%�$����������/�
��������������������%��������(����*	����� �!����$����������������������#�$������������*�����������"�����
������(���(���"	������������%����� �!�����������������������$	��
�

01234536789:;31<=<>7?7=83
@7;7=<A3

B789C7;?9<A32?=77?83
D;C7=8E;3BE<C3

F��%�$�����G����� H�.-�I/� F�.-��I/�

J�������!�������(����*�J�$�'� �	�� �	��

 �����!�������(����*�J�$�'� �	�� �	��


���*���������$�.*�/� ��� ���

6789:;3KECLAL83MN89O3

P����Q��$�$�+��R�'�
�������� ���� S���

 ��'�(���H����� ��� ���

G���������$�!�(���$�� ��� ���

!�(���$�� T� T�

J������$�G�"��J�!�(���$�� ��� ���

�
BUVWKKUX6U631DYUKUXZ32UVZ[WX233
3
����%����"����������������������������������$�$�%���������������$�����������������$�
�$���������$	�
���������������\���������%���������������$�$��������������������������(���"������������������$	�
�
$�����������%�����F��*��%�
���������������������F��������R��������&��������������������������������*�����$�
�������������'���%��������������������(���$�����$����������$��������������$�$���������%�����
��������$�$��������������������$�������������������	��
�
DAA3]<̂7>7;?387_?9E;83]=787;?7C3̀7AEa3<=73<C7bL<?739;38L]]E=?9;:3c2d4e3AE<C9;:39;_ALC9;:3<;3
fegeeedÀ3h9=73?=L_N3i<̂9;:35jgeeedÀ3]E9;?3AE<C8k33
�

@7;7=<A3B789C7;?9<A32?=77?83Ml=̀<;3mE_<AO3
�

m<n7=3678_=9]?9E;3

m<n7=3Zi9_N;7883

W]?9E;353o3
Ŵ7=7p_<̂<?9E;3W]?9E;3

Mq<87A9;7O3
1YB3r3s39;k3

W]?9E;343o33
m9>73Z=7<?>7;?3W]?9E;3

1YB3r3t39;k3

+R
F�!��%����F��������*���uFv����uPv�
 ��'�(���H����
Q�����$��
G����������$�!�(���$��
G�"��J� ����
VE>̀ 9;7C3ZE?<A�

��	����	�
��	����	�
,��������
��

���������	����	������	�
tfke39;k�

��	����	�
���	����	�
��
�T	����	�
�������������	�
4tke39;k�

�

w

w

90

Item 6.



����������	�


�������� ��
�����������	����
��������������
�
��������������������������������������������� !
"������������������������#���$��������#���������%�
��&������$�����������������������������'�����'����������������������������������������������������&������
����&��������%	��
�

()*+,-.)/0.1*/23,41)/5.66+78.,/9:;</=,1>>:7?/
�

@1A+,/B+-7,:C8:.)/

@1A+,/=<:7D)+--/

EC8:.)/F/G/
EH+,+I71H18:.)/EC8:.)/

2J1-+6:)+?/
KL0/M/N/:)O/

EC8:.)/N/G/
@:P+/=,+18P+)8/EC8:.)/

KL0/M/Q/:)O/

RS
T�!�������T�������U%���VTW����V�W�
RS
T�X����T�������U%���VXW����VTW�
Y��Z�#���X����
[��'�����
"�&��U�������!�#'�����
"�$��\�Y����
5.P4:)+*/=.816�

�	����	�
�	����	�
��	����	�
]��������
��

����������̂���	������	�
_NÒ/:)O�

�	����	�
�	����	�
��	����	�
a��b�
c	����	�
�������������	�
N_Ò/:)O�

���������b]��������'��'�������������&�������������������������������'�������&������d�����������Z������'���������U������Ue��

/
Bfg53ggfEh/Ei/EK=fEhg/
�
\�������������T��%����
������U��������������T��������S������j������k��%���������l��
������Z�X�!�������
�	�	����������m����&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������#'�����������&�������������	�]���������������������������������������$�%��#����
�������������m������������������������&�������������	��
�
R����������%�j�������������l������T��%����
����������&&�������&�����&���������#'�����������$����
���������%���������j�\l�'��������������	�\��!��������	�	���������U��������������T��������S������j������

�'����̂������l��V��������'�����������������������������������������������������������#�%�����&#��������
������������$��'�&�������Wn�
�

op�������&������������������c�������������#'�����$������$��\�������j�\������������������&���������
�lq�

opr��������&�����&����������&�s��&���������&������������������c���������	q�

opr������&��������#���������������������$��t�����������$�%�q����s���

op���������&����$����'��'���	��
�
]����������������������������$�����������������������$�����������������������������������������������������
����&����������������s�Z���������#'�������������������������������������������$�����'����������������������
����&�������������	�"�&�������&����������������������&���&��#�����%�������������$�����������%�
���������������������&�����������������������������������������Z�#���#�������&�����������%��'���#'������
���$���������������'������&���������������������&��������s$�����#'���������	�\�������Z����������'��'����
���������&�������������������������������&�����������#����&�������������������'���������������&�������
������������%��'����Z�#���#����&���������$�����������������'���������$�%������������Z���������Z�����������%�	�
U�������Z�#����%�&�t�����������&�����%���&�&�����#�����������������t��'�����������������&��������
����������������������#'����	����

u

u

91

Item 6.



����������	�


�������� ��
�����������	����
��������������
�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������ 	��!"#�����������������
�����$���������������������������������������%������������&�������������������������������%� ����&��
��������������%��������������������	�'����������������$���������������������������������%���������
(���������)����*	�
�
+,-./01.2/30450/065.
7
#���%���������*���������������������������������������%���� �$�������&�����$�����������%&������
�������������%�����������������������������%��������������&����%&����%�����������*���������������$��#�
������������������$�������������������� �&����%���������������%���� ����������$������������8�%����������
������������(� ����9��%��������������������:	�(�������������%���� ���%��$������������������8���$����
����$� ��$�����%�&������%����:�����������������������%��������������������������������������	�
)�����������;�������������������������������� ����%�����%���������������������%�����������%������������
���*�&���&�����$���������%����� ����%��������������������������*�&���&���������%&��������������������
��������������%�	�
�
<������������������$� �������%���������;�������������������������������������������������������$����
����%����������;���������%��������%���������������������%��%��	�)�����������������=�����%������
�%�������������������%�������� ��������%�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������%�������&����;���������%&����%������������%�����������������������������������������������	�
������%���� ����������$����������������������$����������������������������������%������*��������������
�� ���%������������������;��������%�������������������������>������*�&���&���������$����������=�����
���%���������%������%���������������%����������;������������������	��
7
?@AB/C3D@0.@E.FB43@0D.
�

����%������%�������������������$��������������& ������*�������������������������$������$��#����������
��� �����������������%������$���������������������������������������������������������%���������
����������������$������$��*�������������������� ����%�������*�������������������%������������������������
���$�������������%�������%������	�8(�������������������������������������������%������� ������&����
�������������	:�G���������������������"�� �������������������������������%���������$���������������
�������������������������>�����������&���� 	��
�
H������������&����������������������������������������!������������������	�"����&���������������� ���������
���� �������&� ����������������������������	��
�

������������������������������������������������$�����������������������%�&��������%�� �����������
�������*�&���&����&��%���	���&&����%�&�������������������������������������������I�����������%���&������	��
�
+C@D./01.?@0D.
�
(��������$������&���������������%���� ���������������������&���	�
�
�
�
�
�

J

J

92

Item 6.



����������	�


�������� ��
�����������	����
��������������
�

� ������ ! ������ " 

#$�% 

&'��()�����*�����+��,��-�
)�����.+/�
��	�0�
1��������	�	������������

&'2��(��3�(�(3���-���4����3�(������3,�
�3��4������536����3�����743,���������
��4��������4��3���-�3��53���-������3����3(�8�

&'/�(�-�����)69�3(�����3����3�����,��3�9��
(���5�7�:�3�(�;����	�-������3��3�(�����������
��3(�8������3���9�������)69�3(��

&'<4�������5�95��<��)69�3(��3��(�����6�(����
�5����(�
)�����.+/�7����8�1��������	�	��

&'<-�����)(�(���)�6�3�(�9)�����=�������4����
9��(�(�3��39��3�(������(��3�4����)���
63������������������5��-��>�6���63���
�

�

&'2��(��3�(�(3���-���4����3�(������3,�
�3��4������536����3�����743,���������
��4��������4��3���-�3��53���-������3����3(�8�

&'�����(�����4�����3�4����4����)������3�3�����
63�����?�6)--����

&'�����(��� �)69�3(�� 4�(�-��3����� 6,�
���3�4�����-�����������3(��-�43����3���>�����

&'/�(�-������������3����3�����,���=�(���5�7���
3�(��;���	�-������3��3�(�������������3(�8��
��()���9��>����?�4�����3�(�������)������
��4��

&'<��9����3��3����(3����=��5�5�������3��,�
3������(��3��4���������5�������3��.�>3��
3��3�

&'<4�������5�95��<��)69�3(��3��(�����6�(����
�5����(�
)�����.+/�7����8�1��������	�	��

&'7
�(��������3(8�<�������3����9��9��(�
����-����4���� ��� �4������ 63���
���-���4���?����-����4����

&'<-�����)(�(���)�6�3�(�9)�����=�������4����
9��(�(�3��39��3�(������(��3�4����)���
63������������������5��-��>�6���63���

�

@��% 

&'��A)�����3�43�����3�������9�34�������)���
9��(��3��4�������-��43�����������4��

&'��A)��������3�����,�9��3�����>�����3�(�
�4������-��������=5��5�53��6��5�4����3�,�
3�(��������4���3��������3�(�=���������3���
������)��������4��

&'����3�5�������3��,����-��4�(��)69�3(��
�4�����4��������5�������3��.�>3��3��3�

&'<��3��3��=��5�)��9��(�(�3��39���=3�����3��
��������=��5����5����=��<�-����7B63�5�)6�
�--���C8����-�����9�-����3�(������3���9����D��-�
�=����9��3�����53������43��(��*���
�

�

&'E����������()����*�����+��,��-�
)�����.+/�

��	�0�1��������	�	������������

&'���D��-��)�-3����()��(�5�3���9��-�5�95�
�)�-3����)69�3(�������������

&'��A)�����3�43�����3�������9�34�������)���
9��(��3��4�������-��43�����������4��

&'<���5��36�������-�9��9��(����4�����3��(�
�)69�3(��43,�9��=�6�������3�(���-��������,�
��3�D��5��)95�3��53���

�

�

�
F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F����F�

�
�
�

G

G

93

Item 6.



����������	�


�������� ��
�����������	����
��������������
�
��������������������������������� ���!�������������������������������	�"����#��������������$���������
� ����������!��%��������������#����������������������������	�
�
�

&
&

� �

'������������������ � �
� � �
()*)&+,-./0(&12/-34.)/.-5&,/16� � �
�
�
�
�

�

������#�7	�"��%������	8	����������������
��������9���:���

&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&;������<������7��%�����	8	�
����������������������������'���������#���&

=>?@>ABA=& �

� � � �
9�CD;<7D�7"E��%� � �
� � �
�
F������"� %����#E�
 ����G�����������H�

�����%����E��I�"���J������I�����
� � �������������������������������������
�

K

K

94

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lplpjijl\\\\]
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��������������������������PGqqVRLK�[HGQL�LXJK�EFGHrVq

��Rstuvwsx�Fsyz{sx|zv}���G~|z�x�N�������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������
���
��
���

����rVRYLX�G��LXV�[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI��SV[FK�����������������������������������T�M�

����qJRJqQq�LJqV�LG��JFKL�G�VFr[S��SV[FK�����������������������������������T�M�

����qJRJqQq�LJqV�HVLZVVR�G�VFr[SK��SV[FK�����������������������������������N�M�

����IVKJYR�PGR�JIVRPV�rV�Vr�����M��������������������������������������������H

����KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��G��LXV�JRJLJ[r�KLFQPLQFV���������������������������OMT

�����JR[r�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��ET�������������������������������������������TM�

����KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��EN�[�LVF�[R�G�VFr[S��������������������������������OMT

����IJKLFJPL�LVqEVF[LQFV�PGRKL[RL�������������������������������������������NM�

����KQHYF[IV�Vr[KLJP�qGIQrQK����PGQRLS���yz����������������������������������M��

����JRLVFVKL�F[LV�GF�LJqV��[rQV�G��qGRVS��EVFPVRL���������������������������UM�

���	
�
������
�����������
�����
���

����RQqHVF�G��KQqq[FS�GQLEQL�E[YVK�IVKJFVI�����IVKJYRK�E[YV������������������

����q[���QRIK�[�[Jr[HrV�EVF�K�MSIM��GF�JRJLJ[r�IVKJYR��IGrr[FK���������������M��

����q[�JqQq�[rrGZVI�LXJP�RVKK�G��JRJLJ[r�PGRKLFQPLJGR��JRPXVK����������������M�

����[PPQqQr[LVI�q[��IVELX�G��[rr�G�VFr[SK��JRPXVK���V�PrQIJRY�rV�Vr�QE�������M�

����
����������
���

����[IL�[L�HVYJRRJRY�G��[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI���VXJPrVK�I[S��������������������N���M

����[IL�[L�VRI�G��LZVRLS�SV[FK���VXJPrVK�I[S�����������������������������TU��M

����GRV�IJFVPLJGR�T�SV[F�N���z~�VK[r���z}}z�xy����������������������������MN��

����[�VF[YV�[EEFG[PX�KEVVI�LG�LXV�G�VFr[S��GRV�qEX�������������������������U�M�

����[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S��GRV��G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR��qEX�������������O�M�

����[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S��GRV��RGR�G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR���qEX����������M�

����EFGEGFLJGR�G��[IL�[FFJ�JRY�V[PX�XGQF�G��PGRKLFQPLJGR��EVFPVRL������������M�

����EVFPVRL�LFQP�K�JR�[IL���������������������������������������������������OM�

��
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
������������������������������ ¡�¢�¢£¡��¤��¢£¢¥¢��������� �£�¢��£¦�§�̈©̈©ª«ª̈�¬«§¬¬§̈ª�®����̄��§��¬��¡°���±

95

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lplpjijl\\\\j
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������JREQL�I[L[�PGRLJRQVI

���q���
rq�����������������q������
���

�

����sJRJsQs�GtVFu[S�LXJPvRVKK�wJRPXVKx��������������������������������������TMy

����GtVFu[S�PGRKLFQPLJGR�LJsV�wXGQFKzI[Sx����������������������������������NTMy

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�PGsE[PLVI�IVRKJLS�wLGRKzPMSMx������������������������NM{y

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�EFGIQPLJGR�F[LV�wLGRKzXGQFx������������������������TyyMy

����ZJILX�G|�V[PX�u[RV�w|VVLx����������������������������������������������NTMy

����|JFKL�SV[F�PGKL�G|�FGQLJRV�s[JRLVR[RPV�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx��������������yMyy

����[RRQ[u�JRPFVsVRL[u�JRPFV[KV�JR�s[JRLVR[RPV�PGKL�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx�����yMyy

������r
�����}���
�~�
����
���

����LF[||JP�sGIVu�QKVI�IQFJRY�GtVFu[SJRY������������������������������������N

����LGL[u�RQsHVF�G|�u[RVK�G|�LXV�|[PJuJLS�����������������������������������T

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK�JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�������������N

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK��JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx��������N

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx������������������yM�y

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx��������������yM�y

����IVLGQF�IJKL[RPV�[FGQRI�LXV�GtVFu[S��GRV�wsJuVKx�������������������������yMyy

���	�~��}�����
��������
�����
���

����������������s[LVFJ[uK�������PGKL�����V����EGJKKGR���sJRM����s[�M�K[ut[YV

��u[SVF�PGIV�������R[sV��������EVF�PS�sGIQuQK��F[LJG���IVELX���IVELX���EPLM

����N����[��[KEX�PGRP�EtsL����N�yMyy���yyyyyM���yM������TMyy����TMyy����yMyy

����T����H��|uV�JHuV�H[KV�������OMyy���OyyyyM���yM�����NNMyy���NTMyy���U�Myy

���������P��uGZ�EJ�KGJu��������N�Myy���TyyyyM���yM�y�����Myy�����Myy���{yMyy

����O����I��KQHYF[IVwTyyx�������TMyy�����yyyM���yMOy��TyyMyy��TyyMyy���{yMyy

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ 

96

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lplpjijl\\\\k
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
���

�������PM�qVrVq�H�������KQss[FS�Gt�LXV�HVKL�IVKJYR�KLF[LVYJVK

��������������������������JR�GFIVF�Gt�JRPFV[KJRY�LGL[q�PGKL

���������������������������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��s[LVFJ[q�[FF[RYVsVRL���[HP���

��JRJLM�PGRKLM�PGKL�����uvMOT

��GrVFq[S�PGRKLM�PGKL����wMww

��QKVF�PGKL��������������wMww

��FGQLJRV�s[JRLM�PGKL����wMww

��K[qr[YV�r[qQV����������UMTO
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��LGL[q�PGKL������������uTMNx
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RQsHVF�Gt�q[SVFK��������u
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��q[SVF�IVELX�yJRPXVKz

�������IyNz��������������TMww

�������IyTz�������������NNMww

�������Iyuz�������������u{Mww
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RGMGt�EVFtMEVFJGIK������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��EVFtM�LJsV�ySV[FKz

�������LyNz��������������OwM
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��GrVFq[S�EGqJPSyJRPXz

��yJRPqQIJRY�qVrVq�QEz
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������LXV�LGL[q�RQsHVF�Gt�tV[KJHqV�IVKJYRK�PGRKJIVFVI�Z[K��������NT

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
|||||||||||||||||||}~���|}�������������|��������~||||||||�����|}��~�|��������|��������|��|||���~|�||�|�||�

97

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

������� ����� ����� ���� ���
��
����

������ � ������ !��� ���� �"�#$�%�&���'

()*+,-.//

0*-+)./1

234565/

0,/*1

73*//3-8/

9:;*3
2:;.<*:6=>:?.


@ 
@�� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


���


��


���


��


���


��


���


��

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����

���&�����
'

ABCDEFGHIJFKLHMMHNOP

QRHDEOJSSFNIFTCSJFGCUJBFKHOP


@ 
@�� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


��


��


V�


!�


���


���


���


�V�


�!�


���
��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���

���&�����
'

WXYYHOZFGHIJFKLHMMHNOP

QRHDEOJSSFNIFTCSJFGCUJBFKHOP

[\]̂_̀abcd\efbghiajk

l
m
nm
o
&pq'

rms &to'
rmu mo nv�@V�w��

ms n
���@�

mu n
�!��x̀ ]]̂y_bghiajk

l
z
nm
{
&p|}

~�� m{ n���v�w�@

m� n
���vv

���&�������
q�
��q
�|�����'�����
&�������'

�����
����� ����
&�������'

$�q
����� ������
&�������'

�������
q�
��q
�|�����
��
�������q� 
��
��������
����� �

�������
�� 
�!
�����������������

����
q��
�q��q
�%��������

�� 
�� ���
�%���v����

p� �pn ��!��� & '

p �p|n w������& '

gae�\ŷ�]̂ebc�aefbchyej̀�̂hyk

���
 �����
��
��
�

�a�̂_yb���ak����\j]behyeda]ab�b[ja�̂�jab�\�ab�b�]\�̂ĵ�aib�̀ �_d\iabh�adb�̀ �_d\ia

 ¡¢F£¤F¥JDRCOHSYHDF¦JSHZOFARJDEF§XŸXYFFFFFFFK ¡¢£¤©¤ª«WJMJCSJ¬¤£©¤£©£¤®P

°̄±²³́ µ

¶·̧·¹

º°»¼½°¾¼

¿

ÀÁ¿ÂÃ·ÃÄÃ·ÃÅÆÇ

ÈÉ»¼°Ê

Ë½ÌÍÎÏÐ

º́ ¼Ï

¶ÌÉÊ¼µ

Á

ÄÑÄÑ¿À¿Ä

ÒÓÈÔÕ̧

98

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

�������� ������ ����� ���� � �!"�#�$���%

&'()*+,--

.(+)',-/

012343-

.*-(/

51(--1+6-

789(1
089,:(84;<8=,


> 
>�� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


���


��


���


��


���


��


���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����

���$�����
%

?@ABCDEFGHDIJFKKFLMN

OPFBCMHQQDLGDRAQHDEASH@DIFMN


> 
>�� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


��


��


�T


�U


�


���


���


��T


��U


�


���


���

���V
��TU

��U�

����

����

����

��V�

����

���>

���$�����
%

WXYYFMZDEFGHDIJFKKFLMN

OPFBCMHQQDLGDRAQHDEASH@DIFMN

[\]̂_̀abcd\efbghiajk

l
m
nm
o
$pq%

rms $to%
rmu mo nV�>T�v��

ms n
���>�

mu n
�U��ẁ ]]̂x_bghiajk

l
y
nm
z
$p{|

}~� mz n���V�v�>

m� n
���VV

���$�������
q�
��q
�{�����%�����
$�������%

�����
����� ����
$�������%

"�q
����� ����
$�������%

�������
q�
��q
�{�����
��
�������q��
��
��������
�������

�������
���
�U
�����������������

����
q��
�q��q
�#��������

���
������
�#���V����

p� �pn ������ $ %

p �p{n v��>���$ %

gae�\x̂�]̂ebc�aefbchxej̀�̂hxk

���
������
��
��
�

�a�̂_xb���ak����\j]behxeda]ab�b[ja�̂�jab�\�abh�adb�̀ �_d\ia

�� D¡¢D£HBPAMFQYFBD¤HQFZMD?PHBCD¥XY¦XYDDDDDDDI�� ¡¢§¢̈©WHKHAQHª¢¡§¢¡§¡«¢¬N

®̄°±²³

µ́¶µ·

®̧¹º»®¼º

½

¾¿½ÀÁµÁÂÁµÁÃÄÅ

ÆÇ¹º®È

É»ÊËÌÍÎ

²̧ºÍ

ẾÇÈº³

¿

ÂÏÂÏ½¾½Â

ÐÑÆÒÓ¶

99

Item 6.



������������	
 �� �� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

����������� ��� �� �� �����������

����������� �� �� �� �����������

� !��"#$ �� ��� � !��"#$

%&'()*+,,

-'*(&+,.

/01232,

-),'.

40',,0*5,

678'0
/78+9'73:;7<+

� �� �� �� �� �� �= �> �� �? �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��= ��>

��

��

���

���

��=

���

��

���

���

��=

���

��

���

���

��=

@A@B

CCADD

EFGHIJKLLMNKOPHQGRJMSFTUQMVRUMWQTXGYGZKOM[T\KUL

]̂ _̀abcdbefĝh î̀bj̀klm̀lk̂bnoip

qrrcsftr̂bû vlm̀ocibbnoip

:wxx :yxx :zxx :{xx :wxxx :yxxx :zxxx

|}e~�bequq����uj�

�������
� �� ��� �����  ���"�!����������
�����

�?������ �# ���� �"��
��! ���� �

��	"!��� !��"� ��"�� � ������ 

�������� �������  ���"�!

���������! �
 ����
������������������ ���

��



�������� !�"��
 �����"������"���������� ��"���
������

�"���"������� ���#����"�������������#���������#�������

u�j~���

���������
��������
��#$� ���� ���� !

��������
� ������ �����
��#$� ��

�����������"���� �
��#$� ���� !�#��"�

�>�?�����	"!��� !�
��������
��#$� ��

�u|q�|q�b�����b��}��~j|�}�


� �� �������� 

¡+,'¢*:%£¤+¥¦,¤&738:(0*(9+8+:§:̈3+©'ª3+:«7,+:§:¬87ª'3'+1:¬2ª¢971+:0®+9:¬2ª¢971+

ējb°±b�kof²ofrb]̂ ³óib�âmµb�l̀_l̀bbbbbbbn̄ej°±¶±·̧û r̂f³̂�±°¶±°¶°¹±ºp

»G¼F½T\

S¾W¾¿

ÀGLQUGHQ

Á

ÂÃÁÄM¾MÅM¾MÆÇÈ

ÉPLQGJ

ÊURXYKË

ÀTQK

SRPJQ\

Ã

ÅÌÅÌÁÂÁÅ

ENÉÍÎW

100

Item 6.



������������	
 �� �� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

����������� �� �� �� �����������

����� !" �� ��� ����� !"

#$%&'()**

+%(&$)*,

-./010*

+'*%,

2.%**.(3*

456%.
-56)7%51895:)

� �� �� �� �� �� �; �< �= �> �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��; ��<

�=

��

���

���

��;

��=

��

���

���

��;

��=

��

���

���

��;

?@AB

CD@EF

GHIJKLMNNOPMQRJSITLOUHVWSOXTWOYSVZI[I\MQO]V̂MWN

_̀ abcdefdghìj k̀bdlbmnobnm̀dpqkr

stteuhvt̀dẁ xnobqekddpqkr

8yzz 8{zz 8|zz 8}zz 8yzzz 8{zzz 8|zzz

~�g��dgsws����wl�

�������
������������������� ������������
�����

�>��������!������� ��
����������

��	 �������� ���� ������������

��������������������� ��

�������������
�����
����������������������

��

���!�������

�������� ��������� �����

�����������������������������!��������������

w�l����

��������
��������
��!"�������������

��������
��������������
��!"����

��=�������� ������
��!"���������!�� �

���������	 �������
��������
��!"����

�w~s�~s�d�����d� ����l~ ��


�����������¡�¢

£)*%¤(8#¥¦)§̈*¦$5168&.(&7)6)8©8ª1)«%¬1)85*)8.®)78̄0¬¤75/)

°gld±²d�mqh³qhtd_̀ q́µkd�c̀o¶d nbanbdddddddp°gl±²·²̧¹ẁ t̀h́ �̀²±·²±·±º²»r

¼I½H¾V̂

U¿Y¿À

ÁINSWIJS

Â

ÃÄÂÅO¿OÆO¿OÇÈÉ

ÊRNSIL

ËWTZ[MÌ

ÁVSM

UTRLŜ

Ä

ÆÍÆÍÂÃÂÆ

GPÊÎÏY

101

Item 6.



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������	�
���������
���	
��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,

�EFGH��IJKLM�NO��PGQRLS�TTU��PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH� �XJYXZ[S� �I[LV� �E[YV

\]\ \̂ _̀abc\ \dêfgh\ \i]jk\ \l\ \mno\ \j\ \lpmpjijl\ \]
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�PGqqVRLK�[HGQL�LXJK�EFGHrVq

�Rstuvwsx�Fsyz{sx|zv}���G~|z�x���

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������
���
��

�rVRYLX�G��LXV�[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI��SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�LG��JFKL�G�VFr[S��SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�HVLZVVR�G�VFr[SK��SV[FK�� �N�M�

�IVKJYR�PGR�JIVRPV�rV�Vr�����M����� �H

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��G��LXV�JRJLJ[r�KLFQPLQFV�� �OMT

��JR[r�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��ET�� �TM�

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��EN�[�LVF�[R�G�VFr[S�� �OMT

�IJKLFJPL�LVqEVF[LQFV�PGRKL[RL�� ��NM�

�KQHYF[IV�Vr[KLJP�qGIQrQK����PGQRLS���yz��� ��M��

�JRLVFVKL�F[LV�GF�LJqV��[rQV�G��qGRVS��EVFPVRL�� �UM�

�	
�
������
�����������
�����

�RQqHVF�G��KQqq[FS�GQLEQL�E[YVK�IVKJFVI�����IVKJYRK�E[YV��� ��

�q[���QRIK�[�[Jr[HrV�EVF�K�MSIM��GF�JRJLJ[r�IVKJYR��IGrr[FK��� ���M��

�q[�JqQq�[rrGZVI�LXJP�RVKK�G��JRJLJ[r�PGRKLFQPLJGR��JRPXVK��� ���M�

�[PPQqQr[LVI�q[��IVELX�G��[rr�G�VFr[SK��JRPXVK���V�PrQIJRY�rV�Vr�QE�� ��M�

��
����������

�[IL�[L�HVYJRRJRY�G��[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI���VXJPrVK�I[S��� �N���M

�[IL�[L�VRI�G��LZVRLS�SV[FK���VXJPrVK�I[S��� �TU��M

�GRV�IJFVPLJGR�T�SV[F�N���z~�VK[r���z}}z�xy��� ��MN��

�[�VF[YV�[EEFG[PX�KEVVI�LG�LXV�G�VFr[S��GRV�qEX��� �U�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S��GRV��G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR��qEX��� �O�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S��GRV��RGR�G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR���qEX�� ���M�

�EFGEGFLJGR�G��[IL�[FFJ�JRY�V[PX�XGQF�G��PGRKLFQPLJGR��EVFPVRL��� ��M�

�EVFPVRL�LFQP�K�JR�[IL�� �OM�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������� �¡¢�£�£¤¢ �¥ �£¤£¦£��� ��¡�¤ £��¤§�̈�©ª«ª¬¬©�®̈©̄ «̈©�°±���°�²��̈��®��¢³���́

102

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lpmpjijl\\\\j
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������JREQL�I[L[�PGRLJRQVI

���q���
rq�����������������q������
���

�

����sJRJsQs�GtVFu[S�LXJPvRVKK�wJRPXVKx��������������������������������������TMy

����GtVFu[S�PGRKLFQPLJGR�LJsV�wXGQFKzI[Sx����������������������������������NTMy

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�PGsE[PLVI�IVRKJLS�wLGRKzPMSMx������������������������NM{y

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�EFGIQPLJGR�F[LV�wLGRKzXGQFx������������������������TyyMy

����ZJILX�G|�V[PX�u[RV�w|VVLx����������������������������������������������NTMy

����|JFKL�SV[F�PGKL�G|�FGQLJRV�s[JRLVR[RPV�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx��������������yMyy

����[RRQ[u�JRPFVsVRL[u�JRPFV[KV�JR�s[JRLVR[RPV�PGKL�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx�����yMyy

������r
�����}���
�~�
����
���

����LF[||JP�sGIVu�QKVI�IQFJRY�GtVFu[SJRY������������������������������������N

����LGL[u�RQsHVF�G|�u[RVK�G|�LXV�|[PJuJLS�����������������������������������T

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK�JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�������������N

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK��JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx��������N

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx������������������yM�y

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx��������������yM�y

����IVLGQF�IJKL[RPV�[FGQRI�LXV�GtVFu[S��GRV�wsJuVKx�������������������������yMyy

���	�~��}�����
��������
�����
���

����������������s[LVFJ[uK�������PGKL�����V����EGJKKGR���sJRM����s[�M�K[ut[YV

��u[SVF�PGIV�������R[sV��������EVF�PS�sGIQuQK��F[LJG���IVELX���IVELX���EPLM

����N����[��[KEX�PGRP�EtsL����N�yMyy���yyyyyM���yM������TMyy����TMyy����yMyy

����T����H��|uV�JHuV�H[KV�������OMyy���OyyyyM���yM�����NOMyy���NOMyy���U�Myy

���������P��uJsV�LFV[LVI�KQHYF�N�Myy���TyyyyM���yM�y�����Myy�����Myy���{yMyy

����O����I��KQHYF[IVwTyyx�������TMyy�����yyyM���yMOy��TyyMyy��TyyMyy���{yMyy

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������¡���¢

103

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lpmpjijl\\\\k
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
���

�������PM�qVrVq�H�������KQss[FS�Gt�LXV�HVKL�IVKJYR�KLF[LVYJVK

��������������������������JR�GFIVF�Gt�JRPFV[KJRY�LGL[q�PGKL

���������������������������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��s[LVFJ[q�[FF[RYVsVRL���[HP���

��JRJLM�PGRKLM�PGKL�����uTMvU

��GrVFq[S�PGRKLM�PGKL����wMww

��QKVF�PGKL��������������wMww

��FGQLJRV�s[JRLM�PGKL����wMww

��K[qr[YV�r[qQV����������xMOy
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��LGL[q�PGKL������������TUMNz
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RQsHVF�Gt�q[SVFK��������u
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��q[SVF�IVELX�{JRPXVK|

�������I{N|��������������TMww

�������I{T|�������������NOMww

�������I{u|��������������zMww
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RGMGt�EVFtMEVFJGIK������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��EVFtM�LJsV�{SV[FK|

�������L{N|��������������OwM
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��GrVFq[S�EGqJPS{JRPX|

��{JRPqQIJRY�qVrVq�QE|
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������LXV�LGL[q�RQsHVF�Gt�tV[KJHqV�IVKJYRK�PGRKJIVFVI�Z[K���������N

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}~����}~�������������}���������}}}}}}}}�����}~����}��������}�������}��}}}����}�}}�}�}}�

104

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

������� ���� ����� ���� ����
�������
� �!����

���"#�$� ������ ���� ���� � �!����%���&

'()*+,-..

/),*(-.0

123454.

/+.)0

62)..2,7.

89:)2
19:-;)95<=9>-


�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�? 
�?��


�


���


��


���


��


���


��


���


��

���? ���? ���? ���@ ���@ ���@ ���@ ���@ ���@

���%�����
&

ABCDEFGHIJFKLHMMHNOP

QRHDEOJSSFNIFTCSJFGCUJBFKHOP


�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�? 
�?��


�


��


�


���


�


���


�


���


�


���


�


���

����
����

����

���@

����

���@

��V�

����

����

���%�����
&

WXYYHOZFGHIJFKLHMMHNOP

QRHDEOJSSFNIFTCSJFGCUJBFKHOP

[\]̂_̀abcd\efbghiajk

l
m
nm
o
%pq&

rms %to&
rmu mo n@�V?�v��

ms n
���V�

mu n
����ẁ ]]̂x_bghiajk

l
y
nm
z
%p{|

}~� mz n���@�v�V

m� n
���@@

���%�#�����
q�
��q
�{�#���&�����
%�������&

�#���
����� ���@
%�������&

��q
����� ����
%�������&

�#�����
q�
��q
�{�#���
��
�������q�$
��
��������
��#��$�

�����#�
��$
��
�����������������

����
q��
�q�#q
����������

��$
��$��"
�����@����

p� �pn ������ % &

p �p{n v�@����% &

gae�\x̂�]̂ebc�aefbchxej̀�̂hxk

���
$���"�
��
��
�

�a�̂_xb���ak����\j]behxeda]ab�b[ja�̂�jab�\�ab�b�]\�̂ĵ�aib�̀ �_d\iabh�adb�̀ �_d\ia

� ¡F¢£F¤JDRCOHSYHDF¥JSHZOFARJDEF¦XY§XYFFFFFFFK� ¡¢£̈£©ªWJMJCSJ«£¢̈£¢̈¢¬£P

®̄°±²³́

µ¶·¶̧

¹̄º»¼̄½»

¾

¿À¾ÁÂ¶ÂÃÂ¶ÂÄÅÆ

ÇÈº»̄É

Ê¼ËÌÍÎÏ

¹³»Î

µËÈÉ»́

À

ÃÐÄÐ¾¿¾Ã

ÑÒÇÓÔ·

105

Item 6.



������������	
 �� �� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

��	��
���
����������� �� �� �� ��	��
���
�����������

����������� �� �� �� �����������

�� ��!"# �� ��� �� ��!"#

$%&'()*++

,&)'%*+-

./0121+

,(+&-

3/&++/)4+

567&/
.67*8&629:6;*

� �� �� �� �� �� �< �= �� �> �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��< ��=

��

��

���

���

��<

���

��

���

���

��<

���

��

���

���

��<

?@?A

BB@CC

DEFGHIJKKLMJNOGPFQILRESTPLUQTLVPSWFXFYJNLZS[JTK

\]̂_̀abcadef]g]h_ai_jkl_kj]amnho

pqqbresq]at]ukl_nbhaamnho

9vww 9xww 9yww 9zww 9vwww 9xwww 9ywww

{|d}~adptp��~�ti�

�������
�������������������!� ����������
�����

�>��������"�������!��
�� �������

��	! ���� ��!����!������������

���������������������!� 

��������� ��
�����
����������������������

��



��������� �!��
������!������!�������������!���
������

�!���!�����������"����!�������������"���������"�������

t�i}�~�

���������
��������
��"#������������ 

��������
��������������
��"#����

�����������!������
��"#������� �"��!�

�=�>�����	! ���� �
��������
��"#����

~t{p�{p�a�����a��|��}i{�|�


������������� 

¡*+&¢)9$£¤*¥¦+¤%6279'/)'8*7*9§9̈2*©&ª2*9«6+*9§9¬76ª&2&*09¬1ª¢860*9/®*89¬1ª¢860*

d̄ia°±a~jne²neqa\]³ńha�̀ ]lµa�k_̂k_aaaaaaam̄di°±¶±·̧t]q]e³]�±°¶±°¶°¹±ºo

»F¼E½S[

R¾V¾¿

ÀFKPTFGP

Á

ÂÃÁÄL¾LÅL¾LÆÇÈ

ÉOKPFI

ÊTQWXJË

ÀSPJ

RQOIP[

Ã

ÅÌÆÌÁÂÁÅ

DMÉÍÎV

106

Item 6.



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������	�
���������
���	
��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,

�EFGH��IJKLM�NO��PGQRLS�TTU��PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH� �XJYXZ[S� �I[LV� �E[YV

\]\ \̂ _̀abc\ \dêfgh\ \i]jk\ \l\ \mno\ \j\ \lpmpjijl\ \]
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�PGqqVRLK�[HGQL�LXJK�EFGHrVq

�Rstuvwsx�[yzsy{v|�}~��������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������
���
��

�rVRYLX�G��LXV�[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI�}SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�LG��JFKL�G�VFr[S�}SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�HVLZVVR�G�VFr[SK�}SV[FK�� �N�M�

�IVKJYR�PGR�JIVRPV�rV�Vr�}���M����� �P

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��G��LXV�JRJLJ[r�KLFQPLQFV�� �OM�

��JR[r�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��ET�� ��M�

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��EN�[�LVF�[R�G�VFr[S�� �OMT

�IJKLFJPL�LVqEVF[LQFV�PGRKL[RL�� ��NM�

�KQHYF[IV�Vr[KLJP�qGIQrQK����PGQRLS�}��{��� ��M��

�JRLVFVKL�F[LV�GF�LJqV��[rQV�G��qGRVS�}EVFPVRL�� �UM�

�	
�
������
�����������
�����

�RQqHVF�G��KQqq[FS�GQLEQL�E[YVK�IVKJFVI�}���IVKJYRK�E[YV��� ��

�q[���QRIK�[�[Jr[HrV�EVF�K MSIM��GF�JRJLJ[r�IVKJYR�}IGrr[FK��� ���M��

�q[�JqQq�[rrGZVI�LXJP¡RVKK�G��JRJLJ[r�PGRKLFQPLJGR�}JRPXVK��� �¢�M�

�[PPQqQr[LVI�q[��IVELX�G��[rr�G�VFr[SK�}JRPXVK��}V�PrQIJRY�rV�Vr�QE�� �¢M�

��
����������

�[IL�[L�HVYJRRJRY�G��[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI�}�VXJPrVK�I[S��� �����M

�[IL�[L�VRI�G��LZVRLS�SV[FK�}�VXJPrVK�I[S��� �N����M

�GRV�IJFVPLJGR�T�SV[F�N���{£�VK[r�}¤{||{¥x���� �TMN��

�[�VF[YV�[EEFG[PX�KEVVI�LG�LXV�G�VFr[S�¦GRV}qEX��� �U�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S�¦GRV�}G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR�}qEX��� �O�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S�¦GRV�}RGR�G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR��}qEX�� ���M�

�EFGEGFLJGR�G��[IL�[FFJ�JRY�V[PX�XGQF�G��PGRKLFQPLJGR�}EVFPVRL��� �¢M�

�EVFPVRL�LFQP¡K�JR�[IL�� ��M�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

§§̈©ª«¬§̈«®¬̄°±«±²°®§³®¬±²±́±©§§ §§̄²®±§̈²µ©¶§·̧¹̧º»º·§¼¶¹º¶¹½§¾¿§§§¾«À©§¶§§¼§§°Á§§§Â

107

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lpmpjijl\\\\j
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������JREQL�I[L[�PGRLJRQVI

���q���
rq�����������������q������
���

�

����sJRJsQs�GtVFu[S�LXJPvRVKK�wJRPXVKx��������������������������������������TMy

����GtVFu[S�PGRKLFQPLJGR�LJsV�wXGQFKzI[Sx����������������������������������NTMy

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�PGsE[PLVI�IVRKJLS�wLGRKzPMSMx������������������������NM{y

����[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�EFGIQPLJGR�F[LV�wLGRKzXGQFx������������������������TyyMy

����ZJILX�G|�V[PX�u[RV�w|VVLx����������������������������������������������NTMy

����|JFKL�SV[F�PGKL�G|�FGQLJRV�s[JRLVR[RPV�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx��������������yMyy

����[RRQ[u�JRPFVsVRL[u�JRPFV[KV�JR�s[JRLVR[RPV�PGKL�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx�����yMyy

������r
�����}���
�~�
����
���

����LF[||JP�sGIVu�QKVI�IQFJRY�GtVFu[SJRY������������������������������������N

����LGL[u�RQsHVF�G|�u[RVK�G|�LXV�|[PJuJLS�����������������������������������T

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK�JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�������������N

����RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK��JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx��������N

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx������������������yM�y

����IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx��������������yM�y

����IVLGQF�IJKL[RPV�[FGQRI�LXV�GtVFu[S��GRV�wsJuVKx�������������������������yMyy

���	�~��}�����
��������
�����
���

����������������s[LVFJ[uK�������PGKL�����V����EGJKKGR���sJRM����s[�M�K[ut[YV

��u[SVF�PGIV�������R[sV��������EVF�PS�sGIQuQK��F[LJG���IVELX���IVELX���EPLM

����N����[��[KEX�PGRP�EtsL����N�yMyy����yyyyM���yM�������M�y�����Myy����yMyy

����T����H��|uV�JHuV�H[KV�������OMyy���OyyyyM���yM�����NTMyy���N�Myy���U�Myy

���������P��uGZ�EJ�|Juu��������N�Myy���TyyyyM���yM�y���O�Myy���O�Myy���{yMyy

����O����I��KQHYF[IVwTyyx�������TMyy�����yyyM���yMOy��TyyMyy��TyyMyy���{yMyy

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������¡���¢

108

Item 6.



����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������	�
���������
���	
���������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,,,

,,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

��EFGH���IJKLM�NO���PGQRLS�TTU���PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH�����XJYXZ[S�������I[LV����E[YV

\\]\\\\\\\̂ _̀abc\\\\\\\dêfgh\\\\\\i]jk\\\\l\\\\\mno\\\\j\\\\\\\\\\lpmpjijl\\\\k
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
���

�������PM�qVrVq�P�������KQss[FS�Gt�LXV�HVKL�IVKJYR�KLF[LVYJVK

��������������������������JR�GFIVF�Gt�JRPFV[KJRY�LGL[q�PGKL

���������������������������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��s[LVFJ[q�[FF[RYVsVRL���[HP���

��JRJLM�PGRKLM�PGKL�����uvMwT

��GrVFq[S�PGRKLM�PGKL����vMvv

��QKVF�PGKL��������������vMvv

��FGQLJRV�s[JRLM�PGKL����vMvv

��K[qr[YV�r[qQV����������wMwT
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��LGL[q�PGKL������������xNMvv
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RQsHVF�Gt�q[SVFK��������y
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��q[SVF�IVELX�zJRPXVK{

�������IzN{��������������xMxv

�������IzT{�������������NTMvv

�������Izy{�������������O|Mvv
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��RGMGt�EVFtMEVFJGIK������N
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��EVFtM�LJsV�zSV[FK{

�������LzN{��������������TvM
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��GrVFq[S�EGqJPSzJRPX{

��zJRPqQIJRY�qVrVq�QE{
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������LXV�LGL[q�RQsHVF�Gt�tV[KJHqV�IVKJYRK�PGRKJIVFVI�Z[K��������Nw

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}~����}~�������������}���������}}}}}}}}�����}~����}��������}�������}��}}}����}�}}�}�}}�

109

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

������� ����� ����� ���� ���
��
����

��� !�"� ������ ���� ���� �#�$%�&�'���(

)*+,-./00

1+.,*/02

3456760

1-0+2

84+004.90

:;<+4
3;</=+;7>?;@/


� 
A 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�B


�


��


�


���


�


���


�


���


�


���

���� ���A ��A� ���B ���B
���B ���B ���B ���B

���'�����
(

CDEFGHIJKLHMNJOOJPQR

STJFGQLUUHPKHVEULHIEWLDHMJQR


� 
A 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�B


�


��


��


��


��


���


���


���


���


���


���
��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���

���'�����
(

XYZZJQ[HIJKLHMNJOOJPQR

STJFGQLUUHPKHVEULHIEWLDHMJQR

\]̂_̀abcde]fgchijbkl

m
n
on
p
'qr(

snt 'up(
snv np oB�A��w��

nt o
���A�

nv o
����xâ _̂ỳchijbkl

m
z
on
{
'q|}

~�� n{ o���B�w�A

n� o
���BB

���'�!�����
r�
��r
�|�!���(�����
'�������(

�!���
����� ���B
'�������(

%�r
����� ������
'�������(

�!�����
r�
��r
�|�!���
��
�������r�"
��
��������
��!��"�

�����!�
��"
��
������������������

����
r��
�r�!r
�&��������

��"
��"�� 
�&����A����

q� �qo ������ ' (

q �q|o w����� ' (

hbf�]y_�̂_fcd�bfgcdiyfka�_iyl

���
"��� �
��
��
�

�b�_̀yc���bl����]k̂cfiyfeb̂bc�c\kb�_�kbc�]�bc�c�̂]�_k_�bjc�a�̀e]jbci�bec�a�̀e]jb

 ¡¢H£¤H¥LFTEQJUZJFH¦LUJ[QHCTLFGH§YZ̈YZHHHHHHHM ¡¢£¤©¤ª«XLOLEUL¬¤£©¤£©£¤®R

°̄±²³́ µ

¶·̧·¹

º°»¼½°¾¼

¿

ÀÁ¿ÂÃ·ÃÄÃ·ÃÅÆÇ

ÈÉ»¼°Ê

Ë½ÌÍÎÏÐ

º́ ¼Ï

¶ÌÉÊ¼µ

Á

ÄÑÅÑ¿À¿Ä

ÒÓÈÔÕ̧

110

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

������ � ������ ����� ���� �!�"#�$�%���&

'()*+,-..

/),*(-.0

123454.

/+.)0

62)..2,7.

89:)2
19:-;)95<=9>-


? 
@ 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�A


�


��


�


���


�


���


�


���


�


���

���� ��A�
��?@ ��@? ���A ���A ���A

���A ���A

���%�����
&

BCDEFGHIJKGLMINNIOPQ

RSIEFPKTTGOJGUDTKGHDVKCGLIPQ


? 
@ 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�� 
�A


�


��


��


��


��


��


��


A�

?��
����

����

�?��

���A

����

�@��

���@

���A

���%�����
&

WXYYIPZGHIJKGLMINNIOPQ

RSIEFPKTTGOJGUDTKGHDVKCGLIPQ

[\]̂_̀abcd\efbghiajk

l
m
nm
o
%pq&

rms %to&
rmu mo nA�@��v��

ms n
���@�

mu n
�?��ẁ ]]̂x_bghiajk

l
y
nm
z
%p{|

}~� mz n���A�v�@

m� n
���AA

���%�������
q�
��q
�{�����&�����
%�������&

�����
����� ���A
%�������&

#�q
����� ���A�
%�������&

�������
q�
��q
�{�����
��
�������q� 
��
��������
����� �

�������
�� 
�?
������������������

����
q��
�q��q
�$��������

�� 
�� ���
�$����@����

p� �pn ������ % &

p �p{n v������% &

gae�\x̂�]̂ebc�aefbchxej̀�̂hxk

���
 �����
��
��
�

�a�̂_xb���ak����\j]behxeda]ab�b[ja�̂�jab�\�abh�adb�̀ �_d\ia

�� G¡¢G£KESDPITYIEG¤KTIZPGBSKEFG¥XY¦XYGGGGGGGL�� ¡¢§¢̈©WKNKDTKª¢¡§¢¡§¡«¢¬Q

®̄°±²³

µ́¶µ·

®̧¹º»®¼º

½

¾¿½ÀÁµÁÂÁµÁÃÄÅ

ÆÇ¹º®È

É»ÊËÌÍÎ

²̧ºÍ

ẾÇÈº³

¿

ÂÏÃÏ½¾½Â

ÐÑÆÒÓ¶

111

Item 6.



������������	
 ��� ��� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

����������� ��� �� �� �����������

���������� �� �� �� ���������� 

�!"��#$% �� ��� �!"��#$%

&'()*+,--

.(+)',-/

012343-

.*-(/

51(--1+6-

789(1
089,:(84;<8=,

� �� �� �� �� �� �� �> �� �? �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��>

��

��

���

���

���

���

��

���

���

���

���

��

���

���

���

@A@B

CCADD

EFGHIJKLLMNKOPHQGRJMSFTUQMVRUMWQTXGYGZKOM[T\KUL

]̂ _̀abcdbefĝh î̀bj̀klm̀lk̂bnoip

qrrcsftr̂bû vlm̀ocibbnoip

;wxx ;yxx ;zxx ;{xx ;wxxx ;yxxx ;zxxx

|}e~�bequq����uj�

������ 
�!��!���!�����!!���#�"����������
���� 

�?���� �!�$!����!�#��
��"!����!�

��	#"���!"��#�!��#��!�!������!

������ �!�������!!���#�"

���������"!�
!����
������������������!���

� 



��������!"�#��
!�����#������#����������!��#���
����� 

�#���#�������!���$����#�������������$���������$������ 

u�j~���

�������� 
��������
��$%�!����!����!"

�������� 
�!������!�����
��$%�!��

������� ���#����!�
��$%�!����!"�$��#�

�>�?���� 	#"���!"�
��������
��$%�!��

�u|q�|q�b�����b��}��~j|�}�


�!��!�������� 

¡,-(¢+;&£¤,¥¦-¤'849;)1+):,9,;§;̈4,©(ª4,;«8-,;§;¬98ª(4(,2;¬3ª¢:82,;1®,:;¬3ª¢:82,

ējb°±b�kof²ofrb]̂ ³óib�âmµb�l̀_l̀bbbbbbbn̄ej°±¶±·̧û r̂f³̂�±°¶±°¶°¹±ºp

»G¼F½T\

S¾W¾¿

ÀGLQUGHQ

Á

ÂÃÁÄM¾MÅM¾MÆÇÈ

ÉPLQGJ

ÊURXYKË

ÀTQK

SRPJQ\

Ã

ÅÌÆÌÁÂÁÅ

ENÉÍÎW

112

Item 6.



������������	
 ��� ��� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

����������� �� �� �� �����������

�� ��!"# �� ��� �� ��!"#

$%&'()*++

,&)'%*+-

./0121+

,(+&-

3/&++/)4+

567&/
.67*8&629:6;*

� �� �� �� �� �� �� �< �= �> �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��<

�=

��

���

���

���

��=

��

���

���

���

��=

��

���

���

���

?@AB

CD@EF

GHIJKLMNNOPMQRJSITLOUHVWSOXTWOYSVZI[I\MQO]V̂MWN

_̀ abcdefdghìj k̀bdlbmnobnm̀dpqkr

stteuhvt̀dẁ xnobqekddpqkr

9yzz 9{zz 9|zz 9}zz 9yzzz 9{zzz 9|zzz

~�g��dgsws����wl�

�������
�������������������!� ����������
�����

�>��������"�������!��
�� �������

��	! ���� ��!����!������������

���������������������!� 

���������� ��
�����
����������������������

��

���"����� �

������ �!���������!�����

�������������������� ��������"������ �������

w�l����

��������
��������
��"#������������ 

�<�������
��������������
��"#����

��=��������!������
��"#������� �"��!�

���������	! ���� �
��������
��"#����

�w~s�~s�d�����d� ����l~ ��


�����������¡�¢

£*+&¤)9$¥¦*§̈+¦%6279'/)'8*7*9©9ª2*«&¬2*96+*9/®*89̄1¬¤860*

°gld±²d�mqh³qhtd_̀ q́µkd�c̀o¶d nbanbdddddddp°gl±²·²̧¹ẁ t̀h́ �̀²±·²±·±º²»r

¼I½H¾V̂

U¿Y¿À

ÁINSWIJS

Â

ÃÄÂÅO¿OÆO¿OÇÈÉ

ÊRNSIL

ËWTZ[MÌ

ÁVSM

UTRLŜ

Ä

ÆÍÇÍÂÃÂÆ

GPÊÎÏY

113

Item 6.



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������	�
���������
���	
��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,

�EFGH��IJKLM�NO��PGQRLS�TTU��PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH� �XJYXZ[S� �I[LV� �E[YV

\]\ \̂ _̀abc\ \dêfgh\ \i]jk\ \l\ \mno\ \j\ \lpmpjijl\ \]
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�PGqqVRLK�[HGQL�LXJK�EFGHrVq

�Rstuvwsx�[yzsy{v|�}~������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������
���
��

�rVRYLX�G��LXV�[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI�}SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�LG��JFKL�G�VFr[S�}SV[FK�� �T�M�

�qJRJqQq�LJqV�HVLZVVR�G�VFr[SK�}SV[FK�� �N�M�

�IVKJYR�PGR�JIVRPV�rV�Vr�}���M����� �P

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��G��LXV�JRJLJ[r�KLFQPLQFV�� �OM�

��JR[r�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��ET�� ��M�

�KVF�JPV[HJrJLS�JRIV��EN�[�LVF�[R�G�VFr[S�� �OMT

�IJKLFJPL�LVqEVF[LQFV�PGRKL[RL�� ��NM�

�KQHYF[IV�Vr[KLJP�qGIQrQK����PGQRLS�}��{��� ��M��

�JRLVFVKL�F[LV�GF�LJqV��[rQV�G��qGRVS�}EVFPVRL�� �UM�

�	
�
������
�����������
�����

�RQqHVF�G��KQqq[FS�GQLEQL�E[YVK�IVKJFVI�}���IVKJYRK�E[YV��� ��

�q[���QRIK�[�[Jr[HrV�EVF�K MSIM��GF�JRJLJ[r�IVKJYR�}IGrr[FK��� ���M��

�q[�JqQq�[rrGZVI�LXJP¡RVKK�G��JRJLJ[r�PGRKLFQPLJGR�}JRPXVK��� �¢�M�

�[PPQqQr[LVI�q[��IVELX�G��[rr�G�VFr[SK�}JRPXVK��}V�PrQIJRY�rV�Vr�QE�� �¢M�

��
����������

�[IL�[L�HVYJRRJRY�G��[R[rSKJK�EVFJGI�}�VXJPrVK�I[S��� �����M

�[IL�[L�VRI�G��LZVRLS�SV[FK�}�VXJPrVK�I[S��� �N����M

�GRV�IJFVPLJGR�T�SV[F�N���{£�VK[r�}¤{||{¥x���� �TMN��

�[�VF[YV�[EEFG[PX�KEVVI�LG�LXV�G�VFr[S�¦GRV}qEX��� �U�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S�¦GRV�}G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR�}qEX��� �O�M�

�[�VF[YV�KEVVI�LXFGQYX�G�VFr[S�¦GRV�}RGR�G�VFr[S�IJFVPLJGR��}qEX�� ���M�

�EFGEGFLJGR�G��[IL�[FFJ�JRY�V[PX�XGQF�G��PGRKLFQPLJGR�}EVFPVRL��� �¢M�

�EVFPVRL�LFQP¡K�JR�[IL�� ��M�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

§§̈©ª«¬§̈«®¬̄°±«±²°®§³®¬±²±́±©§§ §§̄²®±§̈²µ©¶§·̧¹̧º»º·§º¶º·¶º·§¼½§§§¼«¾©§¶§§¿§§°À§§§Á

114

Item 6.



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������	�
���������
���	
��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,

�EFGH��IJKLM�NO��PGQRLS�TTU��PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH� �XJYXZ[S� �I[LV� �E[YV

\]\ \̂ _̀abc\ \dêfgh\ \i]jk\ \l\ \mno\ \j\ \lpmpjijl\ \j
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�JREQL�I[L[�PGRLJRQVI

�q���
rq�����������������q������

�sJRJsQs�GtVFu[S�LXJPvRVKK�wJRPXVKx�� �TMy

�GtVFu[S�PGRKLFQPLJGR�LJsV�wXGQFKzI[Sx�� �NTMy

�[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�PGsE[PLVI�IVRKJLS�wLGRKzPMSMx�� �NM{y

�[KEX[uLJP�PGRPFVLV�EFGIQPLJGR�F[LV�wLGRKzXGQFx�� �TyyMy

�ZJILX�G|�V[PX�u[RV�w|VVLx�� �NTMy

�|JFKL�SV[F�PGKL�G|�FGQLJRV�s[JRLVR[RPV�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx�� �yMyy

�[RRQ[u�JRPFVsVRL[u�JRPFV[KV�JR�s[JRLVR[RPV�PGKL�wIGuu[FKzu[RV�sJuVx� �yMyy

����r
�����}���
�~�
����

�LF[||JP�sGIVu�QKVI�IQFJRY�GtVFu[SJRY�� �N

�LGL[u�RQsHVF�G|�u[RVK�G|�LXV�|[PJuJLS�� �T

�RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK�JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx� �N

�RQsHVF�G|�GEVR�u[RVK��JR�FVKLFJPLVI��GRV�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx� �N

�IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wGtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx�� �yM�y

�IJKL[RPV�LF[||JP�JK�KuGZVI�wRGR�GtVFu[S�IJFVPLJGRx�wsJuVKx� �yM�y

�IVLGQF�IJKL[RPV�[FGQRI�LXV�GtVFu[S��GRV�wsJuVKx�� �yMyy

�	�~��}�����
��������
�����

�s[LVFJ[uK� �PGKL� �V� �EGJKKGR��sJRM� �s[�M�K[ut[YV

�u[SVF�PGIV� ��R[sV�� �EVF�PS�sGIQuQK��F[LJG��IVELX��IVELX��EPLM

�N� �[��[KEX�PGRP�EtsL���N�yMyy����yyyyM��yM��� ��M�y����M�y���yMyy

�T� �H��|uV�JHuV�H[KV�� ��OMyy��OyyyyM��yM����NOMyy���N�Myy��U�Myy

��� �P��KL[HJuJ�VI�KQHYF��N�Myy��TyyyyM��yM�y� ��Myy����Myy��{yMyy

�O� �I��KQHYF[IVwTyyx�� �TMyy� ��yyyM��yMOy��TyyMyy��TyyMyy��{yMyy

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������� 

115

Item 6.



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������	�
���������
���	
��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"��#�"� ��������������������������������������������������������$%&%'(%)�������*�+

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,-./01023,405672,38-0,9,:,;;,.<-,=,>?0@,A.50,=,53.A,5A7B,C/0B,5DA7B.40,

�EFGH��IJKLM�NO��PGQRLS�TTU��PGRLM��KVPLM��WGH� �XJYXZ[S� �I[LV� �E[YV

\]\ \̂ _̀abc\ \dêfgh\ \i]jk\ \l\ \mno\ \j\ \lpmpjijl\ \k
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

PMqVrVq�P �KQss[FS�Gt�LXV�HVKL�IVKJYR�KLF[LVYJVK

��JR�GFIVF�Gt�JRPFV[KJRY�LGL[q�PGKL

��N
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�s[LVFJ[q�[FF[RYVsVRL��[HP�

�JRJLM�PGRKLM�PGKL�� �OUMTu

�GrVFq[S�PGRKLM�PGKL���vMvv

�QKVF�PGKL�� �vMvv

�FGQLJRV�s[JRLM�PGKL���vMvv

�K[qr[YV�r[qQV�� �wMwT
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�LGL[q�PGKL� �OvMwx
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�RQsHVF�Gt�q[SVFK� �x
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�q[SVF�IVELX�yJRPXVKz

�IyNz� �uMuv

�IyTz� �NOMvv

�Iyxz� �{Mvv
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�RGMGt�EVFtMEVFJGIK� �N
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�EVFtM�LJsV�ySV[FKz

��LyNz��������������TNM
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�GrVFq[S�EGqJPSyJRPXz

�yJRPqQIJRY�qVrVq�QEz
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�LXV�LGL[q�RQsHVF�Gt�tV[KJHqV�IVKJYRK�PGRKJIVFVI�Z[K� �|

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������

}}~����}~�������������}���������}} }}�����}~����}��������}�������}��}}}����}�}}�}�}}�

116

Item 6.



�� ���� ������ ���� ���	
����
���

���� ����� ����� ���� ��������
����

������� ���� ����� ���� ��������� 
�!�"#

���$%�&� ������ ���� ���� �!�"#� �'���(

)*+,-./00

1+.,*/02

3456760

1-0+2

84+004.90

:;<+4
3;</=+;7>?;@/


�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


��


�


���


�


���


�


���


�


���

��A� ���� ���� ���B ���B ��B� ��B� ���A ���A

���'�����
(

CDEFGHIJKLHMNJOOJPQR

STJFGQLUUHPKHVEULHIEWLDHMJQR


�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
���� 
�� 
����


�


�


��


��


��


��


��


��

����
���B

����

���A

����

���A

����

����

����

���'�����
(

XYZZJQ[HIJKLHMNJOOJPQR

STJFGQLUUHPKHVEULHIEWLDHMJQR

\]̂_̀abcde]fgchijbkl

m
n
on
p
'qr(

snt 'up(
snv np oA�B��w��

nt o
���B�

nv o
����xâ _̂ỳchijbkl

m
z
on
{
'q|}

~�� n{ o���A�w�B

n� o
���AA

���'�%�����
r�
��r
�|�%���(�����
'�������(

�%���
����� ���B
'�������(

#�r
����� �����
'�������(

�%�����
r�
��r
�|�%���
��
�������r�&
��
��������
��%��&�

�����%�
��&
��
������������������

����
r��
�r�%r
� ��������

��&
��&��$
� ����B����

q� �qo ������ ' (

q �q|o w������' (

hbf�]y_�̂_fcd�bfgcdiyfka�_iyl

���
&���$�
��
��
�

�b�_̀yc���bl����]k̂cfiyfeb̂bc�c\kb�_�kbc�]�bc�c�̂]�_k_�bjc�a�̀e]jbci�bec�a�̀e]jb

 ¡¢H£¤H¥LFTEQJUZJFH¦LUJ[QHCTLFGH§YZ̈YZHHHHHHHM ¡¢£¤©¤ª«XLOLEUL¬¤£©¤£©£¤®R

°̄±²³́ µ

¶·̧·¹

º°»¼½°¾¼

¿

ÀÁ¿ÂÃ·ÃÄÃ·ÃÅÆÇ

ÈÉ»¼°Ê

Ë½ÌÍÎÏÐ

º́ ¼Ï

¶ÌÉÊ¼µ

Á

ÄÑÅÑ¿À¿Ä

ÒÓÈÔÕ̧

117

Item 6.



������������	
 ��� ��� ��� ������������	


������������� ��� �� ��� �������������

�
�������������� �� �� �� �
��������������

���������� �� �� �� ���������� 

�!"��#$% �� ��� �!"��#$%

&'()*+,--

.(+)',-/

012343-

.*-(/

51(--1+6-

789(1
089,:(84;<8=,

� �� �� �� �� �� �� �> �� �? �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��>

��

��

���

���

���

���

��

���

���

���

���

��

���

���

���

@A@B

CCADD

EFGHIJKLLMNKOPHQGRJMSFTUQMVRUMWQTXGYGZKOM[T\KUL

]̂ _̀abcdbefĝh î̀bj̀klm̀lk̂bnoip

qrrcsftr̂bû vlm̀ocibbnoip

;wxx ;yxx ;zxx ;{xx ;wxxx ;yxxx ;zxxx

|}e~�bequq����uj�

������ 
�!��!���!�����!!���#�"����������
���� 

�?���� �!�$!����!�#��
��"!����!�

��	#"���!"��#�!��#��!�!������!

������ �!�������!!���#�"

���������"!�
!����
������������������!���

� 



��������!"�#��
!�����#������#����������!��#���
����� 

�#���#�������!���$����#�������������$���������$������ 

u�j~���

�������� 
��������
��$%�!����!����!"

�>������ 
�!������!�����
��$%�!��

������� ���#����!�
��$%�!����!"�$��#�

�>�?���� 	#"���!"�
��������
��$%�!��

�u|q�|q�b�����b��}��~j|�}�


�!��!������ �¡

¢,-(£+;&¤¥,¦§-¥'849;)1+):,9,;̈;©4,ª(«4,;¬8-,;̈;98«(4(®,2;3«£:82,;1̄,:;3«£:82,

°ejb±²b�kof³ofrb]̂ óµib�âm¶b�l̀_l̀bbbbbbbn°ej±²·²̧¹û r̂f́ �̂²±·²±·±º²»p

¼G½F¾T\

S¿W¿À

ÁGLQUGHQ

Â

ÃÄÂÅM¿MÆM¿MÇÈÉ

ÊPLQGJ

ËURXYKÌ

ÁTQK

SRPJQ\

Ä

ÆÍÇÍÂÃÂÆ

ENÊÎÏW

118

Item 6.



1

Brad J. Carabajal PE

From: Nikki Conley <nconley@gbateam.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 3:28 PM

To: Brad J. Carabajal PE

Cc: John A. Alvarez II; 'Scott Dunlop'; Pauline Gray; Lance Zeplin; Matthew Woodard

Subject: RE: Newhaven - Pavement Section Comments

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Brad, 

A er reviewing the Supplemental Pavement recommenda ons report for Newhaven Subdivision, the City is recep ve to 

these updates to your proposed op on 2 for each street type based on Manor’s historical pavement performance: 

• Use Geogrid for both street types 

• Meet or exceed a treated subgrade thickness of at least 16” 

• Consider cement stabilized treated subgrade   

 

For this requested excep on to the City criteria, the HMAC surface, HMAC base, and flex base thickness shown are 

acceptable in op on 2 for each street type; however, the City has experienced be er performance with deeper depths 

of treated subgrade, therefore, 16” is noted above.  

 

 

 

 

 

Nikki Conley PE (MO,KS,TX, IL) Senior Engineer 

16305 Swingley Ridge Road, Ste 300  | Chesterfield, Missouri 

9601 Amberglen Boulevard, Ste 109  | Austin, Texas 

d 737.247.7536  

      

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message including a achments, if any, is intended for the person or en ty to which it is addressed and may contain 

confiden al and/or privileged material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribu on is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact 

the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

From: Brad J. Carabajal PE <bcarabajal@quiddity.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2024 8:37 AM 

To: Nikki Conley <nconley@gbateam.com>; Pauline Gray <pgray@gbateam.com> 

Cc: John A. Alvarez II <jalvarez@quiddity.com>; 'Scott Dunlop' <sdunlop@manortx.gov> 

Subject: RE: Newhaven - Pavement Section Comments 

 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

119

Item 6.



2

Good morning Nikki, 

  

I wanted to follow up on this review.  

  

Thanks,  

  

  

Brad Carabajal, P.E. 

Project Engineer
 

Email: bcarabajal@quiddity.com

T: 512-685-5117
        

  

  

From: Nikki Conley <nconley@gbateam.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 5:33 PM 

To: Brad J. Carabajal PE <bcarabajal@quiddity.com>; Pauline Gray <pgray@gbateam.com> 

Cc: John A. Alvarez II <jalvarez@quiddity.com>; 'Scott Dunlop' <sdunlop@manortx.gov> 

Subject: RE: Newhaven - Pavement Section Comments 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

  

Brad, 

Thank you this is under review. 

  

Nikki Conley PE (MO, KS, TX, IL) Senior Engineer  

 d 737.247.7536 

  

  

  

From: Brad J. Carabajal PE <bcarabajal@quiddity.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 3:01 PM 

To: Nikki Conley <nconley@gbateam.com>; Pauline Gray <pgray@gbateam.com> 

Cc: John A. Alvarez II <jalvarez@quiddity.com>; 'Scott Dunlop' <sdunlop@manortx.gov> 

Subject: RE: Newhaven - Pavement Section Comments 

  
CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click or open attachments unless you 

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good afternoon Nikki and Pauline,  

  

I wanted to follow up on this. Have you been able to review the updated proposal from Raba Kistner? 

  

Thanks, 

  

  

Brad Carabajal, P.E. 
Project Engineer
 

Email: bcarabajal@quiddity.com

T: 512-685-5117
        

  

120

Item 6.



3

  

From: Brad J. Carabajal PE  

Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 8:02 AM 

To: Nikki Conley <nconley@gbateam.com>; Pauline Gray <pgray@gbateam.com> 

Cc: John A. Alvarez II <jalvarez@quiddity.com>; Scott Dunlop <sdunlop@manortx.gov> 

Subject: Newhaven - Pavement Section Comments 

  

Good morning Nikki and Pauline,  

  

See attached for the updated letter from Raba Kistner. They added a pro and con section. Option 2 has been 

provided as a section representing RK standard practice. We would like to get this variance on next month’s PNZ 

agenda if possible.  

  

Thanks, 

  

Brad Carabajal, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

 

  

bcarabajal@quiddity.com 

 

 

  

512-685-5117 
  

  

  

3100 Alvin Devane Blvd #150 , Austin , Texas,  78741, United States 
 

 

www.quiddity.com  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

  

  

  

 
This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for the named recipient(s) and may contain information that is legally privileged, confidential, or exempt from 
disclosure under applicable law. If you have received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), you may not retain copy or use this e-mail or any 
attachment for any purpose or disclose all or any part of the contents to any other person. Any such dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail or its 
attachments is strictly prohibited. Please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this e-mail and any attachment from your computer and/or 
electronic devices. Any personal views or opinions expressed by the writer may not necessarily reflect the views or opinions of Quiddity Engineering, Inc. 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and 
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or 
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in 
Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; 
Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

 

 
This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for the named recipient(s) and may contain information that is legally privileged, confidential, or exempt from 
disclosure under applicable law. If you have received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), you may not retain copy or use this e-mail or any 
attachment for any purpose or disclose all or any part of the contents to any other person. Any such dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail or its 
attachments is strictly prohibited. Please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this e-mail and any attachment from your computer and/or 
electronic devices. Any personal views or opinions expressed by the writer may not necessarily reflect the views or opinions of Quiddity Engineering, Inc. 

121

Item 6.



4

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and 
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or 
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in 
Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; 
Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

122

Item 6.



K:
\1

67
59

\1
67

59
-0

00
7-

02
 N

ew
ha

ve
n 

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n\

2 
D

es
ig

n 
Ph

as
e\

C
AD

\S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
\1

67
59

-0
00

7-
02

 D
ET

AI
LS

-M
IS

C
.d

w
g

JOB NO:

SCALE:
DATE: 05/15/2024

16759-0007-02

NTS

PAVEMENT VARIANCE
EXHIBIT

NEWHAVEN

Texas Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Registration Nos. F-23290 & 10046100
3100 Alvin Devane Boulevard, Suite 150  Austin, Texas 78741  512.441.9493

POTENTIAL CODE REQUIRED SECTION

RESIDENTIAL

2.5" HMAC
Surface Course,
Type "C" or "D" Prime Coat

55" Low PI Fill

12" Flexible Base

3" HMAC Base
Course, Type "B"

or "C"

2.5" HMAC
Surface Course,
Type "C" or "D" Prime Coat

16" Lime
treated

Subgrade

14" Flexible Base

3" HMAC Base
Course, Type "B"

or "C"

Geogrid

2" HMAC
Surface Course,
Type "C" or "D" Prime Coat

35" Low PI Fill

11" Flexible Base

2" HMAC
Surface Course,
Type "C" or "D" Prime Coat

16" Lime
treated

Subgrade

14" Flexible Base

Geogrid

REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT BY RABA
KISTNER, "Supplemental Pavement Revision No. 3 -
Emailed 04-15-2024" PROJECT NUMBER
AAA23-130-00, DATED April 15, 2024 FOR MORE
DETAILS.

COLLECTOR
APPROVED ALTERNATIVE

APPROVED ALTERNATIVEPOTENTIAL CODE REQUIRED SECTION

123

Item 6.



           1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

 
Mailing Address:  
9601 Amberglen Blvd. #109 
Austin, TX 78729 

 

 
May 20, 2024 
 
Mr. Scott Dunlop 
Development Services Director 
Manor TX 78653 
 
Re:  Street Pavement Variance Request  

New Haven Subdivision 
 City of Manor, Texas 
 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 
The submittal of the New Haven Pavement Variance Request, submitted by Quiddity and received by our 
office on April 16, 2024, has been reviewed by our office.   
 
The contemplated recommendations made below meet or exceed City of Austin minimum sections and have 
performed adequately for the City of Manor in the past. Our office recommend approving the pavement 
variance Option 2  with the following conditions: 
 

• Use Geogrid for both street types 

• Meet or exceed a treated subgrade thickness of at least 16” 

• Consider cement stabilized treated subgrade   

• The HMAC and flex base thickness shown are acceptable for each street type 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

124

Item 6.



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Review of this submittal does not constitute a verification of all data, information and calculations supplied by 
the applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely 
responsible for the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers 
review the application for Ordinance compliance.   
 
Please call if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Yours truly, 
 

 
 
 
Pauline M. Gray, P.E. 
 
PMG/s 
 
Enclosures 
 
Copy: Brad J. Carabajal, P.E. - Quiddity 
  
 
PN:: 14667.11-0142 

125

Item 6.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 
5/20/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Variance Request  
 
 
Project Name: New Haven Construction Plans 
Case Number: 2023-P-1569-CO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
 
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission will be conducting a Regularly Scheduled 
meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Subdivision Construction Variance for 
the New Haven Subdivision being located at the northwest intersection of FM 973 and Gregg Ln, 
Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Subdivision Construction Variance for the 
New Haven Subdivision from Manor Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article III, 
Section 42(b)(1) to permit a modified street pavement detail, and being located at the 
northwest intersection of FM 973 and Gregg Ln, Manor, TX. 
 
Applicant: Quiddity 
Owner: Gregg Lane Dev. LLC 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on June 12, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Subdivision Construction Variance has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email 
address or phone number above. Any communications received will be made available to the 
Commissioners during the discussion of this item.  
 

126

Item 6.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


RUST CREEK LLC 
9606 OLD MANOR RD #1 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78724-1114 

15701 ANDERSON ROAD MANOR LLC 
109 GROSEBECK LN 

LEANDER, TEXAS 78641-4036 

PFLUGERVILLE ISD 
PO BOX 589 

PFLUGERVILLE, TEXAS 78691-0589 

 
AQUA WATER SUPPLY CORP 

PO BOX P 
BASTROP, TEXAS 78602-1989 

 
FORTUNE LAND INVESTMENTS LLC 

223 DAKOTA DR 
CEDAR PARK, TEXAS 78613-7826 

 
LUTZ JAMES T & ALEXANDRA CARRILLO 

14812 N F M RD 973 
MANOR, TEXAS 78653 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR 

533 HIWASEE ROAD 
WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS 75165-6448 

 
57 ACRES ANDERSON RD MANOR LLC 

109 GROSEBECK LN 
LEANDER, TEXAS 78641-4036 

 
MONARCH RANCH AT MANOR LLC 

310 ENTERPRISE DR 
OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI 38655-2762 

 
GAB MANOR LLC 

4517 THREE ARROWS CT 
CEDAR PARK, TEXAS 78613-4838 

 
MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 
PO BOX 359 

MANOR, TEXAS 78653-0359 

 

 

127

Item 6.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Final Plat for the Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.964 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of Gregg 
Manor Road and Hill Lane, Manor, TX 
Applicant: Triangle Engineering, LLC 
Owner: Manor Lodging Development, LLC  
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This plat has been approved by our engineers. It is a three lot commercial subdivision (C-1 Light Commercial 
zoning) and the intended use is for a Townplace Hotel and a Hampton Inn Hotel, which have plans in for review. 
The third lot is also planned as a future hotel site. City utilities and drainage have already been stubbed out to the 
lots by the Las Entradas developer.  

LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

 Plat 

 Aerial Location  

 Engineer Comments 

 Conformance Letter 

ACTIONS: 

Discretion  Non-Discretionary  

 

Subdivision Review Type Alternate 

 

Actions Approve, Approve with Conditions, Postpone, Deny 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve a Final Plat for the 
Townplace at Hampton Addition Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.964 acres, more or less, and being located near 
the intersection of Gregg Manor Road and Hill Lane, Manor, TX 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

128

Item 7.



HILL LANE

GREG
G M

ANOR R
OAD

GENOME DRIVE

LOT 1
2.247 ACRES
97,870 SQ. FT. LOT 3

1.433 ACRES
62,408 SQ. FT.

LOT 2
2.153 ACRES
93,772 SQ. FT.

TILLG
A

N
G

 PA
SS

GREGG M
ANOR ROAD

N

LINE TABLE
No. Bearing Distance.

CURVE TABLE
Curve No. LengthRadiusDelta ChordChord Bearing

Surveying     Construction Staking    Platting

1 OF 2

14200 Midway Road, Suite 130, Dallas, TX 75244   T: 469.784.9321
W: TraverseLandSurveying.com   Texas Firm No. 10194631

GENERAL NOTES
1. The purpose of this plat is to create 3 lots.

2. Lot to lot drainage will not be allowed without City of Manor Engineering
Section approval.

3. The Basis of Bearings is from the Texas State Plane Coordinate System,
    NAD83, Central Zone as derived from GPS observations using the
    Allterra RTK Network and adjusted to surface using a surface scale
    factor of 1.00010.

5. Note: All easements inside the Property will be private, and not
    maintained by City.

6. The Proposed use is C-1 Light Commercial.

7. Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the City.
Date: May 11, 2023 Project No.: TR-43-22

SURVEYOR
Name: Traverse Land Surveying, LLC
Address: 14200 Midway Road, Suite 130
Dallas, Texas, 75244
Contact Name: David McCullah
Phone: 469-784-9321

ENGINEER
Name: Triangle Engineering, LLC
Address: 1784 W. Mcdermott Drive, Suite 110
Allen, Texas, 75013
Contact Name: Kiew Kam
Phone: 469-213-8868

FLOOD NOTES
No portion of the subject property shown hereon lies within the 100 year flood
hazard area  according to the Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community Panel No.
48453C0480J, dated August 18, 2014. The subject property is located in the
area designated as Zone "X", (areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual
chance floodplain).

JAMES MANOR SURVEY No. 40 , ABSTRACT NO. 546
IN THE

CITY OF MANOR, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

FINAL PLAT
LOTS 1-3, BLOCK A

TOWNPLACE AT
HAMPTON
 ADDITION

5.964 ACRES
OUT OF THE

OWNER/DEVELOPER
Name: Manor Lodging Development LLC
Address: 3431 Rayford Road, Suite 200
Spring, Texas, 77386
Contact Name: Kishan Becher
Phone: 903-526-9580

LEGEND

129

Item 7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENOME DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 GREGG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(55' WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(100' RIGHT-OF-WAY) (DOC. No. 201302647)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' RIGHT-OF-WAY) (DOC. No. 201500182)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD W/ CAP (KHA) FOUND (CM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT FOR CORNER FROM WHICH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP "ABRAM DASHNER 5901" FOUND BEARS N 79°54'08"E - 0.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD W/ CAP (ABRAM DASHNER 5901) FOUND (CM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT FOR CORNER FROM WHICH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP "McKIM & CREED" FOUND BEARS N 72°13'49"E - 0.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/ CAP "TRAVERSE LS PROP COR" FOUND FROM WHICH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP "ABRAM DASHNER 5901" FOUND BEARS N 19°35'45"E - 1.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD W/ CAP (ABRAM DASHNER 5901) FOUND (CM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 35°38'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
223.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 63°12'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
636.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36°15'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
343.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 14°21'13" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
399.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT FOR CORNER FROM WHICH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP "KHA" FOUND BEARS N 46°39'59"E - 0.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR LODGING DEVELOPMENT LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY  DOC. NO. 2022066626 O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.964 ACRES 259,776 SQ. FT. NO BUILDINGS ZONE "X" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES MANOR SURVEY NO. 40 ABSTRACT No. 546

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 86°40'15" E - 114.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH - 169.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 63°12'02" E - 227.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 63°12'02" E - 408.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' L.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' L.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' L.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.S. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°25'28" E - 104.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 86°20'33" E - 172.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 53°39'51" E - 135.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR INDEPENDENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 12597, PG. 1548

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK A LAS ESTRADAS NORTH, SECTION 1 DOC. No. 201500182 D.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9' WIDTH R.O.W. DEDICATION (BY THIS PLAT) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' WASTEWATER  EASEMENT DOC. No. 2006209748 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK A LAS ESTRADAS NORTH, SECTION 1 DOC. No. 201500182 D.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK A LAS ESTRADAS NORTH, SECTION 1 DOC. No. 201500182 D.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' RIGHT-OF-WAY) (DOC. No. 201500182)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAS ENTRADAS NORTH, SECTION 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. No. 202000038

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 12 PETER DWYER DOC. No. 2022196885 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTONWOOD HOLDINGS LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 12266, PG. 1144

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(100' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTONWOOD HOLDINGS LLC VOL. 12266, PG. 1144 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9' WIDTH R.O.W. DEDICATION (BY THIS PLAT) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID COORDS: N=10,102,504.77 E=3,170,168.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID COORDS: N=10,102,217.99 E=3,170,736.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID COORDS: N=10,101,894.34 E=3,170,502.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID COORDS: N=10,101,936.04 E=3,170,137.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 65°03'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05°49'37"

AutoCAD SHX Text
550.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 33°21'01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
84°30'18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 72°41'34"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
35°36'37"

AutoCAD SHX Text
500.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
310.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82°51'23"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
305.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINER BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT LINE (AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON ROD (AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD (AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS



OWNER'S CERTIFICATE AND DEDICATION

State of Texas           §
County of Travis        §

WHEREAS,  MANOR LODGING DEVELOPMENT LLC, a Texas limited liability company, is the owner of that
certain 5.964 acre tract located in the James Manor Survey Number 40, Abstract Number 546, City of Manor,
Travis County, Texas being all of that certain 5.964 acre tract of land conveyed to MANOR LODGING
DEVELOPMENT LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as described in Document No. 2022066626, Official Public
Records of Travis County, Texas, and does hereby subdivide said 5.964 acre tract, having been approved for
subdivision, pursuant to the public notification and hearing provisions of Chapter 212 and 232 of the local
government code.

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and designed herein as "TOWNPLACE AT HAMPTON
ADDITION" of the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby subdivides
said 5.656 acres of land in accordance with the attached map or plat to be know as "TOWNPLACE AT HAMPTON
ADDITION" and do hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets and public easements hereon shown
for the purposes and consideration therein expressed: subject to any easement or restrictions heretofore granted
and not released.

This plat approved subject to all platting ordinances, rules, regulations, and resolutions of the City of Manor.

WITNESS, my hand at Manor, Texas, this the______________ day of___________________, 2024.

By: _____________________________________
     Manor Lodging Development LLC
      Kishan Becher

STATE OF TEXAS         §
COUNTY OF COLLIN      §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a notary public in and for the State of Texas, on this day personally
appeared , known to me to be the person or agent whose name is subscribed to the
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ______________, 2024.

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

A METES AND BOUNDS
DESCRIPTION OF A
5.964 ACRE TRACT OF LAND

BEING a 5.964 acres tract of land situated in the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract No. 546, City of Manor, Travis County,
Texas, being all of that 5.964 acre tract of land conveyed to MANOR LODGING DEVELOPMENT LLC, a Texas limited liability
company, and recorded in Document No. 2022066626 of the Official Public Records, Travis County, Texas and being more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “KHA” (Controlling Monument (CM)) found on the common northerly line of
said Manor tract, and the northeasterly corner of Lot 1, Block A, Los Entradas North, Section 2, an addition to the City of Manor,
according to the plat thereof, recorded in Document No. 202000038, Official Public Records, Travis County, Texas, and also
being on the southerly right-of-way line of Hill Lane (variable width right-of-way);

THENCE, South 63 degrees 12 minutes 02 seconds East, along the common northerly line of said Manor tract, and the
southerly right-of-way line of said Hill Lane, a distance of 636.13 feet to a point for corner at the intersection of the southerly
right-of-way line of said Hill Lane, and the northwesterly right-of-way line of Gregg Manor Road (100' right-of-way), from which a
1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “Abram Dashner 5901” found, bears North 79 degrees 54 minutes 08 seconds East, a
distance of 0.63 feet;

THENCE, South 36 degrees 15 minutes 50 seconds West, along the northwesterly right-of-way line of said Gregg Manor Road,
a distance of 343.52 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “Abram Dashner 5901” (CM) found, said iron rod being the
beginning of a curve to the left, having a central angle of 05 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds, a radius of 550.00 feet and being
subtended by a chord bearing of South 33 degrees 21 minutes 01 seconds West, a chord distance of 55.91 feet;

THENCE, in a southwesterly direction, along said curve to the right, and along the northwesterly right-of-way line of said Gregg
Manor Road, an arc distance of 55.93 feet to a point for corner, from which a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “McKim &
Creed” found bears North 72 degrees 13 minutes 49 seconds East, a distance of 0.31 feet, said point for corner being the
beginning of a compound curve to the right, having a central angle of 84 degrees 30 minutes 18 seconds, a radius of 25.00 feet
and being subtended by a chord bearing of South 72 degrees 41 minutes 34 seconds West, a chord distance of 33.62 feet;

THENCE, in a southwesterly direction, along said curve to the right, and along the northwesterly right-of-way line of said Gregg
Manor Road, an arc distance of 36.87 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “Abram Dashner 5901” (CM) found on the
northerly right-of-way line of Genome Drive (60' right-of-way):

THENCE, North 65 degrees 03 minutes 04 seconds West, along the northerly right-of-way line of said Genome Drive, a distance
of 32.45 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped “Traverse LS Prop Cor” found (CM), from which a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap
stamped (Abram Dashner 5901) found bears North 19 degrees 35 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 1.06 feet, said iron
rod set being the beginning of a curve to the left, having a central angle of 35 degrees 36 minutes 37 seconds, a radius of
500.00 feet and being subtended by a chord bearing of North 82 degrees 51 minutes 23 seconds West, a chord distance of
305.78 feet;

THENCE, in a northwesterly direction, along said curve to the left, and along the northwesterly right-of-way line of said Genome
Drive, an arc distance of 310.76 feet to a point for corner on the southeasterly corner of said Lot 1, Block A, from which a 1/2
inch iron rod with cap stamped “KHA” found bears North 46 degrees 39 minutes 59 seconds East, a distance of 0.25 feet;

THENCE, North 14 degrees 21 minutes 13 seconds West, along the easterly line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 399.77 fee
to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “Open Range FS” (CM) found on a northeasterly corner of said Lot 1, Block A;

THENCE North 35 degrees 38 minutes 47 seconds East, along the easterly line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 223.34 feet
to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 5.964 acres (259,776 square feet) of land, more or less.

STATE OF TEXAS               §
COUNTY OF COLLIN          §

I. ,  am authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the
profession of engineering, and hereby certify that this plat is feasible from an engineering stand point and
complies with the engineering related portion of the City of Manor, Texas subdivision ordinance, and is true
and correct to the best of my knowledge.

This site is located in the  Gilleland Creek, watershed.

No portion of this site lies within the boundaries of the 100 year floodplain as shown on the flood insurance
rate map community panel map Community Panel No. 48453C0480J, effective date August 18, 2014,
Travis County, Texas and Incorporated Areas.

Kartavya Patel  , Professional Engineer No. 97534
Triangle Engineering, LLC
1784 W. Mcdermott Drive, Suite 110
Allen, Texas, 75013

STATE OF TEXAS           §
COUNTY OF COLLIN      §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a notary public in and for the State of Texas, on this day
personally appeared , known to me to be the person or agent whose name is
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in the
capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ______________, 2024.

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

GENERAL NOTES
1. Property Owners of the lots on which the public utility easement are located as shown on this
    plat shall provide access to the City of Manor in order for the City of Manor to inspect and
    maintain the underground facilities located within any such easements.

2. A 15' public utility easement is hereby dedicated along and adjacent to all street right-of-way.

3. Driveway and drainage construction standards shall be in accordance with the requirement of
    the City of Manor standards unless otherwise specified and approved by the City of Manor.

4. Water and wastewater service for this subdivision to be provided by the City of Manor.

5. No Lot in this subdivision shall be occupied until connection is made to the City of Manor water
    and wastewater system.

6. No building shall be constructed or maintained within the public utilities easements without the
    prior written approval of the City of Manor.  The City of Manor is not responsible or to the
    damage or to replacing any portions of any fencing, landscaping or other improvements
    constructed within any of such easements which were not approved by the City of Manor before
    their construction due to the necessary and customary work by the City of Manor in repairing,
    maintaining, or replacing the underground pipes and related facilities within such easements.

7. All streets, drainage improvements, sidewalks, water and wastewater lines and erosion controls
    shall be constructed and installed to City of Manor standards.

8. Erosion controls are required for the multifamily lot in accordance with section 1.4.0 of the City
    of Austin environmental Criteria Manual.

9. Prior to construction, a site development permit must be obtained from the City of Manor.

10. The building setback lines shall comply with the City's Zoning Ordinance.

CITY OF MANOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This Subdivision is located within the City of Manor Corporate limits as of this ______ day of ______________,
2023.

Accepted and authorized for record by the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Manor, Texas on
this ______ day of ______________, 2024.

Approved:                                                               Attest:

______________________                                   _______________________________
Felix Paiz                                                       LLUVIA ALMARAZ, CITY SECRETARY
CHAIRPERSON

Accepted and authorized for record by the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas on this ______ day of
______________, 2024.

Approved:                                                               Attest:

______________________                                   _______________________________
DR. CHRISTOPHER HARVEY                              LLUVIA ALMARAZ, CITY SECRETARY
MAYOR

STATE OF TEXAS           §
COUNTY OF TRAVIS      §
KNOW ALL ME BY THESE PRESENTS:

I, DYANA LIMON-MERCADO, Clerk of Travis County, Texas do hereby certify that the forgoing instrument of
writing and its certification of authentication was filed for record in my office on the date ______ day of
______________, 2023 at ____________ o'clock ____  in the plat records of said county and state in document
number_____________________, Official Records of Travis County, Texas.

Witness my hand and seal of office of the county clerk, this ______ day of ______________, 2024.

Dyana Limon-Mercado, County Clerk, Travis
County, Texas

BY:____________________________________
      DEPUTY

Surveying     Construction Staking    Platting

2 OF 2

14200 Midway Road, Suite 130, Dallas, TX 75244   T: 469.784.9321
W: TraverseLandSurveying.com   Texas Firm No. 10194631

Date: May 11, 2023 Project No.: TR-43-22

OWNER/DEVELOPER
Name: Manor Lodging Development LLC
Address: 3431 Rayford Road, Suite 200
Spring, Texas, 77386
Contact Name: Kishan Becher
Phone: 903-526-9580

SURVEYOR
Name: Traverse Land Surveying, LLC
Address: 14200 Midway Road, Suite 130
Dallas, Texas, 75244
Contact Name: David McCullah
Phone: 469-784-9321

ENGINEER
Name: Triangle Engineering, LLC
Address: 1784 W. Mcdermott Drive, Suite 110
Allen, Texas, 75013
Contact Name: Kevin Patel
Phone: 469-213-8868

JAMES MANOR SURVEY No. 40 , ABSTRACT NO. 546
IN THE

CITY OF MANOR, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

FINAL PLAT
LOTS 1-3, BLOCK A

TOWNPLACE AT
HAMPTON
 ADDITION

5.964 ACRES
OUT OF THE

PRELIMINARY, THIS SURVEY SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR ANY
PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A
FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT

       SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That I, David F. McCullah, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the
land and that the corner monuments shown thereon as set were properly placed under my personal
supervision in accordance with the subdivision ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas.

DAVID F. McCULLAH
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
Texas Registration No. 4023

Date: 

STATE OF TEXAS           §
COUNTY OF COLLIN      §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a notary public in and for the State of Texas, on this day
personally appeared David F. McCullah, known to me to be the person or agent whose name is subscribed
to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in the capacity therein
stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ______________, 2024.

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

130

Item 7.



 

 

 

131

Item 7.



Date: Thursday, April 6, 2023

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat, , TX. 

Dear Stephanie Wall,

The first submittal of the Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat (Final Plat) submitted by Triangle 
Engineering and received on June 19, 2024, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B. 

Engineer Review
The review of the submittal package has resulted in the following comments. Should you have any questions or require 
additional information regarding any of these comments, please contact Tyler Shows by telephone at (737) 247-7552 or 
by email at tshows@gbateam.com.

i. Reminder: The engineer and surveyor shall affix their seals to the plat in conjunction with the signing of the 
certification requirements.

ii. The vicinity map needs to be scaled 1” = 2,000’. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle map 
is recommended.

iii. Note all easements and utilities inside the property will be private, and not maintained by the city. These 
easements are not required. 

iv. Provide a note for what the proposed uses and reservations are for all lots within the subdivision. Proposed 
uses will be used to verify the setbacks.

v. Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within three hundred (300) feet of the 
subdivision boundary, together with the respective plat or deed references as determined by the most 
recent tax rolls.

vi. Since ROW is being dedicated, provide ROW width.
vii. Provide X and Y coordinates for four (4) property corners, using the state plane coordinate system.
viii. A sidewalk is needed to be provided along Hill Lane. Contact Scott Dunlop for alternative options.
ix. Provide certification from all applicable taxing authorities that all taxes due on the property have been paid.
x. Under general notes include the following “Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the 

City”.
xi.  Under the City of Manor Acknowledgement, the current Chairperson is Lakesha Small, the current Mayor is 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, and the current Clerk of Travis County is Dyana Limon-Mercado.

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

132

Item 7.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  Please include a comment response narrative indicating how comments have been 
addressed with your plan resubmittal. To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Additional comments may be generated as requested information is provided. Review of this submittal does not 
constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete, or 
adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy, and 
adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Tyler Shows
Staff Engineer
GBA

4/6/2023 11:22:13 AM
Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Final Plat
2023-P-1512-FP
Page 2

133

Item 7.



 
 

 

 

T: 469.784.9321 | W: TraverseLandSurveying.com | O: 14200 Midway Road, Suite 130, Dallas, TX 75244 

 
May 11, 2023 

 

 

To Whom it may Concern: 

 

1. Surveyor and Engineer will place seals once complete per city comments. 

2. Vicinity Map is to scale now per comments. 

3. All proposed easement have been removed per city comments. 

4. Added notes per City comments. 

5. Updated property to now show 300 feet beyond property per comments. 

6. Provided Coordinates per City comments. 

7. Added Proposed Sidewalk per comments. 

8. Updated City staff per comments. 

 

 

These items have been addressed on this plat. Traverse Land Surveying submits this plat for the City of Manor’s 

review.  Please let us know if you need anything else. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

134

Item 7.



Date: Monday, October 23, 2023

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat,  

Dear Stephanie Wall,

The subsequent submittal of the Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat submitted by Triangle 
Engineering and received on June 19, 2024, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B. We can offer the following comments based upon our review (satisfied comments stricken, new or 
outstanding comments in bold):

Engineer Review
The following comments have been provided by Tyler Shows. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information regarding any of these comments, please contact Tyler Shows by telephone at (737) 247-7552 or by email 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

i. Reminder: The engineer and surveyor shall affix their seals to the plat in conjunction with the signing of 
the certification requirements.

ii. The vicinity map needs to be scaled 1” = 2,000’. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle 
map is recommended.

iii. Note all easements and utilities inside the property will be private, and not maintained by the city. These 
easements are not required.

iv. Provide a note for what the proposed uses and reservations are for all lots within the subdivision. Proposed 
uses will be used to verify the setbacks.

v. Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within three hundred (300) feet of the 
subdivision boundary, together with the respective plat or deed references as determined by the most 
recent tax rolls. Provide a list of the Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within 
three hundred (300) feet of the subdivision boundary.

vi. Since ROW is being dedicated, provide ROW width.
vii. Provide X and Y coordinates for four (4) property corners, using the state plane coordinate system.
viii. A sidewalk is needed to be provided along Hill Lane. Contact Scott Dunlop for alternative options.
ix. Provide certification from all applicable taxing authorities that all taxes due on the property have been paid. 

Provide documentation that all taxes have been paid. Will need to submit a tax certification not a tax 
statement.

x. Under general notes include the following “Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the 
City”.

xi. Under the City of Manor Acknowledgement, the current Chairperson is Lakesha Small, the current Mayor is 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, and the current Clerk of Travis County is Dyana Limon-Mercado.

xii. All of the years in the signature portions of the plat need to be updated to read 2024.
xiii. The P&Z Chairperson is Felix Paiz.

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

135

Item 7.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Should you have questions regarding specific comments, please contact the staff member referenced under the section 
in which the comment occurs.  Should you have questions or require additional information regarding the plan review 
process itself, please feel free to contact me directly.  I can be reached by telephone at /Manor/Parts/Blank, or by e-mail 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the 
applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for 
the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for 
Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Tyler Shows
Staff Engineer
GBA

10/23/2023 5:21:34 PM
Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Final Plat
2023-P-1512-FP
Page 2

136

Item 7.



Date: Monday, December 18, 2023

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat,  

Dear Stephanie Wall,

The subsequent submittal of the Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat submitted by Triangle 
Engineering and received on June 19, 2024, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B. We can offer the following comments based upon our review (satisfied comments stricken, new or 
outstanding comments in bold):

Engineer Review
The following comments have been provided by Tyler Shows. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information regarding any of these comments, please contact Tyler Shows by telephone at (737) 247-7552 or by email 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

i. Reminder: The engineer and surveyor shall affix their seals to the plat in conjunction with the signing of 
the certification requirements.

ii. The vicinity map needs to be scaled 1” = 2,000’. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle 
map is recommended.

iii. Note all easements and utilities inside the property will be private, and not maintained by the city. These 
easements are not required.

iv. Provide a note for what the proposed uses and reservations are for all lots within the subdivision. Proposed 
uses will be used to verify the setbacks.

v. Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within three hundred (300) feet of the 
subdivision boundary, together with the respective plat or deed references as determined by the most 
recent tax rolls. Provide a list of the Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within 
three hundred (300) feet of the subdivision boundary.

vi. Since ROW is being dedicated, provide ROW width.
vii. Provide X and Y coordinates for four (4) property corners, using the state plane coordinate system.
viii. A sidewalk is needed to be provided along Hill Lane. Contact Scott Dunlop for alternative options.
ix. Provide certification from all applicable taxing authorities that all taxes due on the property have been paid. 

Provide documentation that all taxes have been paid. Will need to submit a tax certification not a tax 
statement.

x. Under general notes include the following “Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the 
City”.

xi. Under the City of Manor Acknowledgement, the current Chairperson is Lakesha Small, the current Mayor is 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, and the current Clerk of Travis County is Dyana Limon-Mercado.

xii. All of the years in the signature portions of the plat need to be updated to read 2024.
xiii. The P&Z Chairperson is Felix Paiz.

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

137

Item 7.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Should you have questions regarding specific comments, please contact the staff member referenced under the section 
in which the comment occurs.  Should you have questions or require additional information regarding the plan review 
process itself, please feel free to contact me directly.  I can be reached by telephone at /Manor/Parts/Blank, or by e-mail 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the 
applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for 
the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for 
Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Tyler Shows
Staff Engineer
GBA

12/18/2023 4:23:19 PM
Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Final Plat
2023-P-1512-FP
Page 2

138

Item 7.



Date: Tuesday, January 30, 2024

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat,  

Dear Stephanie Wall,

The subsequent submittal of the Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat submitted by Triangle 
Engineering and received on June 19, 2024, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B. We can offer the following comments based upon our review (satisfied comments stricken, new or 
outstanding comments in bold):

Engineer Review
The following comments have been provided by Tyler Shows. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information regarding any of these comments, please contact Tyler Shows by telephone at (737) 247-7552 or by email 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

i. Reminder: The engineer and surveyor shall affix their seals to the plat in conjunction with the signing of 
the certification requirements.

ii. The vicinity map needs to be scaled 1” = 2,000’. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle 
map is recommended.

iii. Note all easements and utilities inside the property will be private, and not maintained by the city. These 
easements are not required.

iv. Provide a note for what the proposed uses and reservations are for all lots within the subdivision. Proposed 
uses will be used to verify the setbacks.

v. Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within three hundred (300) feet of the 
subdivision boundary, together with the respective plat or deed references as determined by the most 
recent tax rolls. Provide a list of the Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within 
three hundred (300) feet of the subdivision boundary.

vi. Since ROW is being dedicated, provide ROW width.
vii. Provide X and Y coordinates for four (4) property corners, using the state plane coordinate system.
viii. A sidewalk is needed to be provided along Hill Lane. Contact Scott Dunlop for alternative options.
ix. Provide certification from all applicable taxing authorities that all taxes due on the property have been paid. 

Provide documentation that all taxes have been paid. Will need to submit a tax certification not a tax 
statement.

x. Under general notes include the following “Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the 
City”.

xi. Under the City of Manor Acknowledgement, the current Chairperson is Lakesha Small, the current Mayor is 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, and the current Clerk of Travis County is Dyana Limon-Mercado.

xii. All of the years in the signature portions of the plat need to be updated to read 2024.
xiii. The P&Z Chairperson is Felix Paiz.

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

139

Item 7.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Should you have questions regarding specific comments, please contact the staff member referenced under the section 
in which the comment occurs.  Should you have questions or require additional information regarding the plan review 
process itself, please feel free to contact me directly.  I can be reached by telephone at (737) 247-7557, or by e-mail at 
pgray@gbateam.com.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the 
applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for 
the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for 
Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Lead AES
GBA

1/30/2024 2:03:44 PM
Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Final Plat
2023-P-1512-FP
Page 2

140

Item 7.



Date: Monday, April 29, 2024

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat,  

Dear Stephanie Wall,

The subsequent submittal of the Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat submitted by Triangle 
Engineering and received on June 19, 2024, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B. We can offer the following comments based upon our review (satisfied comments stricken, new or 
outstanding comments in bold):

Engineer Review
The following comments have been provided by Tyler Shows. Should you have any questions or require additional 
information regarding any of these comments, please contact Tyler Shows by telephone at (737) 247-7552 or by email 
at tshows@gbateam.com.

i. Reminder: The engineer and surveyor shall affix their seals to the plat in conjunction with the signing of 
the certification requirements.

ii. The vicinity map needs to be scaled 1” = 2,000’. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle 
map is recommended.

iii. Note all easements and utilities inside the property will be private, and not maintained by the city. These 
easements are not required.

iv. Provide a note for what the proposed uses and reservations are for all lots within the subdivision. Proposed 
uses will be used to verify the setbacks.

v. Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within three hundred (300) feet of the 
subdivision boundary, together with the respective plat or deed references as determined by the most 
recent tax rolls. Provide a list of the Provide the owner’s name and the property lines of property within 
three hundred (300) feet of the subdivision boundary.

vi. Since ROW is being dedicated, provide ROW width.
vii. Provide X and Y coordinates for four (4) property corners, using the state plane coordinate system.
viii. A sidewalk is needed to be provided along Hill Lane. Contact Scott Dunlop for alternative options.
ix. Provide certification from all applicable taxing authorities that all taxes due on the property have been paid. 

Provide documentation that all taxes have been paid. Will need to submit a tax certification not a tax 
statement.

x. Under general notes include the following “Performance and maintenance guarantees as required by the 
City”.

xi. Under the City of Manor Acknowledgement, the current Chairperson is Lakesha Small, the current Mayor is 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, and the current Clerk of Travis County is Dyana Limon-Mercado.

xii. All of the years in the signature portions of the plat need to be updated to read 2024.
xiii. The P&Z Chairperson is Felix Paiz.

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

141

Item 7.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Should you have questions regarding specific comments, please contact the staff member referenced under the section 
in which the comment occurs.  Should you have questions or require additional information regarding the plan review 
process itself, please feel free to contact me directly.  I can be reached by telephone at (737) 247-7557, or by e-mail at 
pgray@gbateam.com.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the 
applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for 
the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for 
Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Lead AES
GBA

4/29/2024 10:48:47 AM
Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition 
Final Plat
2023-P-1512-FP
Page 2

142

Item 7.



Date: Monday, June 17, 2024

Stephanie Wall
Triangle Engineering
1782 W. McDermott Dr
Allen TX 75013
stephanie@triangle-engr.com

Permit Number 2023-P-1512-FP
Job Address: Lots 1-3, Block A Townplace at Hampton Addition Final Plat,  

Dear Stephanie Wall,

We have conducted a review of the final plat for the above-referenced project, submitted by 
Stephanie Wall and received by our office on June 19, 2024, for conformance with City of Manor 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A, Article II, Section 24. The Plat appears to 
be in general compliance with City Ordinance requirements and we, therefore, take no exception to 
their approval as presented. Please submit TWO (2) mylar copies of the final plat along with a 
current tax certificate and a check made out to Travis County for the filing fees to the City of Manor 
for signatures. One mylar is for City records and the other is for Travis County.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations 
supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete or adequate for the intended purpose. The 
engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy and adequacy of his/her 
submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. Please 
call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Tyler Shows
Staff Engineer
GBA

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

143

Item 7.


	Top
	Item 1.	PH - Monarch Ranch Amended PUD
	A_Summary_Form
	b_Monarch_Ranch_PUD_Amendment_Rezone_Map_Only
	c. Aerial Image
	d_monarch_ranch_amendment
	e. PUD Comparison
	f_Monarch Ranch PUD amendment public notice
	g_Mailing_Labels

	Item 2.	PH - Reserves at Las Entradas Additional Area 2024-P-1663-ZO
	A_Summary_Form
	b_letter_of_intent
	c_Reserves Additional Land MF2 Rezone
	d_aerial_image
	e_MF Site Layout
	f_DA Shared Parking Section
	g_letter_of_authorization
	h_metes and bounds
	i_Reserves at las entradas additional area rezoning public notice
	j_mailing labels sheet

	Item 3.	CON: June 12, 2024 P&Z Commission Minutes
	a. Summary Form
	b June 12, 2024, P&Z Draft Minutes

	Item 4.	REG - Monarch Ranch Amended PUD
	A_Summary_Form
	b_Monarch_Ranch_PUD_Amendment_Rezone_Map_Only
	c. Aerial Image
	d_monarch_ranch_amendment
	e. PUD Comparison
	f_Monarch Ranch PUD amendment public notice
	g_Mailing_Labels

	Item 5.	REG - Reserves at Las Entradas Additional Area 2024-P-1663-ZO
	A_Summary_Form
	b_letter_of_intent
	c_Reserves Additional Land MF2 Rezone
	d_aerial_image
	e_MF Site Layout
	f_DA Shared Parking Section
	g_letter_of_authorization
	h_metes and bounds
	i_Reserves at las entradas additional area rezoning public notice
	j_mailing labels sheet

	Item 6.	REG _New Haven Construction Plans_2023-P-1569-CO paving variance
	a. Summary Form
	b_Newhaven - Pavement Variance - Letter of Intent - final V2
	c_new haven street table
	d. Aerial Image Location
	e_Newhaven Pavement_Variance
	f. New Haven Pavement Variance_Conformance_Letter
	g_New Haven Construction Plans public notice
	h_mailing labels

	Item 7.	REG - Townplace and Hampton Plat - 2023-P-1512-FP
	A_Summary_Form
	b_approved plat
	c_Aerial Location
	d_Engineer_Comments_and_Responses
	e_Conformance_letter

	Bottom

